

2020 CGEA Regional Meeting

Abstract Compendium

Association of American Medical Colleges

Contents

Message from CGEA Chair	2
Message from CGEA Conference/ Host Chairs	3
Special Thanks and Acknowledgments	4
CGEA Awards	5
Innovation Abstracts	7
Research Abstracts	97
Small Group Discussion, Workshops and Panel Discussion Abstracts	176
List of CGEA Executive Committee members 2019-2020	218
List of CGEA Planning Committee and Subcommittees members	219
Abstract Reviewers	220

Message from CGEA Chair

This has been a year like no other. The COVID-19 pandemic has changed the world profoundly and forced us to re-imagine medical education in a virtual environment. The murders of George Floyd, Ahmaud Arbery, Breonna Taylor, and others have brought to the forefront the systemic racism that exists in medicine and has compelled academic medicine to become much more actively antiracist. It has served as a catalyst in moving forward the mission we all share to dismantle systemic racism and to promote equity in our own disciplines and institutions.



Many of us in the CGEA have been working harder than ever before, immersed in our own institutional issues and striving to provide an outstanding education to our learners. We live in states and cities with travel restrictions and mandatory quarantines, further isolating us and making it impossible to even consider the in-person gatherings and collaborations that we have taken for granted in the past.

In times like this it is vital to remember and celebrate those things that are valuable to us. We must work to preserve our CGEA community in the coming year, as in-person meetings will be impossible, and at a time when our local issues are so compelling and at times overwhelming. We are fortunate that the AAMC is compiling this compendium, to remind us that medical education is a key part of our careers and lives.

This compendium provides the regional GEAs with the opportunity to disseminate information that would have been presented at our spring meeting. It also provides us with the chance to acknowledge all of those who worked so hard to put together what would have been a fabulous meeting. Please take some time to read and digest the outstanding work of your colleagues. We are so lucky in the CGEA to have a talented and dedicated membership, and a genuine community of educators willing to share their ideas and collaborate with one another.

The executive and planning committees are striving to develop an innovative plan for our virtual spring 2021 meeting- one that will allow us to experience that sense of community that is the essence of the CGEA and will provide an opportunity for our members to present their work virtually. Please feel free to contact me if you have ideas about how to best accomplish these goals. In the meanwhile, enjoy this compendium that has been so thoughtfully assembled by our colleagues at the AAMC.

Please do your best to stay safe. I look forward to seeing you in person in what I hope is the not too distant future. Take care.

Beth

Elizabeth Baker MD, MHPE

Chair, Central Group on Educational Affairs

Senior Associate Dean of Undergraduate Medical Education, Rush Medical College, Chicago, IL

Message from CGEA Conference/ Host Chairs

The unpredictability of life definitely showed up in full-force with the cancellation of our meeting, one which the entire program committee (and our CGEA family) was looking forward to for so many reasons! Beyond the connections and our camaraderie, this year was an anniversary year and we had a historic location with a meeting agenda that was quite different from years prior. Needless to say, our hearts were broken that this meeting was not to be, but the knowledge that our CGEA family is safe and well and remains this way was more important than the meeting itself. With every gray cloud there is always a silver lining. With the pandemic we are now embracing novel pedagogy and ways to educate that we may never have considered before, all this becoming fodder for research and presentation in future meetings. We look forward to the next time we can meet face to face, but till then, stay safe and keep promoting the CGEA!





Special Thanks and Acknowledgments

I would like to thank the entire planning committee for their extraordinary work in planning what would have been a spectacular meeting. In particular our planning chair, Kamran Mirza, deserves a special mention. He brought such incredible energy and positivity to each task he tackled. He motivated the entire group, and certainly help to boost my energy on several occasions. Our local host, Mark Beard, as well as the entire University of South Dakota team, deserve a special shout out for their flexibility and enthusiasm, as well as the creativity they brought to the table. They certainly epitomize my notion of Midwestern hospitality. Finally, our MESRE lead, Heeyoung Han needs to be acknowledged for the intellectual rigor and high standards she brought, and continues to bring, to every task on her very full MESRE plate. Thank you, everyone!!

CGEA Awards

o The CGEA regional Brownie Anderson New Educator Award

Kamran Mirza MD, PhD - Kamran Mirza MD, PhD, is Assistant Professor in Pathology and Laboratory Medicine and Medical Education at Loyola University Stritch School of Medicine, known around Loyola as the "Michael Phelps of medical education"! We had an amazing array of highly qualified nominees for the premier of this new award, but Kamran clearly stood out from the rest. He is a dynamo- I predict big things from Kamran in the future.

Student Travel Awards

- Robert Nolan "Interprofessional Education in Medical School: Is it effective in changing physician knowledge and attitude?" - University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences, The Pritzker School of Medicine
- Olivia Davies "Common Language and Share Experience: the MCW Common Read Program"- Medical College of Wisconsin, Milwaukee.
- Joseph Geraghty "One Test to Rule Them All: USMLE Step 1's Influence On Medical Student Decision Making and Emotion Work Regarding Step 2 CK" -University of Illinois at Chicago

Student Certificate of Honor (in lieu of travel award)

 Victoria Biach - "Creating a More Diverse and Competitive Applicant Pool with Targeted Supplemental Advising" - University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

o Post-Graduate (Resident/Fellow) Travel Award

 Jacob Mack - "A novel video intervention to improve senior medical students' performance on outpatient telephone encounters" - University of Michigan Medical School

New Investigator Award

 Anitha Menon – "Allies, Not Witnesses: A Case-Based Training Approach to Promote Medical Student Intervention in Sexual Harassment" - University of Michigan

o CGEA Collaborative Grant Recipient

Tracey A.H. Taylor, Ph.D., James Grogan, Ph.D., Robert Noiva, Ph.D., Robin Rivest, M.Ed., M.B.A., David Thomas, Ph.D. – "Evaluation of the Use of Artificial Intelligence to Map Medical Education Assessment Alignment" - Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

The New Laureates

On the most auspicious occasion of the GEA's 50th anniversary, and with two such outstanding candidates nominated, we felt it was fitting to double our fun and give out two awards!

Larry Hurtubise, MA – Larry has had a long-time commitment to the CGEA with a long list extraordinary level of contributions to the evolution/development/growth of the CGEA through both formal and informal roles. Larry epitomizes the attributes we seek in a CGEA Laureate

and colleague. As quoted from his nomination letter: We dare you – find a CGEA meeting where Larry hasn't been "a presence": as a presenter, moderator, and/or convener.

Brenda Roman MD – As Associate Dean for Medical Education at Wright
 State University Boonshoft School of Medicine, Brenda provides the highest
 caliber of mentoring and coaching to junior faculty and staff leaders, striving
 daily to help them achieve their goals within the realm of medical
 education.

Innovation Abstracts

A Fourth Year Patient Discharge Curriculum

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Radhika Sreedhar, University of Illinois College of Medicine Asra Khan, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ananya Gangopadhyaya, University of Illinois College of Medicine Yoon Soo Park, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ana Clara Mauro, University of Illinois College of Medicine Susan Doh, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We wished to determine whether a fourth-year discharge curriculum improves students' skills, attitudes, and knowledge regarding safe discharge practices.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Discharging a patient is an integral part of an intern's responsibility. Despite this, studies show that over 95% of students desire additional training regarding patient discharge¹.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

As a part of subinternship in medicine, students were immersed in a curriculum consisting of:

- Self-Study: didactics on safe discharge²
- Experiential:
 - Students provide discharge instructions to patients with direct preceptor feedback²
 - Students make post discharge phone calls to patients and do a self-assessment of areas for improvement
- Small group sessions addressing issues related to phone calls, ways to prevent errors and improve the safety of discharge process.

Outcomes:

Outcomes: Data was collected from 92 pre and 58 post-curriculum surveys. Differences in proportions were determined using chi-squared test. The results were: Knowledge of:

- performing medication reconciliation increased from 40 to 75%, p < .001
- writing discharge summaries increased from 57 to 83%, p = .002

Attitudes regarding importance of:

- Transportation needs improved from 64 to 96%, p < .001
- Financial concerns improved from 53 to 90%, p < .001

Skills:

• Direct involvement of students in providing patient discharge education increased from 38 to 85%, p < .001.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

While portions of this curriculum was described as a workshop in clerkship, we implemented it in sub-internship to help students develop entrustable professional behavior. The direct preceptor and patient feedback regarding the discharge process followed by a debrief session makes this curriculum stand apart. A major limitation is implementation in a single site in medicine sub-internship.

References:

- 1. Block, L., M. Morgan-Gouveia, W. Kelly, M. Kannarkat, K. C. Chretien and D. Cayea (2015). "Participation of Medical Students in Discharge Tasks: A Needs Assessment." J Am Geriatr Soc 63(10): 2181-2183.
- 2. Maureen D. Lyons, MD*, D. Bailey Miles, MD, Andrew M. Davis, MD, MPH, Mark B. Saathoff, AmberT. Pincavage, MD "Preventing Breakdowns in Communication: Teaching Patient-Centered Posthospital Care Transitions to Medical Students" MedEdPORTAL. 2016 Aug 5;12:10435.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [sreedhar@uic.edu]

A peer-led model for falls prevention for community-dwelling seniors, developed by medical and art therapy students

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jennifer Mendez, Wayne State University School of Medicine Aubrey Neal, Wayne State University School of Medicine Sophia Neuenfeldt, Wayne State University School of Medicine Gabrielle McGrath, Wayne State University School of Medicine Latonya Riddle-Jones, Wayne State University School of Medicine Nakia Allen, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

- 1. Demonstrate how a peer-led model in a falls prevention education program could be designed to be more effective in falls prevention.
- 2. Exhibit how tailoring and personalizing information can foster seniors' perception of personal relevance of falls prevention.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Studies show that seniors are generally not interested or motivated to receive falls prevention information as they often underestimated their risk of falling, or tended to seek information only after experiencing falls. Other studies show seniors have low levels of knowledge about falls and falls prevention. Therefore, providing education that raises knowledge and motivation is an important initial step to facilitate subsequent engagement in falls prevention strategies. Key stakeholders' perspectives and theoretical frameworks were incorporated in the design of this novel falls prevention education program for community-dwelling seniors, using a peer-led approach.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The program was developed and implemented by medical and art therapy student educators. Using relevant adult learning principles and health behavior change theoretical framework a presentation and resources for the peer educators was created. A follow-up one-hour session was held to check-in to determine if the peer-led approach on falls prevention presentation by community-based seniors was being delivered by newly trained peer educators.

Outcomes:

This pilot research has demonstrated that an evidence-based peer-led model informed by sound theoretical frameworks can be a feasible initial step towards addressing community-based seniors' perceptions regarding falls prevention. The primary mechanism was tailoring and personalizing the information delivered to foster the seniors' perception of personal relevance of falls prevention.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Three medical students worked with four art therapy students to design the falls prevention reminder cards that are crucial to the program.

References:

Khong, L., A., Berlach, M., Hill, K., and Hill, A., 2018, "Community Peer-Led Falls Prevention Presentations: What Do Experts

Suggest?" Journal of Primary Prevention 39 (2): 81-98.

Khong L., A., 2016 "The Impact of Peer Led Falls Prevention on Community Dwelling Older Adults: A Mixed Methods Evaluation", Theses University of Norte Dame, Australia

For more information about this abstract please contact: [ag3928@wayne.edu]

Allies, Not Witnesses: A Case-Based Training Approach to Promote Medical Student Intervention in Sexual Harassment

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Anitha Menon, University of Michigan Medical School Aisling Zhao, University of Michigan Medical School Kathryn Brown, University of Michigan Medical School Edwin Klein, University of Michigan Medical School Anna Morgan, University of Michigan Medical School Timothy Johnson, University of Michigan Medical School

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To evaluate the impact of evidence-driven and case-based bystander training on medical student awareness of sexual harassment (SH) in clinical settings and knowledge of effective intervention methods.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical students are 220% more likely to experience SH than their peers in other STEM fields¹. Social science literature suggests that bystander interventions—in which bystanders ally themselves with targets of harassment—are highly effective at preventing SH and promoting inclusive organizational cultures ²⁻⁶, but Michigan medical students aren't taught skills to intervene in SH in clinical settings.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We conducted 5 focus groups and 7 in-depth interviews of senior clinical students (n=26) to understand students' experiences of SH. Using this data, we conducted a 1-hour bystander intervention training for early clinical students (n=29) consisting of small-group discussions of 6 hypothetical SH cases facilitated by senior students. SH concept knowledge was assessed using pre- and post-intervention surveys.

Outcomes:

Major themes from focus groups: (1) Un-addressed harassment in clinical settings can be distressing for both targets and bystanders. (2) Women of color, queer, and trans individuals experience heightened distress due to co-occurring marginalized identities. (3) Students want institutions to address student SH through policy and education. Bystander intervention training increased student knowledge of SH concepts by 35% (p<0.01) and bystander intervention strategies by 67% (p<0.01).

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Strengths: (1) Sample included students of diverse race/ethnicities and genders. (2) Study utilized mixed methods to characterize students' SH and bystander intervention experiences. (3) Intervention designed and implemented by members of the affected community. Limitations: (1) Single-center study with small sample sizes. (2) Self-selected sample of students with prior interest in topic.

References:

- 1. National Academies of Sciences E, Medicine. Sexual harassment of women: climate, culture, and consequences in academic sciences, engineering, and medicine. National Academies Press; 2018.
- 2. Rowe M. Fostering Constructive Action by Peers and Bystanders in Organizations and Communities. Negotiation Journal. 2018;34(2):137-163.
- 3. Bowes-Sperry L, O'Leary-Kelly AM. To act or not to act: The dilemma faced by sexual harassment observers. Academy of Management Review. 2005;30(2):288-306.
- 4. Knapp DE, Faley RH, Ekeberg SE, Dubois CL. Determinants of target responses to sexual harassment: A conceptual framework. Academy of Management Review. 1997;22(3):687-729.
- 5. Hershcovis MS, Neville L, Reich TC, Christie AM, Cortina LM, Shan JV. Witnessing wrongdoing: The effects of observer power on incivility intervention in the workplace. Organizational Behavior and Human Decision Processes. 2017;142:45-57.
- 6. McDonald P, Charlesworth S, Graham T. Action or inaction: Bystander intervention in workplace sexual harassment. The International Journal of Human Resource Management. 2016;27(5):548-566.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [avmenon@umich.edu]

An Innovative Approach to Develop Integration of Basic Science and Clinical Medicine in the Clerkships- a Pilot Study Using Patient Simulation Based Learning Activity

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Bindu Menon, University of Toledo College of Medicine Tyrone Layson, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Stephanie Mann, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Deepa Mukundan, The University of Toledo College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The objective of this innovation is to determine if the re-introduction of core foundational science concepts strengthens student's learning during their clinical rotations.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Principles of cognitive science can facilitate integration and retention of basic science concepts during the clinical years. Studies have shown that integration improves diagnostic accuracy and understanding of key clinical features¹. The major obstacles are determining the optimal timing and the availability and preparedness of clinical faculty to deliver the previously learned basic sciences²⁻⁴.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The instructional approach was based on facilitating student's construction of cognitive schemata to facilitate the development of clinical reasoning. The clerkship director selected a simulation session based on diabetic ketoacidosis to pilot the program and identified appropriate basic science faculty expert to deliver the content. The session starts with students working their way through the physical examination and laboratory test results, facilitated by the clinical faculty, to identify the most probable differential diagnosis. After that, the basic science faculty gives a chalk-talk about important concepts linked to the disorder. Finally, the clinical faculty discusses patient management options.

Outcomes:

The students described this approach as a great positive step with 89% strongly agreeing that it was helpful, while 11% agreed and no one disagreed.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The strength was that students could solidify their knowledge by aligning diagnosis and management with the pathophysiology, in a team-teaching setting facilitated by both clinical and basic science faculty. The limitation was that the study was conducted in one clerkship with one group of students with no follow-up data.

References:

1. Lisk K, Agur AM, Woods NN. Exploring cognitive integration of basic science and its effect on diagnostic reasoning in novices. (2016) Perspect Med Educ. 5:147–153.

- 2. Report by Association of American Medical Colleges. (2001) Contemporary Issues in Medicine: Basic Science and Clinical Research.
- 3. Spencer AL, Brosenitsch T, Levine AS, and Kanter SL. Back to the Basic Sciences: An Innovative Approach to Teaching Senior Medical Students How Best to Integrate Basic Science and Clinical Medicine. (2013) Academic Medicine, 83 (7):662-669.
- 4. Bandiera G1, Boucher A, Neville A, Kuper A, Hodges B. Integration and timing of basic and clinical sciences education. (2013) Med Teach. 35(5):381-387.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [bindu.menon@utoledo.edu]

An innovative self-directed video-based course to improve medical students' note writing

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Valerie Hearns, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Sarah Scott, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Valeriy Kozmenko, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Shane Schellpfeffer, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The University of South Dakota Sanford School of Medicine (USDSSOM) developed a video series of standardized patient (SP) encounters to help students improve their note writing skills for the end of third year Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE) and USMLE Step 2 CS patient notes.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

USMLE Step 2 CS note failures are increasing nationally. The same occurs with OSCE, despite note writing activities and availability of a computer based program to practice note writing within the ten minute limitation expected for USMLE Step 2 CS and our OSCE.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

USDSSOM created a collection of video cases showing interaction between a student doctor and a SP. Students watch the video, develop an assessment and plan, and document a note using the software. Upon completion of the note, a grading checklist is provided which allows the student to self-grade their note. The process can be repeated until proficiency is achieved.

Outcomes:

The program allows for automated data collection. Correlations were drawn between the practice scores and the OSCE note writing scores. Comparisons were made between participants and nonparticipants. In the first class cohort, note writing scores improved overall for the OSCE (18% fail rate vs 42%). Only 22% of participants required note remediation vs 77% for nonparticipants. Passing rates for Step 2 CS are not known for the entire class cohort at this time.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Students can practice note writing in the USMLE Step 2 CS format with the associated time and character count restrictions using self-assessment rubrics. This minimizes cost of implementation.

Early results show promise.

Small class size is a limitation.

References:

Tervo RC, et al, 1997, SD J Med, 50(5):153-6. Jang HW, et al, 2014, BMC Med Ed, 14:56.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [valerie.hearns@usd.edu]

An Integrative approach to Course Design and Curriculum Mapping at Wayne State University School of Medicine

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Heidi Kromrei, Wayne State University School of Medicine Nakia Allen, Wayne State University School of Medicine Jennifer Mendez, Wayne State University School of Medicine Sonal Patel, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This inter-disciplinary collaboration aimed to develop a comprehensive curriculum map for a Food Insecurity course. This curriculum map served multiple purposes, 1.) Course alignment with IOM Behavioral and Social Science Priority Topics, 2.) Integration of multiple units' educational activities in a single course, 3.) Evidence-based practices for the course design, 4.) Meaningful, active learning activities for our medical students, and 5.) Alignment of student performance assessments to course goals and objectives.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Nearly 50 million people in the United States are food insecure, making it a leading health and nutrition concern; when families lack access to adequate food due to limited resources and have limited income, numerous potential negative health consequences may occur². The Wayne State University School of Medicine Office of Learning and Teaching aims to collaborate with UGME Stakeholders to improve the design, development, and delivery of curricula to create effective and engaging educational materials and to prepare our students to serve our urban patient population.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A multi-disciplinary team worked together to develop the curriculum map.Learning activities and instructional strategies were varied (e.g., individual, small/large group work, role plays, etc.) and utilized a variety of technology (e.g., movie clips, podcasts). Assessments included pre- and post-tests regarding food insecurity knowledge, discussion boards, portfolio reflections, peer-evaluation, and capstone project).

Outcomes:

All of the project aims were met through the development of our curriculum map. Preliminary results of student satisfaction and evaluation of capstone projects indicate that this multi-disciplinary curricular approach was successful.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Strength: Leveraging a plethora of University resources to design a comprehensive, effective course for medical students.

Limitation: Missed opportunity to enhance course design and delivery through involving medical students in all stages of course planning.

References:

- 1. Wight, V., & Thampi, K. (2010). Who Are America's Poor Children? Examining Food Insecurity Among Children in the United States.
- 2. Gundersen, C., & Ziliak, J. P. (2015). Food insecurity and health outcomes. Health affairs, 34(11), 1830-1839.
- 3. Vanselow, N., & Cuff, P. A. (Eds.). (2004). Improving medical education: Enhancing the behavioral and social science content of medical school curricula. National Academies Press.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [hkromrei@med.wayne.edu]

An interdepartmental collaboration leads to innovative design for verifying required clinical experiences, mid-clerkship feedback, and direct observation of students' core clinical skills

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Hugh Hansen, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine Dana Hartman, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Carver College of Medicine (CCOM) relied on an external vendor's software to track students' required clinical experiences (RCEs). This reliance created challenges: the student interface required extensive site navigation; it wasn't suitable for mobile devices; reports for individual clerkships and administration were expansive spreadsheets requiring data sorting/reformatting; resolving discrepancies between admin- and clerkship-level reports was time consuming and data accuracy was questionable.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Frustration peaked when compiling data for a re-accreditation self-study. One conclusion of the study and visiting LCME team was the system was insufficient. A team was formed to assess alternative products vs. an internally-developed application; it concluded an internal application was needed, incorporating input from clerkships and students. The system had to be functional for students entering clinical training 01/2019 and LCME's expectation by 04/2019.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Training for users of the system labeled CLERX were completed on schedule. Design features include: portable device access for students; automatic direction to students' current clerkship/RCEs; clerkships' ability to view students' RCE completion/progress via a single dashboard; administrators' ability to view completion rates for required clerkships from a single dashboard.

Outcomes:

The time required of clerkships to monitor RCE completion has reduced by approximately 60%. Documentation to the LCME in 04/2019 confirmed successfull implementation of the system and data verifying 100% of students in core clerkships for Q1/2019 completed their RCEs, demonstrated clinical skills, and received mid-clerkship feedback.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The system's design lent itself to broader uses. The team agreed other accreditation standards could be tracked...observation of students' clinical skills and mid-clerkship feedback. CLERX was designed so students can log dates these activities occur and upload evaluators' documentation. CLERX can be fully operational if integrated with student/clerkship scheduling databases.

References: N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: [hugh-hansen@uiowa.edu]

Are They Watching? Three Years of Flipped Education Using Video

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Max Anderson, University of Illinois College of Medicine Leslie Hammersmith, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of our poster is to take a close look at analytics of video viewing habits among medical students at the University of Illinois College of Medicine and specifically in one particular block course. Attendees will be able to adopt our model of data analysis to replicate it at their home institutions.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Many medical schools across the country struggle with finding effective and attainable processes for producing instructional content and supporting learning objectives, while integrating the strengths of face-to-face and web-based learning environments. Faculty are increasingly creating and implementing learner-centered, technology-rich learning experiences designed to fit a flipped classroom model of instruction. In the scholarly literature, research is being done to determine if there is an average 'right' amount of time devoted to the flipped model of instruction³. Other researchers have focused on the various aspects of video instruction including development time² and issues with attendance to lectures when recordings are available¹.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

This will be a poster session so the primary engagement with the audience will be around models of analysis for interpreting data from the University of Illinois College of Medicine's lecture capture system, Echo360, Osmosis, and other 3rd party video delivery tools.

Outcomes:

- * Gain an understanding of student use of faculty-produced and other 3rd party videos in a flipped instructional model
- * Glean information from our experiences to apply models of analysis to their own databases to increase value of video-based instructional materials.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A strength and a potential limitation is that we looked at just one block course, and two specific weeks within that course.

References:

1 Gupta, A., Saks, N. S. (2013). Exploring medical student decisions regarding attending live lectures and using recorded lectures. Medical Teacher, 35(9), 767-771.

2 Norman, M. (2017). Twelve tips for reducing production time and increasing long-term usability of instructional video. Medical Teacher, 39(8), 808-812.

3 Pettit, R. K., McCoy, L., & Kinney, M. (2017). What millennial students say about flipped education. Advances in Medical Education and Practice, 8, 487-497.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [max@uic.edu]

Auntie Na's Healthy Oasis Corner Store Program: A Medical Student Nutrition Education Training and Community Health Screening Program in the City of Detroit.

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Dhruvil Patel, Wayne State University School of Medicine Aneesh Hehr, Wayne State University School of Medicine Amer Tamr, Wayne State University School of Medicine Jennifer Mendez, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To build medical student skills and confidence in providing effective nutrition counseling and establishing rapport with community members.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Literature on nutrition counseling prevalence among physicians shows that many do not feel prepared providing effective nutrition counseling. Therefore, physicians may have limited skills in counseling their patients on the nutritional aspects of chronic diseases that can be controlled through a healthy diet. The Auntie Na's Student Organization Healthy Oasis corner store program addresses this by helping medical students make connections between nutritional education and healthcare outside the clinic.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Weekly health screening centers are placed at a corner store in the Nardin Park neighborhood of Detroit that has a median household income of \$23,869 and 51.6% using Food Stamps/SNAP benefits. Out of five stores, two were selected based on location, zip code, foot traffic, proximity to public transportation and parking. Medical students from Wayne State University School of Medicine volunteer to measure blood pressure, blood glucose, and cholesterol of patrons. Students then discuss the patron's diets and educate them on healthy alternatives. Patrons are then administered a survey that determines if they benefited from the program and are provided \$6 to purchase healthy produce from the corner store with the assistance of a medical student directing them towards healthier options at the store. Students are administered a survey after participation to assess how participation built nutritional counseling skills.

Outcomes:

Survey data is currently being collected.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Providing students with an avenue to provide nutritional counseling to community members outside the clinic helps students develop a toolbelt of nutritional counseling and rapport-building skills for use in clinical practice, but the program is currently limited to developing nutritional counseling skills at a foundational level.

References:

Adams, K. M., Kohlmeier, M., Powell, M., & Zeisel, S. H. (2010). Nutrition in medicine: nutrition education for medical students and residents. Nutrition in Clinical Practice, 25(5), 471-480.

Data Access and Dissemination Systems (DADS). "American FactFinder." American FactFinder, October 5, 2010. https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml?src=bkmk.

Zenk, S.N., et al., Fruit and vegetable access differs by community racial composition and socioeconomic position in Detroit, Michigan. Ethn Dis, 2006. 16(1): p. 275-80.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [fw9529@wayne.edu]

<u>Bringing PBL to Life: Linking to Standardized Patient Cases and Real-World Experiences</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Melissa Quigg, Carle Illinois College of Medicine
Ann Reisner, University of Illinois Urbana Champaign
Ricardo Lema, Carle Illinois College of Medicine
Kristine Carpenter, Carle Illinois College of Medicine
Judith Rowen, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Carle Illinois COM preclinical curriculum is delivered through organ-system blocks via problem-based learning (PBL) cases. We sought to link our M1 Introduction to Clinical Practice (ICP) and PBL courses for better integration.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Learning through cases (including PBL) is widespread in medical curricula¹, and often separate from the teaching of clinical skills². One of the recommendations for enhancing the scaffolding of learning in PBL is ensuring authenticity³. Integration improves by building curricular links⁴. We sought to create authentic linkage between our PBL and clinical skills courses.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Standardized patients (SPs) representing PBL cases assist with teaching communication and physical examination skills. Students have community-based experiences with patients related to the PBL cases. Faculty designing ICP drafted a list of desired skills and reviewed the PBL cases to find opportunities for overlap. Example: the cardiovascular course patient with chest pain was developed into a SP script – students obtain a history, perform a physical examination, and counsel the patient about his medications. Students interview patients attending cardiac rehabilitation to learn how their recent MI impacted them.

Outcomes:

Seven PBL-related SP cases and six community experiences were integrated into ICP. The SP encounters were the most highly rated component of the course, and the community experiences scored better than the overall course evaluation. One unexpected but welcome outcome is that our students do not perceive a separation between their PBL course and ICP as reflected in evaluation comments.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Having SPs portray PBL case patients adds authenticity, increases integration and students enjoy it. Meaningful real-world clinical experiences can enhance case-based learning.

References:

1. Association of American Medical Colleges. Instructional Formats Used in the Curriculum. AAMC Curriculum Inventory, 2017-2018. https://www.aamc.org/data-reports/curriculum-reports/interactive-data/instructional-formats-used-curriculum. Accessed October 31, 2019.

- 2. Association of American Medical Colleges. Content Documentation as Independent Course or Part of an Integrated Course. AAMC Curriculum Inventory, 2017-2018. https://www.aamc.org/data-reports/curriculum-reports/interactive-data/content-documentation-independent-course-or-part-integrated-course. Accessed October 31, 2019.
- 3. Greening T. Scaffolding for Success in Problem-Based Learning. Med Educ Online 1998;3,3.
- 4. Muller JH, Jain S, Loeser H, Irby DM. Lessons learned about integrating a medical school curriculum: perceptions of students, faculty and curriculum leaders. Med Educ 2008;42:778-85.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jlrowen@illinois.edu]

Building An Innovative Curricular Intervention for Addiction Medicine Certification

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Geraud Plantegenest, Spectrum Health Medical Group
Cara Poland, Spectrum Health Medical Group
Kelly Strutz, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine
Lia Bennett, Spectrum Health Medical Group
Mark Greenwald, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Candace Heeringa, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine
Heather Bunker, Spectrum Health Medical Group

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To develop a collaborative curricular intervention program that provides online training to physicians seeking board certification in the specialty of Addiction Medicine (ADM).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

By 2020, conservative estimates indicate a need for 7,500 full-time certified addiction medicine physicians to meet public health demands nationwide. There is a clear and present need for more highly trained physicians to meet demand for prevention and treatment services that directly addresses the addiction crisis.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The Michigan Collaborative Addiction Resources and Education System (MI CARES) was developed to educate providers on how to enter the specialty of Addiction Medicine (ADM) certification. A comprehensive curriculum of 25 addiction medicine core modules are being developed for the program. An elearning software (Articulate 360) was chosen as the preferred platform for module design and delivery.

Outcomes:

Anecdotal data collected since Spring 2019 from 47 registered participants indicate that a majority of participants are Family Physicians. While it is favorable that our program has been able to cast a wide net over primary care (n=23), we have also experienced increased participation (n=24) from Internal Medicine, Emergency Medicine, and OB/GYN physicians. Participants's age demographic ranges between 25-44 (49%). This is great news, as a younger generation of physicians can enhance a long-term sustainable workforce.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

MI CARES integrates online modules with free CME, formative and summative assessments, group discussions and communications. A limitation is that some areas of the program require dedicated staff time to help participants navigate some of the most difficult sections of the certification process.

References:

Miller, S. C., Fiellin, D. A., Rosenthal, R. N., & Saitz, R. (2019). The ASAM principles of addiction medicine. Philadelphia: Wolters Kluwer.

Scholl L, Seth P, Kariisa M, Wilson N, Baldwin G. (2019) Drug and Opioid-Involved Overdose Deaths — United States, 2013–2017. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep 2019; 67:1419–1427. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm675152e1 Judy McKimm & Paul Kneath Jones (2018) Twelve tips for applying change models to curriculum design, development and delivery, Medical Teacher, 40:5, 520-526, DOI: 10.1080/0142159X.2017.1391377

Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (2019). Drug Overdose Deaths in Michigan 2016-2017 [PDF file]. Retrieved from: https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mdhhs/Drug_Overdose_Deaths_MI_2016-2017_649230_7.pdf

For more information about this abstract please contact: [geraud.plantegenest@spectrumhealth.org]

<u>Combining Face to Face and Asynchronous Learning in Pediatrics to Improve</u> Clinical Reasoning in Medical Students

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Robert Riss, Children's Mercy Hospital Angellar Manguvo, University of Missouri- Kansas City Kadriye Lewis, Children's Mercy Hospital Priya Garg, Children's Mercy Hospital Maria Dycoco, Children's Mercy Hospital Brian Burghardt, Children's Mercy hospital

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Students enter the pediatric clerkship with little experience of clinical reasoning. Using differential diagnosis and disease comparison exercises, we created a course which combined patient exposure, face-to-face instruction and asynchronous E-learning. This study evaluated students' perceptions of the course.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Adult learning theory emphasize involving learners in creating goals, furthering knowledge, utilizing intrinsic motivation, and taking responsibility to teach themselves. E-learning provides an avenue for this by allowing flexibility in the content, pace and methodology.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

During inpatient experience, students performed two differential diagnoses exercises based on their patient encounters. They met as a group weekly for 30 minutes and with faculty for face-to-face instruction to review the differential. During the second exercise, students reviewed the differential by themselves in an asynchronous online discussion with a faculty member, utilizing iPads and the iTunes U app. A diseases catalog was created to support them. Students' perceptions of the course were harnessed through focus groups and a survey.

Outcomes:

A total of 59 participated in the course and 23 were enrolled in the study. Seven students participated in the focus group. Students' satisfaction with the course was high. Participants reported the course to be well-organized and relevant to what they needed to learn. Course objectives were mostly rated as "completely accomplished." Slightly lower scores were given on course navigation and direction, and for novelty of content. Three themes emerged from the focus group: perceived benefits; learning preferences; and perceived challenges.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The innovation helped when faculty, time, patient types, and space are limited. A limitation was the challenge of orienting students to the course given that they took the course at different times of the rotation.

References:

Kassirer, J. (2010). Teaching Clinical Reasoning: Case-Based and Coached. Academic Medicine, 85(7), pp.1118-1124.

Bowen, J. (2006). Educational Strategies to Promote Clinical Diagnostic Reasoning. New England Journal of Medicine, 355(21), pp.2217-2225.

Schmidt, H., Norman, G. and Boshuizen, H. (1990). A cognitive perspective on medical expertise. Academic Medicine, 65(10), pp.611-21.

Ryan, R. and Deci, E. (2000). Self-determination theory and the facilitation of intrinsic motivation, social development, and well-being. American Psychologist, 55(1), pp.68-78.

Weinstein A, Pinto-Powell R. Introductory Clinical Reasoning Curriculum. MedEdPORTAL Publications. 2016;12. Doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10370

Vafa, S. and Chico, D. (2013). A needs assessment for mobile technology use in medical education. International Journal of Medical Education, 4, pp.230-235.

Roberts, D., Newman, L. and Schwartzstein, R. (2012). Twelve tips for facilitating Millennials' learning. Medical Teacher, 34(4), pp.274-278.

Han, H., Nelson, E. and Wetter, N. (2014). Medical students' online learning technology needs. The Clinical Teacher, 11(1), pp.15-19.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [manguvoa@umkc.edu]

Common Language and Share Experience: the MCW Common Read Program

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Olivia Davies, Medical College of Wisconsin Sehr Khan, Medical College of Wisconsin Gerilyn Olsen, Medical College of Wisconsin Zoe Bartynski, Medical College of Wisconsin Sarah Benett, Medical College of Wisconsin David Cipriano, Medical College of Wisconsin Arthur Derse, Medical College of Wisconsin Kathlyn Fletcher, Medical College of Wisconsin Scott Lamm, Medical College of Wisconsin Sophia Lindekugel, Medical College of Wisconsin Ashley Ng, Medical College of Wisconsin Wendy Peltier, Medical College of Wisconsin Elizabeth Suelzer, Medical College of Wisconsin Kim Tyler, Medical College of Wisconsin Catherine Ferguson, Medical College of Wisconsin Martin Muntz, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Healthcare delivery requires collaboration of multiple disciplines, usually under significant stress. ¹⁻⁴ This leads to lack of connection between colleagues and between the provider and patient. We implemented a Common Read program that provided a forum for learners, faculty, nurses and allied providers to reflect on a reading that highlights fractures in our healthcare system.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Students, faculty, and staff organized to launch a Common Read program with the following goals:

- 1) Engage the community in a shared experience
- 2) Promote robust discussions
- 3) Provide a starting point for building connections
- 4) Equip readers with skills to approach the world with cultural humility and curiosity

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The committee garnered support from the Dean's office and the Kern Institute, which funded copies of the 2019 book for all first-year medical students and a visit from the author. Subcommittees directed the creation of a logo, website, social media presence, and book discussions (virtual and in-person).

Outcomes:

Momentum and 'buzz' around the program led to the involvement of residency programs,

multiple departments, and other groups outside of the medical school. In-person discussions had a combined 110 participants. A 12-week Twitter book club garnered 3,866 engagements; our Twitter and Instagram accounts attracted 618 followers. The 2019 Common Read selection was checked out from the medical school library 102 times. Over thirty unique book recommendations were submitted for the 2020 Common Read.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Strengths include student leadership, faculty buy-in, student-designed branding, engagement of the larger medical education community through social media, and a sense of community ownership. Growth opportunities include expansion to regional campuses and health system engagement.

References:

- 1. Koinis A, Giannou V, Drantaki V, Angelaina S, Stratou E, Saridi M. The Impact of Healthcare Workers Job Environment on Their Mental-emotional Health. Coping Strategies: The Case of a Local General Hospital. Health Psychol Res. 2015;3(1):1984. 2. Wilkes C, Lewis T, Brager N, et al. Wellbeing and mental health amongst medical students in Canada. Int Rev Psychiatry. 2019:1-4.
- 3. Rothenberger DA. Physician Burnout and Well-Being: A Systematic Review and Framework for Action. Dis Colon Rectum. 2017;60(6):567-576.
- 4. West CP, Dyrbye LN, Erwin PJ, Shanafelt TD. Interventions to prevent and reduce physician burnout: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Lancet (London, England). 2016;388(10057):2272-2281.
- 5. Evans M. Reflections on the humanities in medical education. Med Educ. 2002;36(6):508-513.
- 6. Wachtler C, Lundin S, Troein M. Humanities for medical students? A qualitative study of a medical humanities curriculum in a medical school program. BMC medical education. 2006;6:16.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [odavies@mcw.edu]

Count Me In! Reporting and Rewarding Faculty Development Activities

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Heather Billings, Mayo Clinic College of Medicine and Science Angela Sargent, Mayo Clinic College of Medicine and Science

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We created a collection of faculty development resources which can be reviewed asynchronously or in small groups, are disseminated through a web-based learning hub and engagement analytics are collected to inform program improvements and growth.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Faculty development has typically been provided through in person sessions, where documentation of participation could be done in the moment ¹. With busier clinical practices, less discretionary time, and competing priorities our health professions educators need faculty development resources which can be reviewed asynchronously and accessed whenever works best for them³. Documentation of completion is often only feasible through a laborious preaccess login process, which for required learning is tolerated but for discretionary faculty development is one obstacle too many^{2,4}.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We compiled a learning hub requirements document, benchmarked external practices, enlisted a diverse group of stakeholders, piloted several platforms, and collected usability, feasibility and outcomes data.

Outcomes:

Transition from episodic, in person, administratively burdensome, and time consuming faculty development programming to easily accessible, micro-learning, multi-modal, individualized faculty development career pathways. Engagement data is visualized through personal dashboards, used for accreditation documentation, to recognize and reward the contribution of our educators, and contributes to the impact assessment of faculty development on the learning environment.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

There is a widening gap between how we have traditionally delivered faculty development programming and how our chronically overloaded health professions educators need to be able to access, review and complete it. The creation of a catalog of e-learning materials and resources necessitated a novel web-based delivery and reporting system that allowed faculty to easily access, review and document completion of small snippets of development materials.

References:

- 1. Bland CJ, Schmitz CC, Stritter FT, Henry RC, Aluise JJ, editors. 1990. Successful faculty in academic medicine: essential skills and how to acquire them. New York: Springer.
- 2. Steinert Y, Macdonald ME, Boillat M, Elizov M, Meterissian S, Razak S, Ouellet MN, and McLeod P. Faculty development: if you build it, they will come Medical Education 2010: 44: 900–907

For more information about this abstract please contact: [billings.heather@mayo.edu]

^{3.} Steinert Y, Mann K, Anderson B, Barnett BM, Centeno A, Naismith L, Prideaux D, Spencer J, Tullo E, Viggiano T, Ward H & Dolmans D (2016): A systematic review of faculty development initiatives designed to enhance teaching effectiveness: A 10-year update: BEME Guide No. 40, Medical Teacher, DOI: 10.1080/0142159X.2016.1181851

 $^{4.\} McLeod\ PJ, McLeod\ A.\ If\ formal\ CME\ is\ ineffective,\ why\ do\ physicians\ still\ participate?\ Med\ Teach\ 2004;\ 26:184-6.$

<u>Creating Opportunities to Provide Health Systems Science, Communication, Ethics and Wellness Content during Clerkship Training</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jennifer Schwartz, Indiana University Kenneth Lazarus, Indiana University School of Medicine Laura Hinkle, Indiana University School of Medicine Bradley Allen, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The practice of medicine today requires an understanding of Health Systems Science (HSS), the ability to self-reflect and prevent burnout, to consider ethical perspectives, and to communicate effectively with patients in complex situations. We designed a curriculum to be administered during the clerkship phase of training within a multi-campus system.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The largest medical school in the nation, Indiana University School of Medicine (IUSM) has a 9 campus system with 364 students participating in eight clerkships in the third year. HSS includes topics related to improved healthcare delivery for patients and populations. HSS content delivery during clinical experiences is difficult to provide when students are distributed across different clerkships and multiple clinical locations statewide.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

IUSM developed 9 Intersession days interspersed between clerkship rotations to target these needs. Small group activities were designed to address three areas: Behavioral Health and Communication, Medical Ethics and Wellness, and Population Health/Community Health Improvement. Sessions focused on complex patient and interprofessional interactions, reflective practice and a community health improvement project (CHIP) addressing a health priority of the Indiana State Department of Health. Students participated in mentored small groups and ultimately produced a mini-grant project for their identified CHIP.

Outcomes:

Student evaluations indicated student satisfaction with their peer and faculty interactions and noted improved abilities to discuss difficult topics with their patients and caregivers. Improved patient and self advocacy was also shown. Students had mixed feelings regarding the virtual nature of CHIP rather than direct community involvement.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This longitudinal course addressed several key curricular needs of today's physicians in training and was accomplished within a complex multi-campus system. While students report improved comprehension and readiness, further investigations will be required to examine the long-term impact.

References:
Cheifetz CE, McOwen KS, Gagne P, Wong JL. Regional medical campuses: a new classification system. Acad Med. 2014;89:1140–1143. Gonzalo JD, Ogrinc G, Health Systems Science. Academic Medicine. 2019;94(10):1425–1432.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jeschwar@iu.edu]

Demystifying the OSCE

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Casey Leitwein, Ohio State University
Todd Lash, Ohio State University College of Medicine
Christin Thatcher, Ohio State University College of Medicine
Michael Horgan, Ohio State University College of Medicine
Laura Begue, Ohio State University College of Medicine
Douglas Danforth, The Ohio State University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Does an orientation and practice scenario help students alleviate anxiety, feel more prepared, and have a better understanding before their first graded OSCE?

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Few students have prior experience with the OSCE model of assessment. Entering an unknown environment to be assessed by interacting with a stranger portraying a patient can be daunting, and may lead to misunderstandings regarding scoring and the role of standardized patients (SPs). Increased anxiety can negatively impact performance on early learners' high-stakes assessments. This activity introduced students to the role of the SP, the relationship between student instructions and the rater checklist, and the exam environment.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Students were provided information about how SPs are trained to answer questions, wait for appropriate follow-up questions, and how items in the case correlate to the curriculum. They received a case template used for SP training, followed by an actual scenario. Students rotated roles as physician, patient, and observer/rater. The arrangement allowed for low-stakes practice and feedback in the genuine assessment environment.

Outcomes:

Students evaluated the experience, including an overall rating and open-ended comments. Results were aggregated and analyzed for common themes. Students felt that the session was a good introduction to the OSCE process, provided experience with the environment, and helped them to feel more relaxed and prepared.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Allowing students to model each role in the OSCE gave them a deeper appreciation for the assessment which helped alleviate anxiety during their initial graded OSCE. It also focused their learning on essential elements such as asking open-ended questions at the beginning of the encounter. A limitation was the complexity of coordinating the different roles for >200 students.

References:

Harden, R M; Stevenson, M; Downie, W W; Wilson, G M (1975). "Assessment of clinical competence using objective structured examination". BMJ. 1 (5955): 447–451. doi:10.1136/bmj.1.5955.447. PMC 1672423.

Objective structured clinical examinations [electronic resource]: 10 steps to planning and implementing OSCEs and other standardized patient exercises / Sondra Zabar ... [et al.], New York: Springer Science + Business Media, c2013 Coaching standardized patients: for use in the assessment of clinical competence / Peggy Wallace New York: Springer Pub., c2007

For more information about this abstract please contact: [doug.danforth@osumc.edu]

<u>Development of Behavior Anchored Rating Scales and rater training for assessment of faculty's teaching skills</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

J.M.Monica van de Ridder, Michigan State University - Spectrum Health Shan Abbas, Michigan State University - Spectrum Health Bhawana Aurora, Michigan State University - Spectrum Health

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To create a reliable and valid checklists for rating Objective Structured Teaching Evaluations (OSTE).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In 2017 Michigan State University and Spectrum Health created a faculty development program to empower physicians to be more effective teachers for residents and medical students. The highlight of the program is a three station videotaped OSTE where faculty are assessed on their teaching skills in a)Direct Observation, b)Giving Feedback, and, c)Clinical Skills Teaching. Standardized checklists are used for observation and feedback. How do we ensure that the rater checklists are reliable and valid and that the given feedback is credible?

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Three course facilitators developed three Behavior Anchored Rating Scale (BARS) rubrics for the OSTE stations, similar to the principles used to develop the Milestones. Each rubric consists of five content-specific domains, and one overall performance domain, and four different learner levels (Novice, Intermediate, Advanced, Superior). A 2.5 hour rating course was offered to help raters familiarize with the new rubrics. Raters were asked to watch OSTE video's and to rate simultaneously.

Outcomes:

The course was attended by five raters. They commented that the new rubric took away biases, helped them to evaluate behaviors more objectively, and, was a good reminder to pay attention to all aspects of the behavior. The raters pointed out problems in the wording and areas that should be better represented in the rubric, hence further improving the rubric.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The process of developing a BARS rubric, offering it as a training, and evaluating it after using it in practice increases the trust in the instrument's validity and reliability, and it should improve the quality of the feedback content. Data analysis of the quality of the feedback has not been performed yet.

References:

Hsieh MC, Chen TY. Promoting innovation in the objective structured teaching examination and feedback: clustering teachers to aid teaching evaluation. Medical education online. 2019 Jan 1;24(1):1620544.

Fakhouri Filho SA, Nunes MD. Objective structured teaching examination (OSTE): an underused tool developed to assess clinical teaching skills. A narrative review of the literature. Sao Paulo Medical Journal. 2019(AHEAD).

Martin-Raugh M, Tannenbaum RJ, Tocci CM, Reese C. Behaviorally anchored rating scales: An application for evaluating teaching practice. Teaching and Teacher Education. 2016 Oct 1;59:414-9.

Debnath SC, Lee BB, Tandon S. Fifty years and going strong: What makes Behaviorally Anchored Rating Scales so perennial as an appraisal method?. International Journal of Business and Social Science. 2015 Feb 1;6(2).

For more information about this abstract please contact: [vanderid@msu.edu]

Development of parallel exams for medical school curricula

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Michael Horgan, Ohio State University College of Medicine Katie Santel, Ohio State University College of Medicine Casey Leitwein, Ohio State University Christin Thatcher, Ohio State University College of Medicine Laura Begue, Ohio State University College of Medicine Douglas Danforth, The Ohio State University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To develop a streamlined process for creating equivalent final exams for a medical school curriculum.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Many schools assess Medical Knowledge using in-house developed multiple choice exams. A challenge with such exams arises when students fail the exam and need to remediate, as remediation exams may be inadequately validated since relatively few students take them. To address this, we developed equivalent final exams that were comparable in difficulty and validation characteristics.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Starting in 2016, we asked each block leader in Med 1-2 to develop equivalent final exams. The goal was to assess all learning objectives equally on each exam, and have both versions be comparable with respect to length, difficulty, and comprehensiveness. Using ExsamSoft, each question is tagged with author and objective covered. Questions were assigned to Exam A or B based on objective assessed, previous use (final or remediation exam), and difficulty. In addition, question "enemies" were identified that were similar questions covering the same objectives. Enemies were assigned to opposite versions of the exam. After initial assignment, questions were moved to balance exam characteristics, while ensuring that equal objective coverage was maintained.

Outcomes:

Students were assigned randomly to take Exam A or Exam B. Approximately 800 final exams (400 each Exam A and B) have been administered over the eight blocks in Med 1-2. The overall average of Exam A was 84.96 and Exam B was 84.92, and the average difference in means was 1.58.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Creating equivalent final exams provides for a readily available remediation exam that has been validated with respect to difficulty and comprehensiveness ensuring that remediation exams are fair and robust.

References:

LSI Framework | Ohio State College of Medicine. (2019). Medicine.osu.edu. Retrieved 31 October 2019, from https://medicine.osu.edu/education/md/curriculum/lsi-framework

Types of Medical School Exams - Kaplan Test Prep. (2019). Kaplan Test Prep. Retrieved 31 October 2019, from https://www.kaptest.com/study/usmle/types-of-medical-school-exams/

For more information about this abstract please contact: [doug.danforth@osumc.edu]

Engaging the Hidden Curriculum: A Pilot Intervention Using the Anatomy Lab to Teach Ethics & Professionalism

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Joy Balta, The Ohio State University Courtney Thiele, The Ohio State University Ashley Fernandes, The Ohio State University

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To create a reflective ethics and professionalism teaching intervention for medical students helping process the experience of their first anatomy lab.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Anatomists contend students learn more than just anatomy from their experience in the dissection lab. Through the hidden curriculum, students are introduced to the emotional and cognitive aspects of death along with behavioral professional skills¹. While the LCME emphasizes ethics and professionalism in medical education, there is a lack of robust pedagogical integration between anatomy and bioethics^{2,3}.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A three-part, voluntary integrated ethics and professionalism session was created as part of first year anatomy: 1) pre-lab online module; 2) first dissection; 3) face-to-face session. Students completed a pre- and post-session survey assessing their cognitive and affective readiness, along with awareness of the associated ethical and professional components of the cadaver experience. Online, students learned the benefits, regulations/policies, and ethical/professional obligations in anatomy lab. The face-to-face session included small group ethics case discussion, and debriefing their first cadaver dissection experience. Students were also encouraged to submit a personal narrative as part of their reflective portfolio.

Outcomes:

Participation was 57% (n= 119). The percentage of students being both "intellectually prepared" and "emotionally prepared" for the anatomical experience increased significantly. Quantitative assessment showed 5-point Likert scale scores above 4 in all categories assessed. Qualitative comments reflected satisfaction with grasping professional duties and better cognitive and emotional preparation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our intervention was strengthened by its interactive, reflective, and multi-modal approach, and adds to the scant anatomy-ethics integration in the literature. Limitations included: lack of prior data, curricular time allocation, and the voluntary nature of the pilot.

References:

References

1. Marks SC Jr, Bertman SL, Penney JC. 1997. Human anatomy: A foundation for education about death and dying in medicine. Clin Anat 10: 118–122.

- 2. Sephens GC, Rees CE, Lazarus MD. 2019. How does donor dissection influence medical students' perceptions of ethics? A cross-sectional and longitudinal qualitative study. Anat Sci Educ 12:332–348.
- 3. Carrese JA, Malek J, Watson K, et al. The essential role of medical ethics education in achieving professionalism: The Romanell report. Acad Med. $2015;90\ 744-752$

For more information about this abstract please contact: [joy.balta@osumc.edu]

Evaluation of a Virtual Reality Task to Educate Undergraduate Medical Students on Peripheral and Collateral Circulation in Cardiology

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract

Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Roberto Galvez, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign Robert Wallon, Carle Illinois College of Medicine

Laura Shackelford, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Jennifer Amos, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois College of Medicine Judith Rowen, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This presentation reports our experience and evaluation of a case-centered VR task enabling students to develop a 3-dimensional understanding of peripheral and collateral circulation, concepts not easily understood from 2-dimensional images.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

There is growing interest in utilizing virtual reality (VR) in Undergraduate Medical Education¹. As with any new educational tool, it is important to investigate the most effective uses of VR.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Groups of four students, given access to computers running the VR version of Organon (a commercially available anatomy program) and Vive headsets (commercially available VR hardware), were presented with a clinical case of a patient exhibiting symptoms of aortic coarctation. They were then asked to complete the following tasks: 1) propose the most likely diagnosis; and 2) using VR, diagram the most likely route for blood flow around pre- or postductal coarctation. Students were also asked to complete a satisfaction survey and participate in a focus group discussion. Finally, students were assessed on this content in weekly NBME-style quizzes.

Outcomes:

Students achieved 96% correct on quiz questions. Nineteen students completed the survey and 3 participated in the focus group. Students had an overall positive opinion of the activity and survey responses exhibited a high correlation between its effectiveness and their intent of using VR for independent study (R=0.7). Interestingly, VR ease of use did not strongly correlate with activity effectiveness (R=0.3) or using VR for independent study (R=0.4). Additional correlational and focus group data will be provided.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A theme from open-ended survey responses indicated that a strength was framing the VR task around a clinical scenario. Another theme highlighted students' perceived limitations related to features of the software.

References:

1. Breining G. Future or fad? Virtual Reality in Medical Education. AAMC News website. https://news.aamc.org/medical-education/article/future-or-fad-virtual-reality-medical-education/. August 28, 2019. Accessed August 29, 2019

For more information about this abstract please contact: [rgalvez@illinois.edu]

<u>Faculty Evaluation Toolkit for Program Directors: Complying with new ACGME requirements</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jessica Greenfield, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Lori Smith, Cleveland Clinic Krista Lombardo-Klefos, Cleveland Clinic

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We propose an easy access template for residency program directors (PDs) to comply with new ACGME annual faculty evaluation requirement.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The ACGME announced a new 2019 regulation requiring annual evaluation of all program faculty. Our institution oversees 89 ACGME-accredited programs over several sites and opted to provide a standardized evaluation template for PDs. We piloted an evaluation dashboard on our digital management system where all of the suggested templates are available to achieve the following goals: (1) reduce time and technical expertise required to comply and (2) incorporate best practices for evaluation across the enterprise.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Initially developed by the PD of the Pathology and Laboratory Medicine Residency Program, a fellow in Medical Education worked with the GME Administrative Director and Accreditation Administrator to create a series of templates. The first draft included an introductory letter, instructions for collecting didactic reports and resident completion reports, and a resource page advertising faculty development opportunities. Meanwhile, our institution rolled out a new digital management platform for this initiative, where we worked with the Director of Technical and Educational Resources to automate processes for PDs and auto-populate templates where possible to encourage inclusion of those items to comply with best practices.

Outcomes:

We worked with our technology specialists to create a dashboard and user friendly interface on a new digital platform with two goals: (1) increase ease of access for PDs and evaluated faculty and (2) incorporate best practices enterprise-wide.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We provide a template for our 89 programs to demonstrate compliance with ACGME requirements and foster standardization across programs. We report lessons learned, including how to design an institutional data management platform and communicate with IT personnel to tailor reports.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: [greenfj@ccf.org]

<u>First Impressions Matter: A WARM Welcome to Clinical Clerkships and Communities in Rural Wisconsin</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Paul Hunter, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Joseph Holt, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Alison Klein, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Christie Seibert, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Students in the Wisconsin Academy of Rural Medicine (WARM)^{1,2} at the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health (UWSMPH) relocate from the central academic campus to one of three community-based, regional campuses for clinical training. To better prepare students to live and work in rural Wisconsin, a week-long curriculum that included small group, experiential, and reflective activities was created.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

There has been significant efforts to create more rural physicians and it is recommended that programs "be intentional" in rural preparation of learners³.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

22 students completed the curriculum designed to introduce them to their regional community and health system, analyze epidemiological data regarding their region's health status, identify community assets, and strengthen cohort identity. Teaching methods included short lectures, small group discussion, rural community asset mapping, collaborative student presentations, autobiographical story-telling and self-reflection.

Outcomes:

Effectiveness was evaluated through a post-event online survey that 86% of students completed. The event's mean effectiveness rating was 3.7 on a 1-5 scale, with 100% of respondents giving it one of the highest three ratings: 3=Good (37%), 4=Very Good (58%) or 5=Outstanding (5%). It was rated most effective at "Helping you feel connected to the WARM learning community" (M=4.7), "Providing a useful introduction to your regional training site's community" (M=4.5) and "Familiarizing you with community and health system assets that promote rural health" (M=4.1).

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A 4-day interactive curriculum which highlighted rural community-based activities was successful in meetings its objectives. Results are limited by evaluation of student perception only. Clear central support as well as strong relationships with regional sites were keys to success.

References:

1. Wisconsin Academy of Rural Medicine (WARM) www.med.wisc.edu/education/md-program/warm/

2. Crouse BJ. Wisconsin Academy for Rural Medicine: An Initiative to Increase Physician Workforce in Rural Wisconsin. Virtual Mentor. 2011;13(5):287-290. doi: 10.1001/virtualmentor.2011.13.5.medu1-1105. https://journalofethics.ama-assn.org/article/wisconsin-academy-rural-medicine-initiative-increase-physician-workforce-rural-wisconsin/2011-05 3. Thach SB et al. Cultivating Country Doctors: Preparing Learners for Rural Life and Community Leadership. Family Medicine. 2018;50(9): 685-9.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [cseibert@wisc.edu]

Following Up with Alumni 10 Years Post-Medical School Graduation

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Jessica Greenfield, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine S. Beth Bierer, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Many schools with scholarly concentrations or research curricula struggle with how to follow up with graduates to determine if unique missions were achieved. We report on our approach to examine the impact of our research-focused curriculum for graduates 10 years post medical school graduation.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

We began this journey five years ago by meeting with stakeholders throughout the institution to define key questions we should consider for a longitudinal follow-up with graduates, whom we hope will become physician investigators given the medical school's mission. We used Social Cognitive Career Theory and Self Determination Theory as the conceptual frameworks for our inquiry. We purposefully decided to not initiate follow up with our graduates until 10 years given the literature¹. To our knowledge, very few institutions collect information at the ten-year mark.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

This project represents the ongoing longitudinal outcomes of the CCLCM program. At this stage, a task force key stakeholders representing faculty, educational leaders, and alumni met todevelop domains, questions, and collection methods. Sample questionnaires were pre-piloted and RedCap was ultimately selected. Several rounds of revision occurred at the task force level before three rounds with pertinent stakeholders. Our institutional IRB approved an amendment to our existing data registry and we sent personalized invitations to graduates. Then, this was piloted.

Outcomes:

We learned that it was feasible to follow up with graduates ten year post graduation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We will revise annually collect information at the 10-year mark for graduates. Limitations include a small class size and the existence of a data registry. Others may need to create a data storage plan in conjunction with the questionnaire. Additionally, updated contact information is required to request participation with the follow-up. Finally, participation may vary widely.

References:

1 Dorothy A. Andriole & Donna B. Jeffe (2016) Predictors of full-time faculty appointment among MD–PhD program graduates: a national cohort study, Medical Education Online, 21:1, DOI: 10.3402/meo.v21.30941

For more information about this abstract please contact: [greenfj@ccf.org]

Health Advocacy Projects for Community Engagement

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Mark Beamsley, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Stephen Bagwell, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Parvathy Pillai, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Joe Orman, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Shobhina Chheda, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Health Advocacy Projects ("HAPs") address two main Health Advocacy curricular and institutional goals:

- Increase medical student skills related to community partner outreach
- Develop health advocacy projects that are tightly aligned with community partner goals

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Students report a lack of skills necessary to develop partnerships with community stakeholders in Health Advocacy work and also identify a strong preference for self-determining advocacy topics. Community partners request that student projects complement their priorities.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In the pre-clinical 3 semesters, there are 15 hours of advocacy curriculum. The HAP is part of a required clinical rotation. The HAPs allow students to identify a topic and community partner, and require students to arrange meetings with the partner to identify shared goals and a project. Projects must be driven by community partner goals and needs. By the end of the rotation, students deliver the project, write a summary paper, and complete an evaluation. Community partners submit qualitative formative feedback.

Outcomes:

After 7 cycles (through Sept 2019), 286 HAP projects have been completed with more than 125 different organizations.

Learner Outcomes:

- 63.0% of students in 2019 report their likelihood of "Doing Health Advocacy Work in the Future" is "Somewhat Increased" or "Significantly Increased."
- 48.1% of students report their "Comfort Level with Health Advocacy Work" is Increased a "Fair Amount" or "Increased a Great Deal."

Partner Outcomes (% of received responses):

- 98.6% were pleased with student work
- 85.2% were willing to host future students

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The HAP allows for independence, which has been identified by students as a motivator for their engagement. Additionally, the HAP requires a limited amount of time and can conveniently fit

into a busy clinical rotation. Student independence and depth of project engagement rely on a robust Advocacy curriculum prior to this.

References: N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: [mark.beamsley@uwmf.wisc.edu]

<u>Improving Spanish-Speaking Performance Utilizing Standardized Patients in the Peer-Led Medical Spanish Program (PLMSP)</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jeanine Justiniano, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Brianna Martinez, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Meaghan O'Hara, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Vanessa Palomares, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Emily Bacalao, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Lucia Garcia, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Amy Blair, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

A Spanish Standardized Patient Exercise was recently implemented to prepare students for future patient encounters. This study aimed to assess student knowledge, language skills, and self-reported comfortability in Spanish-speaking patient encounters.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

According to the 2010 US Census, Hispanics constitute 18.1% of the nation's total population, a number that is expected to rise 28% by 2060. In 2009, our medical school developed a year long Peer-Led Medical Spanish Program (PLMSP) to address the emerging need for culturally competent Spanish-speaking providers practicing global health locally and abroad.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Data was collected across three assessments: 1. A previously validated Interagency Language Roundtable (ILR) Comfortability scale administered throughout the year-long curriculum. 2. A Standardized Patient (SP) exercise administered at program end, including a checklist of 12 questions commonly asked when taking a patient history. 3. A student performance evaluation. Ninety first year medical students participated in this study.

Outcomes:

Findings showed 54.4% of students reporting improved ability to communicate effectively in most encounters by curriculum end. Average completion score among participants in the HPI checklist was 10.8/12 (90%), and average rating from the SP evaluation was 7.12/9 (very good performance). Findings suggest the effectiveness of the SP exercise in preparing students for patient encounters in Spanish. Students were able to complete a full history in Spanish that medical students are expected to complete in English.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This PLMSP has the potential to impact both local patient encounters and short-term international health experiences with Spanish-speaking populations. Some limitations included medical student retention throughout the year long curriculum and difficulty finding standardized patient actors. Although not all students conclude this program with proficient skills, the impact

on improving cross-cultural communication is far-reaching to all limited-English proficiency patients.

References:

1. "Hispanic Heritage Month 2018." United States Census Bureau, 13 Sept. 2018, www.census.gov/newsroom/facts-for-features/2018/hispanic-heritage-month.html.

https://www.census.gov/newsroom/facts-for-features/2018/hispanic-heritage-month.html

- 2. Fernandez, A., Schillinger, D., Grumbach, K.,Rosenthal, A., Stewart, A., Wang, F., Perez-Stable, E. (2004). Physician language ability and cultural competence. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 19(2), 167-174. https://www-ncbi-nlm-nih-gov.archer.luhs.org/pmc/articles/PMC1492135/
- 3. "Medical Spanish Program." Loyola University Chicago Health Sciences Division, 2018, ssom.luc.edu/medspanish/. https://ssom.luc.edu/medspanish/
- 4. Ortega, P., Park, Y. S., & Girotti, J. A. (2017). Evaluation of a Medical Spanish Elective for Senior Medical Students: Improving Outcomes through OSCE Assessments. Medical science educator, 27(2), 329-337. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5998671/
- 5. Karol J. Hardin & D. Mike Hardin Jr. (2013) Medical Spanish Programs in the United States: A Critical Review of Published Studies and a Proposal of Best Practices, Teaching and Learning in Medicine, 25:4, 306-311, DOI: 10.1080/10401334.2013.827974

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/24112199

- 6. Morales, R., Rodriguez, L., Singh, A., Stratta, E., Mendoza, L., Valerio, M. A., & Vela, M. (2015). National Survey of Medical Spanish Curriculum in U.S. Medical Schools. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 30(10), 1434-9. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/25862190
- 7. Reuland, D., Frasier, P., Slatt, L., Alemán, M. (2008). Journal of General Internal Medicine, 7, 1033-1037. https://www-ncbi-nlm-nih-gov.archer.luhs.org/pmc/articles/PMC2517929/

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jjustiniano@luc.edu]

<u>Improving the quality of collaborative learning with a student survey of technical skills</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Eliot Bethke, Carle Illinois College of Medicine Robert Wallon, Carle Illinois College of Medicine Judith Rowen, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois College of Medicine Jennifer Amos, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

With increased focus on technology in medicine¹, there exists a challenge to create effective technology and innovation sessions for medical students with varied backgrounds. The Carle Illinois College of Medicine focuses on integrating engineering into medicine and has developed the Self Evaluation of Technical Skills survey (SETS) to improve its Medical Engineering, Design, and Innovation (MEDI) sessions.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Traditional engineering pedagogies such as lectures and labs are challenging to transfer to medical education due to limitations of time and prerequisite knowledge. Employing active, collaborative approaches can leverage individual competencies to benefit the group².

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Three computer languages (R, Python, MATLAB) and one general skill (digital modeling) were identified as having repeated coverage in the Carle Illinois preclinical curriculum. SETS asked students to report prior experience with each computer language, digital modeling tools, and degree of recognition from relevant code samples. There was one free response question regarding personal interests. Students had four weeks to complete SETS online through Qualtrics; response rate was 100% (n=32).

Outcomes:

Data from SETS was used to group students by reported technical skill level (S1=None to S5=High) which informed cohort design for MEDI sessions.

	S1	S2	S3	S4	S5
R	15	7	7	3	0
MATLAB	1	3	10	7	11
Python	8	6	11	5	2
CAD	9	5	7	8	3

There was minimal troubleshooting and support for sessions grouped this way, and student satisfaction increased over prior years where groups were not stratified by experience.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

SETS was easily deployed, requiring a reasonable median time of 6.56 minutes to complete (one outlier removed). The data are self-reported, so likely contains multiple biases. However, candid responses are reasonably expected with low stakes involved.

References:

- 1. Rittenhouse, D., Ramsay, P., Casalino, L., McClellan, S., Kandel, Z. and Shortell, S. (2017). Increased Health Information Technology Adoption and Use Among Small Primary Care Physician Practices Over Time: A National Cohort Study. The Annals of Family Medicine, 15(1), pp.56-62.
- 2. Koles, P., Stolfi, A., Borges, N., Nelson, S. and Parmelee, D. (2010). The Impact of Team-Based Learning on Medical Students' Academic Performance. Academic Medicine, 85(11), pp.1739-1745.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [bethke2@illinois.edu]

Interprofessional Practice: Collaborating to Educate Resident Physicians

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Robert Nolan, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Anna Volerman, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Julie Oyler, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The objective was to empower primary care clinic nursing staff as educators for resident physicians to strengthen residents' knowledge of and attitudes toward interprofessional practice.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Interprofessional care leads to improved patient outcomes and increased physician and staff satisfaction^{1,2,3}. Thus, it is essential for trainee physicians to learn foundational skills necessary to work within interprofessional teams. Recent studies have highlighted that interprofessional education could be beneficial for the residents' ability to participate in and lead these teams^{4,5}.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Kern's model for curriculum development was applied. Curriculum content was designed based on ACGME Milestones for Interpersonal Skills and Communication and Interprofessional Collaborative Practice Core Competencies. The curriculum consisted of two 1-hour seminars for first-year Internal Medicine residents. Seminars consisted of a combination of active and case-based learning and were led by a physician and various nursing staff from the clinic. The first seminar introduced interprofessional practice and effective teamwork through an activity and discussion, and the second seminar utilized real-life cases to guide discussion about roles, responsibilities, and collaboration.

Outcomes:

A total of 120 first-year residents participated from 2015-2018. The majority of residents identified the seminars were beneficial to better understand roles (87%), communication (85%), and interprofessional practice (84%). After this training, most residents (85%) indicated they would like additional training about working effectively within interprofessional teams in graduate medical education.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

One strength is that nursing staff are incorporated in leading education of residents, from curriculum development and implementation. A strength and limitation is the need to engage interprofessional staff, which demands understanding various clinical structures and partnership with leaders.

References:

- 1. E.L. Wooding, T.C. Gale & V. Maynard (2019) Evaluation of teamwork assessment tools for interprofessional simulation: a systematic literature review, Journal of Interprofessional Care, DOI: 10.1080/13561820.2019.1650730
- 2. Mulligan R, Gilmer-Scott M, Kouchel D, et al. Unintentional weight loss in older adults: a geriatric interprofessional simulation case series for health care providers. MedEdPORTAL.
- 3. Sanders M, Richards D, Panahi L. Interprofessional education (IPE) in a pediatric simulation: case of an infant with fever. MedEdPORTAL. 2013;9:9515. https://doi.org/10.15766/mep_2374-8265.9515
- 4. Nikiforova T, Spagnoletti CL, Rothenberger SD, Jeong K, Hasley PB. Implementation of Case Conferences to Improve Interprofessional Collaboration in Resident Continuity Clinic. South Med Journal. October 2019.
- 5. Borman-Shoap E, King E, Hager K, et al. Essentials of ambulatory care: an interprofessional workshop to promote core skills and values in team-based outpatient care. MedEdPORTAL.
- 6. Black E, Davidson R, Rosenberg E, Winterstein A, Snyder A, McCormack W. An interdisciplinary team-based learning experience in ambulatory patient safety. MedEdPORTAL.
- 7. Karpa K, Pinto C, Possanza A, et al. Stroke simulation activity: a standardized patient case for interprofessional student learning. MedEdPORTAL.
- 8. Willgerodt M, Sonney J, Liner D, Barchet L. The power of a team: using unfolding video cases in interprofessional education for advanced health
- 9. Berrocal Y, Fisher J, Regan J, Christison AL. Dehydration: a multidisciplinary case-based discussion for first-year medical students. MedEdPORTAL.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [robert.nolan3389@gmail.com]

Knowledge Gaps in Patient Discharge

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Asra Khan, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ananya Gangopadhyaya, University of Illinois College of Medicine Yoon Soo Park, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ana Clara Mauro, University of Illinois College of Medicine Susan Doh, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This study examined gaps in medical students knowledge about discharging patients.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Discharging a hospitalized patient is an important activity that interns are expected to perform during residency. Despite this, over 95% of students desire additional training¹. This needs assessment identifies areas that medical students feel they need additional instruction.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

As a part of the fourth-year internal medicine sub internship, medical students (n=58) were asked to complete a pre-questionnaire, which included writing one or more questions they had about the patient discharge process. Through thematic analysis the areas covered by most students regarding their gaps in knowledge of the discharge process were assessed.

Outcomes:

The self reported gaps in knowledge were:

- Logistics of the discharge process
- Role of case managers, social workers
- Responsibilities of physicians, nurses and social workers
- Facilitating communication between nursing, social work and discharge planner
- Providing nursing instructions
- Addressing transportation issues
- Scheduling appointments
- Setting up home health and its criteria
- Indications for patient going to a nursing facility
- Types of nursing facilities and their indications
- Discharge summaries, their length and required elements
- Medication reconciliation process
- How to prevent readmission
- Navigating insurance issues
- Addressing billing questions from patients
- Coordination with primary care provider not in facility
- Providing assistance to patients without insurance
- Providing assistance to incarcerated patients

• Gracefully addressing financial issues

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This needs assessment identifies areas in the patient discharge process that fourth year medical students perceive they need assistance with. It provides a roadmap to develop a curriculum that addresses these needs.

References:

1. Block, L., M. Morgan-Gouveia, W. Kelly, M. Kannarkat, K. C. Chretien and D. Cayea (2015). "Participation of Medical Students in Discharge Tasks: A Needs Assessment." J Am Geriatr Soc 63(10): 2181-2183.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [sreedhar@uic.edu]

<u>Lessons Learned from Implementation of an Asynchronous e-Learning</u> Module in Undergraduate Medical Education

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Adrienne Salentiny, University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences Richard Van Eck, University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In 2017, emergency treatment for anaphylaxis using epinephrine injector systems ("EpiPens") was identified as a curricular need at the University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences. Rather than creating a lecture, the instructional design team advocated for asynchronous e-learning designed using the ADDIE framework¹.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Incorporating new objectives into a medical curriculum is challenging because of scheduling and time constraints². Typical solutions "make room" for new lectures, yet not all learning outcomes require synchronous instruction³. Asynchronous e-learning delivers instruction while minimizing disruption. However, aligning outcomes with asynchronous methods requires skill, as does design, development, and ongoing evaluation.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

An online module was built in Adobe Captivate. Students view content and are asked questions, receiving feedback on their answers. Interactive exercises and case-based activities are included. It concludes with a 25-question exam.

Outcomes:

Students reported spending 20-25 minutes on the material. In comparison to a 1-hour lecture, over 30 cumulative hours of student time were saved per year allowing time for study and supporting work-life balance. Results of post-surveys revealed a preference for online training, but also exposed some actionable changes. Results and trends related to the experiences of over 220 students will be shared.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Asynchronous e-learning minimizes student stress by allowing them to work at their own pace and to integrate learning into their schedules. It creates instructional flexibility without reorganization or compression of existing curricular events. It is not suitable for learning outcomes such as attitudes and motor skills⁴. The technical skill needed by development staff varies depending on several factors.

References:

- 1. Branson RK, Rayner GT, Cox JL, Furman JP, King FJ, Hannum WH: Interservice procedures for instructional systems development. Florida State University Tallahassee Center for Educational Technology. 1975.
- 2. Denson P: Challenges and opportunities facing medical education. Transactions of the American Clinical and Climatological Association. 2011; 122: 48-58.
- 3. Finkelstein, J. Learning in Real Time. Jossey-Bass Guides to Online Teaching and Learning. Jossey-Bass.

4. Gagné, RM, Wager, WW, Golas, KC, Keller, JM: Principles of Instructional Design. 5th Ed. Wadsworth. 2005.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [adrienne.salentiny@med.und.edu]

Measuring Learning without Tests: A Differentiated Approach to Assessment

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Sonal Patel, Wayne State University School of Medicine Simone Brennan, Wayne State University School of Medicine Nakia Allen, Wayne State University School of Medicine Erin Miller, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To provide students with multiple pathways to demonstrate learning through application, self-reflection, active engagement, and visualization.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Active engagement through multiple modalities is a proven means to improve learning and retention. While instructional delivery in medical education is shifting toward more collaborative and engaging structures, assessment strategies remain uniform and limited.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In three separate courses for Year 1 medical learners, innovative assessment strategies were implemented to give students options in how to demonstrate mastery. Formative assessments were used for practice and included an empathy card game and creating a recipe for success. Summative assessments were designed in open-ended formats and paired with competency-based rubrics. Projects included student-designed music, games, videos, artwork, and public service announcements that were displayed in subsequent student exhibitions.

Outcomes:

Differentiated assessments provided learners with multiple means to cognitively process and organize understanding in meaningful ways. Giving students choices in assessments, increased engagement, motivation, and collaboration with peers. The creative outlets provided a broader window into who students were, beyond their academic achievements. Students were excited to share their projects in exhibitions and to extend their work beyond the classroom environment.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Differentiated assessments provide better insight into student thinking compared to traditional, answer-based examinations. Building opportunities for choice, student voice, autonomy, and active engagement in assessment strategies increases motivation and achievement, and leads to deeper learning.

Scoring individual projects for a class size of 300 students is challenging. Finer content details would be difficult to capture in summative projects.

References:

Peter C. Ferguson, Kelly J. Caverzagie, Markku T. Nousiainen, Linda Snell. Changing the culture of medical training: An important step toward the implementation of competency-based medical education. Medical Teacher. 2017, 39(6), 599-602.

Michael J. Friendlander, Linda Andrews, Elizabeth G. Armstrong, Carol Aschenbrenner, Joseph S. Kass, Paul Ogden, Richard Schwartzstein, Thomas R. Viggiano. What can medical education learn from the neurobiology of learning? Academic Medicine. 2011, 86(4), 415-420.

Peter Harris, Farhan Bhanji, Maureen Topps, Shelley Ross, Steven Lieberman, Jason R. Frank. Evolving concepts of assessment in a competency-based world. Medical Teacher. 2017, 39(6), 603-608.

Richard E. Mayer. Applying the science of learning to medical education. Medical Education. 2010, 44, 543-549.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [scpatel@med.wayne.edu]

Moving from Dr. Google® to Dr. Evidence

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Amanda Bell, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Medical students learn in a world where endless information is available by typing a few words into a search engine. As such medical students often struggle to critically appraise the credibility of their information sources used in self-directed learning.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The Liaison Committee on Medical Education standards for accreditation advise medical school faculty to ensure their curricula include self-directed learning experiences that allow students to develop life-long learning. Through this process students must evaluate their own needs, develop questions to research and appraise the credibility of their information sources. Standard 6.3 was recently updated to include facilitator feedback on these skills¹.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The role of Dr. Evidence was designed and added as a student role to problem-based learning (PBL) cases from three systems-based modules in the Foundations curriculum. During the first module, Dr. Evidence is provided faculty-generated background questions and advanced to foreground questions. By the end of the second module, students are generating their own Dr. Evidence foreground questions in groups. Faculty facilitators give students oral feedback on their work and a medical librarian provides written feedback on their Dr. Evidence worksheet, including the credibility of information sources.

Outcomes:

Doctoring students cited the role of Dr. Evidence as key to learning the skills of clinical question generation and independent appraisal of credibility of their information sources.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Dr. Evidence provides a tangible and organized approach to giving each medical student oral and written feedback on their information seeking skills and credibility of information sources. Facilitators give oral feedback within the scheduled session. By utilizing a medical librarian trained in evidence-based practice, additional facilitator time is not required to provide written feedback. Limitations arise without the assistance of a trained medical librarian.

References:

1. Standards, Publications, & Notification Forms: LCME. (n.d.). Retrieved October 30, 2019, from https://lcme.org/publications/.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [amanda.bell@wright.edu]

Oral health education can be successfully integrated into a 3rd year pediatric clerkship

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract

Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Corinne Lehmann, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Jennifer Cully, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Robert Harper, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Rashmi Sahay, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Sarat Thikkurissy, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This study assessed changes in knowledge, skills, and beliefs of third year medical students following completion of an oral health curriculum.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

To decrease the risk of caries, children should have their first dental visit by age one¹⁻³. Children commonly present to primary care before their first dental visit and pediatricians are in a unique position to assess oral health and make recommendations early^{1,4}. Ten percent of medical schools do not offer any instruction about oral health⁵.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

As part of a pediatric clerkship, students completed an oral health module, and then shadowed pediatric dentists once, with students applying fluoride varnish. A pre- and post-curriculum survey captured changes in knowledge, skills, and beliefs regarding oral health.

Outcomes:

For knowledge and skills related questions, there was an improvement (p<0.05) following the curriculum. For beliefs, although not significant, there was a more agreeable response following the curriculum. 94% and 92% of students believed (strongly agree /agree) that the module and dental clinic experience improved their knowledge.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Although other schools have integrated oral health in their programs⁶⁻⁸, it may not be possible for all medical schools. Our study showed that integration of an oral health curriculum into a busy clerkship is possible in a short period of time and is received positively by students, leading to increased knowledge and skills. While at baseline students thought that oral health education was important, the curriculum engendered greater belief that oral health should be integrated into medical education.

References:

- 1. American Academy of Pediatrics, Section on Oral Health. Maintaining and improving the oral health of young children. Pediatrics 2014; 134: 1224. DOI: 10.1542/peds.2014-2984. Originally published online November 24, 2014. Accessed 07/26/2018.
- 2. American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry. Best practice on Perinatal and Infant Oral Health care. Pediatric Dentistry 2017; 39 (6): 208 212.

- 3. American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry. Policy on Early Childhood Caries (ECC): Classifications, Consequences, and Preventive Strategies. Pediatric Dentistry 2017; 39 (6): 59 61.
- 4. Bright Futures/American Academy of Pediatrics. Recommendations for preventive pediatric health care. Updated Feb 2017. https://www.aap.org/en-us/Documents/periodicity_schedule.pdf. Accessed online 06/11/2018.
- 5. Ferullo A, Silk H, Savageau J. Teaching oral health in U.S. medical schools: Results of a national survey. Acad Med 2011; 86: 226-230. Doi:10.1097/ACM0.b013e3182045a51.
- 6. Krisberg K. "Open Wide: Medical Education with Real Teeth." AAMC News. Tuesday 7/3/18. https://news.aamc.org/medical-education/article/open-wide-medical-education-real-teeth/. Accessed 7/6/18.
- 7. Mouradian W et al. A new oral health elective for medical students at the University of Washington. Teaching and Learning in Medicine 2006; 18(4): 336-342. Doi: 10.1207/s15328015tlm1804_11.
- 8. Mouradian W et al. An oral health curriculum for medical students at the University of Washinton. Acad Med 2005; 80: 434-442.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [corinne.lehmann@uc.edu]

<u>Patient Safety Detectives: An Interprofessional Approach to Teaching Students About Root Cause Analysis</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract

Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jamie Hess, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Katherine Rotzenberg, University of Wisconsin School of Pharmacy

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The objectives of this activity are to provide students with an opportunity to explore how medical errors occur, the process for identifying systems issues contributing to an event, and the value of interprofessional perspectives in improving patient safety.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Interprofessional collaboration is increasingly recognized by licensing boards as a critical skill for both pharmacy and medical students^{1,2}. This activity utilizes an innovative approach to learning patient safety, combining an online curriculum with face-to-face interprofessional education focusing on patient safety and incorporating a mock root cause analysis (RCA)³⁻⁵.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Third-year medical students and pharmacy students (~240 total) completed the following:

- Pre-module assessment: Encompassing interprofessional socialization (6) and attitudes towards patient safety (7)
- Online module (30 minutes): Addressed patient safety concepts and interprofessional responsibilities in the context of a medical error
- Face-to-face session (90 minutes): Short video and debrief about the importance of health professional participation in patient safety efforts, followed by mock RCA in interprofessional groups of ~15 students
- Post-module assessment: Same as first assessment plus knowledge check and student feedback

Outcomes:

Each knowledge check question was answered correctly by the majority of students (84-99%). The majority of students agreed that there was value in including other health professions in the activity (92%), the face-to-face session (88%), and the online module (73%). There were no significant differences pre- and post- for interprofessional and patient safety attitudes items, likely due to ceiling effect.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Firsthand facilitator experience with RCA and use of a real-world case were strengths. An area for improvement would be to expand to include other disciplines.

References:

1. Liaison Committee for Medical Education. Functions and structure of a medical school 2019-2020. http://lcme.org/wpcontent/uploads/filebase/standards/2019-20 Functions-and-Structure 2018-09-26.docx. Accessed October 9, 2019.

- 2. Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education. Accreditation standards and key elements for the professional program in pharmacy leading to the doctor of pharmacy degree ("Standards 2016"). https://www.acpeaccredit.org/pdf/Standards2016FINAL.pdf. Accessed October 10, 2019.
- 3. Fowler T, Phillips S, Patel S, Ruggiero K, Ragucci K, Kern D, Stuart G. Virtual interprofessional learning. J Nurs Educ. 2018;57:668-674.
- 4. Thom KA, Heil EL, Croft LD, Duffy A, Morgan DJ, Johantgen M. Advancing interprofessional patient safety education for medical, nursing, and pharmacy learners during clinical rotations. J Interprof Care. 2016;30:819-822.
- 5. Blue AV, Charles L, Howell D, Koutalos Y, Mitcham M, Nappi J, Zoller J. Introducing students to patient safety through an online interprofessional course. Adv Med Educ Pract. 2010;1:107-114.
- 6. King G, Orchard C, Khalili H, Avery L. Refinement of the interprofessional socialization and valuing scale (ISVS-21) and development of 9-item equivalent versions. J Contin Educ Health Prof. 2016;36:171-177.
- 7. Carruthers S, Lawton R, Sandars J, Howe A, Perry M. Attitudes to patient safety amongst medical students and tutors: developing a reliable and valid measure. Med Teach. 2009;31:e370-e376.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jmhess@medicine.wisc.edu]

<u>Pediatrics Physical Exam Experience in Pre Clerkship Years; a Partnership</u> with Local Childcare Center

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Joanna Kuppy, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Elizabeth Van Opstal, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Marylouise Wilkerson, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Hannah Grierson, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Jessica Johnson, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Jessica Johnson, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Adam Weinstein, Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Provide pre-clerkship medical students with experience practicing pediatric physical exam skills.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In one multi-institutional study, 40% of students reported inadequate preparation for pediatric physical examination skills¹. To address this gap, we partnered with a daycare to enhance preclerkship pediatric physical exam experiences.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We partnered with our affiliate childcare center to engage groups of M2 students (N 130) in a half day experience. Students rotate between different age groups (0-6yrs). Student preparation included video resources demonstrating non invasive exams and developmental milestones. Students practiced communication skills, developmental assessments, and non-invasive physical exam maneuvers. Faculty and senior medical students were present to coach students. Students were given pre-and-post surveys rating comfort performing a general and focused physical exam and assessing vital signs and development (5 point anchored Likert scale 1 = not at all comfortable, 5 = extremely comfortable). Data was analyzed using Chi-Square comparing perceptions before and after the experience.

Outcomes:

We found significant improvement in student comfort performing the measured aspects of examination. The average rating of comfort performing a pediatric physical exam increased from an average rating of 2.7 prior to the experience to 3.67 after the experience (p < .05). Overall, students enjoyed the experience, with an average ranking of 4.24.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our results show that practice is successful in enhancing comfort with pediatric examination. The opportunity to engage with children or various ages enables students to enter Pediatrics with prior exposure in examining children. Feedback suggests additional in-depth preparation prior to the experience, and having more pediatric faculty available. Future studies could investigate if increased student comfort is sustained prior to the clerkship. Implementing this type of program fosters comfort with pediatric physical exam skills. Limitations include implementation at institutions without child care facilities.

References:

1. Held M, Gibbs K, Lewin L, Weinstein A. Do pre-clinical experiences adequately prepare students for their pediatrics clerkship: A needs assessment to inform curricular development. Med Sci Educ. 2017;27(3):515-521. doi: 10.1007/s40670-017-0422-4.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [joanna_kuppy@rush.edu]

<u>Reflections of an Evolving Local Innovations in Healthcare Education</u> Research Conference

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin Amy Prunuske, Medical College of Wisconsin-Central Wisconsin Zandra Clevert, Medical College of Wisconsin William Hueston, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this study is to examine the six-year changes of a locally-hosted annual conference in healthcare education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Over a six-year period, a locally-hosted annual healthcare education conference at a Midwestern private medical school has grown in number of participants and expanded its presentation platforms with limited funding in order to reach the level of a regional conference. The use of external high-caliber plenary speakers, evolving multi-platform presentation formats, digital conference programs and evaluations, and traditional cold-calling has resulted in a high-quality interprofessional healthcare education conference.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Each year in April from 2014 to 2019, faculty, staff, residents, medical and graduate students participated in a local, single day innovations in healthcare education research conference. Presentation platforms have included a plenary session, traditional workshops, 10-minute oral presentations, and posters, and in 2018-2019 included ignite sessions and speed posters.

Outcomes:

Fundamental program changes over the six years occurred due to shifts in technology which include broadcasting the plenary session in real-time to regional campuses, digitizing the conference program, and using quick response (QR) codes to access presentation files and evaluation forms. Additional program changes due to institutional growth from a medical school to a healthcare university included committee members and conference participants from the new school of pharmacy and regional medical campuses. External plenary speakers have often been utilized to drive institutional change.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Conference participation has tripled since 2014 and has included members from regional schools in Illinois and Minnesota. Limitations include having too many sessions for a single-day conference, but not enough for two full days.

References:

1. Medical College of Wisconsin. (2019, April 25). 2019 Innovations in Healthcare Education Research Conference. Retrieved from https://www.mcw.edu/education/innovations-in-healthcare-education-research/2019-iher-conference

- 2. Rossiter RC, Stone TE, Getting the Message Across: Delivering a Quality Conference Presentation, Nursing & Health Sciences 2015;17(2):145-147.
- 3. Wiessner Colleen Aalsburg, Hatcher Tim, Chapman Diane, Storberg-Walker J, Creating New Learning at Professional Conferences: An Innovative Approach to Conference Learning, Knowledge Construction and Programme Evaluation, Human Resource Development International 2008;11(4):367-383.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [rtreat@mcw.edu]

Review of the Yankton Longitudinal Integrated Clerkship

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Lori Hansen, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Susan Bak, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Review results of 18 years' experience of a Longitudinal Integrated Clerkship (LIC)

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

There has been a call to change the training of medical students in the primary clinical year. The University of South Dakota Sanford School of Medicine is a community based medical school with three clinical campuses. Students self-select their clinical sites at either Sioux Falls, Rapid City or Yankton. The Yankton Ambulatory Program is the longest running longitudinal integrated clerkship in the USA that includes the entire clinical year, starting in 1991. It is a yearlong program that is integrated across 7 disciplines, is ambulatory based, stresses continuity and problem based learning. Due to Yankton's LIC successes, in 2013, all clinical campuses incorporated the LIC model.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We have surveyed students, and reviewed outcomes in the following areas which will be reviewed with the audience:

- 1) Academic Performance: GPA, Knowledge retention, Step 2 scores with comparison to the traditional block clerkship (BC) students
- 2) Specialty choice for graduates
- 3) Percentage of students that return to Yankton for clinical practice
- 4) Empathy and burnout
- 5) Benefits to faculty
- 6) Student/faculty dynamics
- 7) Student value to patients, physicians, the community and the hospital system

Outcomes

We will review benefits and challenges of a longitudinal integrated clerkship and student outcomes.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

LIC students Step 2 scores compared to Step 1 increased more than BC students. LIC students had increased retention of knowledge, less burnout and maintained empathy across the clinical year. Students perceive their value to patients, physicians, the community and hospital systems.

References:

Hansen, L. A., et al. (1992). University of South Dakota Sanford School of Medicine's Third-year Program of Integrated Clerkships in Ambulatory-care settings. Academic Medicine, 67(12), 817-9.

Irby D.M., Cooke M., O'Brien B.C. Calls for Reform of Medical Education by the Carnegie Foundation for the Advancement of Teaching: 1910 and 2010. Academic Medicine, 2010 Feb; 85(2): 220-227

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lhansen@yanktonmedicalclinic.com]

Students as Innovators: A New Role in Problem-based Learning

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Olivia Coiado, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign Roberto Galvez, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign Kashif Ahmad, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign Jaya Yodh, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign Judith Rowen, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Carle Illinois College of Medicine curriculum integrates engineering with biomedical sciences. We sought to integrate engineering early and enhance the students' ability to generate ideas through the addition of an innovator role in our Problem-Based learning (PBL) sessions. The objective of this study is to describe the innovator role and its outcomes.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

21st century medical students must be prepared to innovate and introduce improvements to the field¹. The Carle Illinois College of Medicine seeks to develop a new generation of physician-innovators that can apply quantitative skills and teamwork to impact health with innovative solutions.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Each PBL session is comprised of eight students and one facilitator who meet three times per week for a total of 6 hours. Students rotate through eight roles: searcher, scribe, reader, synthesizer, inquisitor, feeder leader and innovator. The innovator is responsible for working with the group to identify clinical need(s) and generate new or improved ideas to address those needs.

Outcomes:

Examples of ideas generated include: an application that combines a patient interface and family network to track patient's health, a device that uses a gauge sensor to measure jugular vein distension, and a new inhaler device to diminish variable dosing. The innovator role is a unique experience for students to explore their curiosity and present their ideas weekly during the PBL session.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The introduction of the innovator role sparked students' curiosity and group discussion about health care solutions and the value of engineering innovation in medicine. One limitation is that the innovator role may consume session time normally devoted towards clinical or foundational science discussions.

References:

1. Brazile T; Hostetter Shoop G; McDonough CM; Van Citters DW. Promoting innovation: Enhancing transdisciplinary opportunities for medical and engineering students. Medical Teacher vol: 40, issue 12, pp. 1264-1274, 2018.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [coiado@illinois.edu]

Teaching Gender Inclusion in the Pre-Clerkship Curriculum

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Toshiko Uchida, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine Jason Nettum, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine Kerensa Peterson, National Board of Osteopathic Medical Examiners Suzanne Schmidt, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine Ana Sferruzza, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine Erik Wagner, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine Heather Heiman, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The goal of this project is to create a more gender-inclusive clinical skills curriculum for preclerkship medical students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The 2015 US Transgender Survey documented that 33% of transgender individuals reported negative experiences in a healthcare setting in the preceding year¹. The AAMC has outlined steps to promote curricular changes to improve health for LGBTQ+ individuals², but the development of gender-inclusive curricula is still in its infancy³.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Faculty and staff worked iteratively to make our pre-clerkship clinical skills curriculum more gender-inclusive. We first introduced a formative standardized patient (SP) case for second year students in which a gender non-binary (GNB) patient experiences complications of hormonal treatment. We also modified our foundational communication skills training and adjusted student-facing demographic information for all SPs. Input from our transgender and GNB SPs has been essential.

Outcomes:

Students learn gender-inclusive greetings such as introducing themselves with their pronouns and asking patients about their affirmed names and pronouns. All SP face sheets include gender, sex assigned at birth, pronouns, legal name and affirmed name. For the sexual history, students learn a gender-inclusive alternative to, "Do you have sex with men, women or both?" in the form of, "What are the genders of your partners?" We now include transgender and GNB SPs and cases throughout the pre-clerkship clinical skills curriculum.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The input of transgender and GNB individuals has resulted in cases that are realistic and avoid stereotypes. Faculty and students are becoming more attuned to gender diversity. There are, however, limited data about how broad populations of patients respond when students use gender-inclusive language.

References:

- 1. James SE, Herman JL, Rankin S, Keisling M, Mottet L, Anafi M. Executive Summary of the Report of the 2015 U.S. Transgender Survey. Washington, DC: National Center for Transgender Equality; 2016.
- 2. Hollenbach AD, Eckstrand KL, Dreger AD. Implementing Curricular and Institutional Climate Changes to Improve Health Care for Individuals Who Are LGBT, Gender Nonconforming, or Born With DSD: A Resource for Medical Educators. Washington, DC: Association of American Medical Colleges; 2014.
- 3. Dubin SN, Nolan IT, Streed CG, Greene RE, Radix AE, Morrison SD. Transgender health care: improving medical students' and residents' training and awareness. Adv Med Educ Pract. 2018;9:377-91.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [toshiko-uchida@northwestern.edu]

The E-Board: Online-based whiteboard template for Problem Based Learning in Medical Education

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Anant Naik, Carle Illinois College of Medicine Robert Wallon, Carle Illinois College of Medicine Jaya Yodh, Carle Illinois College of Medicine - University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

An electronic whiteboard (E-Board) was created online to allow students to engage in the same components of PBL online while addressing the lack of mobility of physical whiteboards and utilize the individual technologies and resources students have.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical school curricula based on problem-based learning (PBL) are prevalent¹. Traditional PBL procedures involve a facilitator guiding students through a case over several sessions. The discussion revolves around a physical whiteboard divided into several categories (Information, Hypotheses, Action Items, Learning Issues), serving to contextualize the case information and ideas generated in the discussion from the session. During this discussion, all students are assigned roles, including leader, scribe, and searcher^{2,3}.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

An E-Board template was constructed on Google Sheets for students to use during PBL. A diagnosis-rationale column and diagnosis problem list comparison table were added to further discussion and evaluation of the PBL case. After utilizing this online method for several months, members of a PBL group were surveyed on how the addition of the E-Board altered the PBL process for them. All group members (6 students and 1 facilitator) responded to the survey.

Outcomes:

Students perceived several benefits from using the E-Board: PBL became more efficient and content was more accessible. Students did not report a change in their personal learning. However, some students and the facilitator thought the possibility of distractions was greater because the E-Board required more personal screens to be opened.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

These findings offer insight into how technology can be integrated into the process of PBL to make it more efficient and accessible. The findings also raise caution about how technology may detract from PBL by distracting to the group.

References:

- 1. Neville AJ. (2008). Problem-Based Learning and Medical Education Forty Years On A Review of Its Effects on Knowledge and Clinical Performance. Medical Principles and Practice, 18:1-9.
- 2. Davis MH, Harden RM. (1999). (AMEE Medical Education Guide No. 15: Problem Based Learning A Practical Guide. Medical Teacher, 21(2), 130-140.
- 3. Hmelo-Silver, C. E. (2004). Problem-Based Learning: What and How Do Students Learn? Educational Psychology Review, 16(3), 235–266.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [anantn2@illinois.edu]

The Wild West: A Clinical Competency Committee in the Final Stage

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Michelle Schimelpfenig, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Rebecca Redetzke, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The fourth year of medical school has been named the "lost year" or the "wild west" for the inherent lack of follow up on student progress. Learners are consumed with residency applications and interviews, and traditionally have few required rotations. As a method to better sense the pulse of our students, our school has developed a Pillar 3 Competency Committee. The goal of this committee is to review the academic performance, progression, and professionalism for all of our graduating class.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In many institutions, including our own, we have close surveillance of our students in the preclinical and first clinical year. For most students, they are able to successfully navigate this stage of training. However, those who have been previously identified as "at risk" need to have continued support and monitoring to ensure successful completion and transition to residency.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The competency committee meets quarterly, reviewing every student twice throughout their final phase. The information that is reviewed includes grades (both narrative and numeric), patient logs, professionalism comments, and feedback from advisors. Each Clerkship Director is assigned a student, and it is their responsibility to review the data presented to the committee and follow up with students as necessary. Following each meeting, students are provided a summary of comments regarding their progress.

Outcomes:

This change in oversight in Pillar 3 has been well received by both students and faculty based on comments and feedback provided.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Significant strengths of this innovation are that we have better communication between students and faculty, have continued monitoring of "at-risk" students, and provide affirmation to those that are progressing appropriately. Weaknesses of our committee include evolving expectations, faculty time commitment, and difficulty with compiling student reports.

References:

Clinical Competency Committees - acgme.org. (n.d.). Retrieved from https://www.acgme.org/Portals/0/ACGMEClinicalCompetencyCommitteeGuidebook.pdf.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [michelle.schimelpfenig@usd.edu]

Toward a comprehensive-but-efficient peer observation instrument for medical and health sciences faculty

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Adrienne Salentiny, University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences Anne Haskins, University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences Devon Olson, University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Occupational Therapy (OT) Department at the University of North Dakota (UND) School of Medicine and Health Sciences (SMHS) identified a need for an efficient, yet descriptive, instrument for peer teaching evaluations. An ideal tool would be easy to complete in-situ. Qualitative and quantitative ratings would guide self-reflection and constructive dialogues. Measurements would translate to annual evaluations and be congruent with tenure and promotion benchmarks.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Peer observations of teaching are important for quality improvement and professional development¹. Observees benefit from the entire process, while observers reflect on their own teaching as they observe their peers, resulting in higher quality education². To have value, peer observations must include pre- and post-evaluation meetings³. Time- and resource-management demand an efficient process⁴, but effective peer observations must yield descriptive, specific, sensitive, directed, timely, and selective feedback².

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

An instructional designer, OT professor and reference librarian reviewed literature to assess existing instruments. Findings were used to construct an instrument comprised of categories, subtopics, and criteria, with consideration for workplace-specific evaluation and mission-related language. A descriptive rubric format satisfies the competing requirements of detailed feedback and efficiency of use. Concise qualitative components allow for two-way reflection without repetition.

Outcomes:

The peer observation instrument is undergoing pilot testing during the 2019-2020 academic year. Preliminary results, validation plans, and stakeholder feedback will be shared.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Strengths: This evidence-based instrument provides for quantitative and descriptive scoring (and qualitative reflection) on teaching and faculty-student interaction in one class session. Limitations: it is not yet validated and while it was written with transferability in mind, it has not yet been tested beyond the OT Department.

References:

1. McMahon T. Using observation of teaching to improve quality: finding your way through the muddle of competing conceptions, confusion of practice and mutually exclusive intentions. Teaching in Higher Education. 2007;12(4):499-511.

- 2. Sullivan PB, Buckle A, Nicky G, Atkinson S. Peer observation of teaching as a faculty development tool. BMC Medical Education. 2012;12(26).
- 3. Bernstein D. Peer review and evaluation of the intellectual work of teaching. Change: The Magazine of Higher Learning. 2008;40(2):45-51
- 4. Thomas S, Chie QT, Abraham M, Raj SJ, Beh LS. A qualitative review of literature of peer review of teaching in higher education: an application of the SWOT framework. Review of Educational Research. 2014;84(1):112-159.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [adrienne.salentiny@med.und.edu]

Use of a Discharge Observation Tool in Medicine Sub-Internship

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Radhika Sreedhar, University of Illinois College of Medicine Asra Khan, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ananya Gangopadhyaya, University of Illinois College of Medicine Yoon Soo Park, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ana Clara Mauro, University of Illinois College of Medicine Susan Doh, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To demonstrate the utility of a discharge observation tool initially used in medicine clerkship to assess fourth year student's readiness for discharging patients in internship¹.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Discharging a hospitalized patient is an important activity that interns are expected to perform during residency. Despite this, only 56% of medical students review discharge instructions with patients and over 95% desire additional training². We used a discharge observation tool initially used in medicine clerkships to assess fourth year student's performance when discharging patients¹.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

As a part of the fourth-year internal medicine sub-internship discharge curriculum, medical students were required have a preceptor provide real-time feedback while discharging a patient. The discharge observation tool was used to provide feedback to 82 medical students.

Outcomes:

The percentage of students rated as performing above the expected level include the following: 92% -Patient communication: including appropriate use of medical terminology, teach-back method, responsiveness to non-verbal cues and addressing patient's concerns

82% Medication Counseling: including counseling about new medications, changes to prior medications and side effects of medications

87% Team Communication: including the involvement of other members of the healthcare team (e.g; social worker, physical and occupational therapists and pharmacists), communication with other physicians, and explaining the follow up plan after discharge.

Areas for improvement most often commented on were communicating at a level commensurate with patient's education, lack of use of teach back method to review discharge instructions and need for more use of open-ended questions when interacting with patients.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This validated tool provides students with direct feedback to help improve their readiness to discharge patients during internship. This is an important step to help students meet the patient discharge related entrusbable professional activities. The tool did not discriminate between subcategories although evaluators could provide written feedback.

References:
1. Lyons, M. D., D. B. Miles, A. M. Davis, M. B. Saathoff and A. T. Pincavage (2016). "Preventing Breakdowns in Communication: Teaching Patient-Centered Posthospital Care Transitions to Medical Students." MedEdPORTAL 12: 10435. 2. Block, L., M. Morgan-Gouveia, W. Kelly, M. Kannarkat, K. C. Chretien and D. Cayea (2015). "Participation of Medical Students in Discharge Tasks: A Needs Assessment." J Am Geriatr Soc 63(10): 2181-2183.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [sreedhar@uic.edu]

<u>Using a Quick Response (QR) Code Reader System to Deliver Feedback</u> During a Pediatric Clerkship

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Corinne Lehmann, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Nick DeBlasio, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Chris Peltier, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Laurah Lukin, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Seth Overla, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine Pamela Baker, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To determine the impact of a QR code reader system containing specific feedback prompts on the delivery of feedback from faculty.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical students report not receiving consistent, actionable feedback during clinical clerkships ^{1,2}. Our students qualitatively reported less regular and specific feedback during outpatient rotations compared to inpatient on clerkship evaluations. We developed a system for collecting real-time feedback using QR mobile technology that prompted specific responses and compared it to the current less specific paper format.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

58 third year students were voluntarily surveyed regarding the quantity and quality of feedback received during the outpatient rotation. Students were divided into 2 groups. The "Paper group" (n=14) completed the survey prior to the pilot of the QR system, and the "QR group" (n=21) completed the survey after the launch of the new system.

Outcomes:

The QR group reported receiving more frequent feedback (90%) compared to the Paper group (65%). The QR group also reported receiving more feedback related to clinical skills (QR group: 81%; Paper: 57%), a higher rate of actionable feedback (QR group: 85%; Paper: 71%) as well as more feedback to improve their performance (QR group: 58%; Paper: 4%). Although none of these differences were statistically significant, the difference in perceived frequency of feedback between the groups did approach significance (t-test; P = 0.06).

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The QR code system enhanced feedback by presenting a menu of specific skills which appeared to better prompt faculty as compared to the system which had general feedback prompts. While no significant differences between the groups were observed, the sample size used was a small convenience sample and did not reach reasonable statistical power.

References:

1. Bing-You R et. al. The Art (and Artifice) of Seeking Feedback: Clerkship Students' Approaches in Asking for Feedback. Academic Medicine 2018 Aug;93(8):1218-1226. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002256.

 $2.\ Bowen\ L,\ Marshall\ M,\ Murdoch-Eaton\ D.\ \ Medical\ Student\ Pereceptions\ of\ Feedback\ and\ Feedback\ Behaviors\ Within\ the\ Context\ of\ the\ "Educational\ Alliance."\ Academic\ Medicine\ 2017\ Sep;92(9):1303-1312.\ doi:\ 10.1097/ACM.0000000000001632.$

For more information about this abstract please contact: [corinne.lehmann@uc.edu]

<u>Validity evidence in examining student evaluation of courses: Qualitative coding and triangulation</u>

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Michael Elftman, Central Michigan University College of Medicine Xiaomei Song, Central Michigan University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Although student evaluation of courses is common in medical schools, limited guidance is available to analyze feedback efficiently. We established a process for distilling narrative feedback into quantitative data to identify actions for course improvement.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Institutions use various methods to evaluate course effectiveness, including quantitative measures and open-ended questions. While analyzing quantitative data is relatively straightforward, these data may not provide details of the strengths and weaknesses of a given course. In contrast, open-ended questions provide insights into specific course themes, but analyzing qualitative data may be controversial without evidence of credibility and trustworthiness¹. A rigorous process is needed to ensure validity and trustworthiness of qualitative coding. In addition, triangulation combining qualitative and quantitative data sources will confirm findings to guide course improvement².

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Using student evaluations of a foundational sciences course, we used a thematic inductive coding approach to generate a codebook and identify themes. These data were triangulated with quantitative data and will help guide course changes.

Outcomes:

The qualitative coding process was perceived as useful and efficient, demonstrating evidence of inter-coder reliability. Concerns were identified regarding specific course components and instructional techniques. Triangulation with quantitative data corroborated these results, adding validity evidence to our findings.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The strengths of this approach include the increased validity and trustworthiness of the interpretation of narrative feedback. Two limitations of this approach include the requirement for a representative sample of students willing to provide thoughtful feedback and its reliance on student perspectives alone as a data source. Results from this approach must be triangulated with other data (e.g., student performance, faculty perspectives) to ensure that appropriate conclusions about course effectiveness are made.

References:

1 Patton M.Q. (2002). Qualitative research and evaluation methods. Thousand Oaks, CAL Sage. 2 Creswell, J. W. (2009). Research design: qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods approaches. Los Angeles: Sage.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [elftm1m@cmich.edu]

Visualizing Speech Patterns in Problem-Based Learning Sessions

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Robert Wallon, Carle Illinois College of Medicine Cynthia D'Angelo, University of Illinois at Urbana Champaign

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this innovation is to create images that summarize speech patterns between students and facilitators during Problem-Based Learning (PBL) sessions. These visualizations are intended to be used by facilitators to reflect on cases to improve facilitation and learning¹.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

PBL is a popular approach to medical education, and it forms the core of the curriculum at Carle Illinois College of Medicine. Much of the initial research on PBL compared outcomes to traditional approaches (e.g., lecture-based curricula). More recent research has explored the process of PBL and has highlighted the importance of group dynamics and the role of the facilitator². This work has used methods such as case study and microanalysis³. Although these methods generate useful research insights, the analyses are time-consuming and therefore do not quickly generate insights that can be used to impact current instruction.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We added an audio recording device to ongoing PBL sessions. The device had two microphones, one for the group and one for the facilitator.

Outcomes:

We collected 62 recordings from 31 PBL sessions over 6 weeks. These recordings are currently being used to develop an automated process for creating images⁴.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This innovation offers a way to view temporal patterns in speech between facilitators and students, which are otherwise difficult to track over a two-hour session. These images can be used to reflect on and compare speech patterns.

In its current format, the innovation shows student speech at the group level rather than the individual student level. Also, the contents of the speech are not available in this format. In the next stage of the project we will investigate how useful the images are for supporting facilitators.

References:

- 1. Vescio V, Ross D, Adams A. A review of research on the impact of professional learning communities on teaching practice and student learning. Teaching and Teacher Education. 2008; 24: 80-91.
- 2. Schmidt HG, Rotgans JI, Yew EH. The process of problem-based learning: What works and why. Medical Education. 2011; 45: 792-806
- 3. Wilkerson L, Hafler JP, Liu P. A case study of student-directed discussion in four problem-based tutorial groups. Academic Medicine. 1991; 66: S79-S81.
- 4. D'Angelo CM, Roschelle J, Bratt H, Shriberg L, Richey C, Tsiartas A, Alozie N. Using students' speech to characterize group collaboration quality. Poster presented at The Computer Supported Collaborative Learning (CSCL) Conference 2015. Gothenburg, Sweden. 2015.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [rwallon2@illinois.edu]

Where's the Pain? Utilizing Curriculum Mapping to Drive the Development of a Biopsychosocial Pain and Opioid Use Curriculum for Medical Students

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Amy Seegmiller Renner, Mayo Clinic Jeannie Sperry, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Mayo Clinic Alix School of Medicine identified pain as a top five societal problem for LCME accreditation. The Pain and Opioid Curriculum Subcommittee was utilized to identify where in the curriculum pain and opioid content was taught and assessed throughout the four year medical school.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

To face the current opioid epidemic, medical schools need to educate and train future physicians to provide appropriate biopsychosocial care for patients with pain and problematic opioid use. A recent systematic review of 383 medical schools¹ found minimal instructional time and limited breadth of content dedicated to pain.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A curriculum mapping analysis of course content was performed to identify gaps in existing curriculum. Once the curriculum was mapped, a comparison was completed utilizing the International Association for the Study of Pain Core Competences for Pain Management² and the Arizona Department of Health Services Pain and Addiction Curriculum³. A survey was sent to graduating medical students in 2018 and 2019 to gain insight regarding student's satisfaction with current curriculum, perceived knowledge, and confidence gaps.

Outcomes:

Curriculum is being integrated vertically and horizontally to provide a longitudinal learning experience in biopsychosocial aspects of pain and opioid use. We mapped current curriculum and forecast increasing curriculum by 25% yearly for next 4-5 years. To date, we have increased content by 30%, expanding didactic and experiential learning opportunities. Survey responses indicated perceived knowledge and confidence gaps in biopsychosocial evaluation and treatment of acute and chronic pain, pediatric pain, and opioid use disorder as well as ratings of satisfaction with current curriculum.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The utilization of two external organization curriculum outlines enhanced the curriculum mapping experience and validated the need for additional focal topics to be created.

References:

1 Shipton, E. E., Bate, F., Garrick, R., Steketee, C., Shipton, E. A., & Visser, E. J. (2018). Systematic review of pain medicine content, teaching, and assessment in medical school curricula internationally. Pain and therapy, 7(2), 139-161.

2 Fishman, S. M., Young, H. M., Lucas Arwood, E., Chou, R., Herr, K., Murinson, B. B., ... & Bakerjian, D. (2013). Core competencies for pain management: results of an interprofessional consensus summit. Pain Medicine, 14(7), 971-981.

3 Arizona Department of Health Services. (2018). The Arizona Pain and Addiction Curriculum Faculty Guide. https://www.azdhs.gov/documents/audiences/clinicians/curriculum/arizona-pain-addiction-faculty-guide.pdf

For more information about this abstract please contact: [seegmiller.amy@mayo.edu]

Win, Win: Engaging and rewarding residents to provide individualized feedback to medical students on formative knowledge assessments

Submission Type: Innovations Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Michaela Stiber, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve S. Beth Bierer, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve Alan Hull, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve Alana Majors, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine (CCLCM) recruits, prepares, and rewards Graduate Medical Education trainees (residents and fellows) to rate and provide feedback on competency-based essay questions. This innovation addresses limited faculty resources and provides students with near-peer feedback while recognizing trainees for their service².

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

CCLCM utilizes weekly concept appraisal questions (CAPPs), throughout Years 1-2. Medical students use CAPP feedback to document their application and integration of medical knowledge for their promotion portfolios¹. By encouraging trainees to engage in the feedback process, we can reduce the pressure of increasing faculty demands³, while providing students with timely feedback.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We recruit trainees recommended by course directors, then provide them with training on CCLCM's assessment philosophy, performance expectations, and formative feedback examples. Senior faculty review a subset of trainee responses to ensure their feedback met performance expectations. Following review of two CAPPs (approx. 16 hours), we reward trainees by recommending them for academic appointment of "Clinical Instructor." This CQI project was deemed exempt.

Outcomes:

During 2014-2019, 127 residents served as CAPP reviewers, with 74 (58%) receiving an academic appointment of clinical instructor. We observed residents, especially our alumni, could provide targeted feedback to students with minimal faculty oversight. Resident participation increased over time, requiring fewer full-time faculty to review CAPPs (e.g., 53 faculty in 2014 to 23 in 2019).

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

With the expected rate of trainee turn-over a continuous mentored approach is required. This scope of work is unavailable to trainees with a J-1 Visa. This program reduces pressure on full-time faculty, engages and rewards GME residents (including CCLCM alumni), as well as provides essential formative feedback to medical students.

References:

Bierer, S. B., Dannefer, E. F., Taylor, C., Hall, P., & Hull, A. L. (2008). Methods to assess students' acquisition, application and integration of basic science knowledge in an innovative competency-based curriculum. Medical Teacher, 30(7), e171-e177. 2 McBride, J. M., & Drake, R. L. (2011). Rewarding the resident teacher. Anatomical Sciences Education, 4(4), 227-230. 3 Ramani, S., Mann, K., Taylor, D., & Thampy, H. (2016). Residents as teachers: Near peer learning in clinical work settings: AMEE Guide No. 106. Medical teacher, 38(7), 642-655.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [stiberm@ccf.org]

Research Abstracts

<u>"So You Took an Oath": First-Year Medical Students' Reflections on</u> Professionalism Virtues

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Douglas Schnell, Indiana University School of Medicine Jessica Byram, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study analyzed first-year medical students' ability to reflect on core professional virtues following a small group session on physician oaths.

Background and relevance of the study:

A paramount component of medical education is the teaching of medical professionalism.¹ Early integration of professionalism into curriculum is most important today, as tensions between professionalism and corporate policy grow.² Therefore, it's often the objective to maximize medical students' comprehension, retention, and commitment to the virtues of professionalism.¹, ² However, the ability of first-year medical students to engage with and reflect on professionalism virtues remains unclear.

Design and Methods:

First-year medical students (n=117) consented to their personal statements and reflective essays to be used in this study, which were de-identified and matched using a unique identifier. Upon completion of the "So You Took an Oath" session, students completed written reflections on physician oaths in which they reflected upon the notion of professionalism and moral/ethical commitments entailed in viewing medicine as a profession, and compared their personal statements to the essential characteristics of a medical professional. Personal statements and critical reflections were uploaded to Dedoose 8.2 for comparative thematic analysis.

Results:

While many personal statements were devoid of traditional professionalism characteristics, students often discussed access to healthcare, socioeconomic determinants of health, and service. The most common characteristics discussed in the reflections were professional competence/knowledge, which often co-occurred with compassion. Students frequently confused characteristics like compassion and empathy, and communication and listening. While most students had thoughtful discussions of professionalism, many lacked the ability to value the professionalism characteristics in their personal statements.

Many students discussed shadowing experiences with clinicians, but failed to reflect on the oaths and honoring one's teacher.

Conclusions:

The "So You Took an Oath" reflections demonstrated first-year medical students' ability to engage with traditional professionalism characteristics early on, but highlighted low reflective ability and confusion about the meaning of essential professionalism virtues.

References:

- 1. Cruess RL, Cruess SR, Boudreau JD, Snell L, Steinert Y. Reframing Medication Education to Support Professional identity Formation. Acad Med. 2014;89(11):1446-1451.
- 2. Forouzadeh M, Kiani M, Bazmi S. Professionalism and its role in the formation of medical professional identity. Med J Islam Repub Iran. 2018;32:130. doi:10.14196/mjiri.32.130

For more information about this abstract please contact: [dcschnel@iu.edu]

A novel video intervention to improve senior medical students' performance on outpatient telephone encounters

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jacob Mack, University of Michigan Medical School Eric Walford, University of Michigan Medical School Helen Morgan, University of Michigan Medical School Lauren Heidemann, University of Michigan Medical School

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Which skills are important for physicians when addressing outpatient telephone calls (OTCs)? Can a video intervention improve medical student skills in addressing OTCs?

Background and relevance of the study:

First-year residents are often responsible for OTCs with little prior training^{1–4} and few, outdated guidelines^{5,6}.

Design and Methods:

We utilized a two-round conventional Delphi technique to determine consensus on which skills are important when addressing OTCs. We then created an instructional video focused on these skills. To determine the video's effectiveness, senior medical students viewed the video in a randomized controlled fashion divided into two groups: Intervention and Control. Students were assessed pre- and post-intervention on their ability to manage OTCs based on a simulated OTC with a standardized patient who assessed them on a pre-defined expert-validated rubric. The primary outcome was the difference in improvement between Control and Intervention groups, using a MANOVA for significance and Cohen's d for effect size.

Results:

4/7 faculty (57%) and 8/11 residents (73%) in four specialties completed the Delphi. 34 skills were deemed important; 18 achieved high consensus (>=80% agreement [7]); 16 approached consensus (50-79% agreement [7]). These skills were incorporated into the 8-minute video.

72 students completed pre- and post-intervention assessments (Control, n=41; Intervention, n=31). The mean score (SD) in Control improved from 62.3% (14.3%) to 66.6% (25.0%) (4.3% improvement). The score in Intervention improved from 60.7% (15.2%) to 72.9% (20.4%) (12.2% improvement). The between-group difference was non-significant. However, the effect size measured by Cohen's d was 0.55, which is greater than the threshold for an educational intervention to be considered effective (>0.33) [8].

Conclusions:

This project filled a key gap in OTCs for medical students transitioning to residency. The needs assessment Delphi process and curriculum development can be reproduced for other pressing gaps in this important educational transition.

References:

- 1. Killip S, Ireson CL, Love MM, Fleming ST, Katirai W, Sandford K. Patient safety in after-hours telephone medicine. Fam Med. 2007;39(6):404-409.
- 2. Hannis MD, Elnicki DM, Morris DK, Flannery MT. Can you hold please? How internal medicine residents deal with patient telephone calls. Telephone Encounters Learning Initiative Group. Am J Med Sci. 1994;308(6):349-352. doi:10.1097/00000441-199412000-00007
- 3. Flannery MT, Moses GA, Cykert S, et al. Telephone management training in internal medicine residencies: a national survey of program directors. Acad Med. 1995;70(12):1138-1141.
- 4. Cykert S, Flannery MT, Huber EC, et al. Telephone medical care administered by internal medicine residents: concerns of program directors and implications for residency training. Am J Med Sci. 1997;314(3):198-202. doi:10.1097/00000441-199709000-00009
- 5. Elnicki DM, Cykert S, Linger B, Ogden P, Hannis M. Effectiveness of a Curriculum in Telephone Medicine. Teaching and Learning in Medicine. 1998;10(4):223-227. doi:10.1207/S15328015TLM1004 5
- 6. Elnicki DM, Ogden P, Flannery M, Hannis M, Cykert S. Telephone Medicine for Internists. J Gen Intern Med. 2000;15(5):337-343. doi:10.1046/j.1525-1497.2000.06459.x
- 7. de Villiers MR, de Villiers PJT, Kent AP. The Delphi technique in health sciences education research. Med Teach. 2005;27(7):639-643. doi:10.1080/13611260500069947
- 8. Isaac S, Michael WB. Handbook in Research and Evaluation: A Collection of Principles, Methods, and Strategies Useful in the Planning, Design, and Evaluation of Studies in Education and the Behavioral Sciences. EdITS; 1995.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [mackja@med.umich.edu]

A Pilot Program in Patient Safety Education Involving Medical Students as Unannounced Observers of Preceptor Hand-Hygiene Practices

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Ajit Augustin, University of Illinois College of Medicine Shashank Patil, University of Illinois College of Medicine Joseph Geraghty, University of Illinois College of Medicine Matthew Orlando, University of Illinois College of Medicine Sandra Yingling, University of Illinois College of Medicine Michelle Barnes, University of Illinois College of Medicine Heather Heiman, University of Illinois College of Medicine Asra Khan, University of Illinois College of Medicine Abbas Hyderi, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We evaluated the feasibility of medical students serving as unannounced observers of hand-hygiene practices. We quantified preceptor adherence to hand-hygiene guidelines as part of a pilot program in patient safety education.

Background and relevance of the study:

Adherence to hand-hygiene guidelines is important in reducing the spread of transmissible disease^{1,2}. Novel programs are needed to teach medical students about patient safety and to demonstrate this entrustable professional activity (EPA #13)^{3,4,5,6,7}.

Design and Methods:

We launched a program to integrate patient safety education into medical student clinical responsibilities as part of AAMC's Core EPA pilot. Between 2016-2018, medical students were invited to document patient encounters with preceptors, noting hand-hygiene behavior performed before and/or after encounters. Physician gender, specialty, level (attending/resident); setting (inpatient/outpatient); and time of year were recorded. Chi-Square analysis was used to determine differences across categories. Logistic regression was used to predict hand-hygiene performance. Student perceptions of the pilot are also reported.

Results:

67 student participants documented 715 patient encounters and observed 94 preceptors. Preencounter hand-hygiene was performed at a higher rate (81.5%) than post-encounter (71.6%). Preceptors performed hand-hygiene before and after a patient encounter 62.4% of the time, and 5.6% of encounters involved no hand-hygiene. There was a significant difference in hand-hygiene performance by specialty (p < 0.05). Multivariate logistic regression revealed that time of year (spring > winter > fall, p=0.016), specialty (surgical > non-surgical specialties, p=0.017), setting (inpatient > outpatient, p=0.009), and supervisor level (resident > attending, p=0.018) are independent predictors of performing hand-hygiene before and after a patient encounter. Amongst student participants, 72% recommended expansion of the pilot.

Conclusions:

We successfully incorporated hand-hygiene education into medical students' clinical experience. Our findings suggest several factors that may predict likelihood of performing hand-hygiene. Future research is needed to determine if observing preceptor hand-hygiene behaviors contributes to student habits that are sustainable throughout training.

References:

- 1. Chauhan, Kalpana, et al. "Hand Hygiene: An Educational Intervention Targeting Grass Root Level." Journal of Infection and Public Health, vol. 12, no. 3, 22 Jan. 2019, pp. 419–423., doi:10.1016/j.jiph.2018.12.014.
- 2. WHO Guidelines on Hand Hygiene in Health Care: First Global Patient Safety Challenge Clean Care is Safer Care. 2009. p. 120 Table 1.12.4
- 3. Birnbach, David J., et al. "Current Hand Hygiene Education Is Suboptimal." The Clinical Teacher, 2019, doi:10.1111/tct.12992.
- 4. Cresswell, Penelope, and Lynn V Monrouxe. "And You'll Suddenly Realise 'I've Not Washed My Hands': Medical Students', Junior Doctors' and Medical Educators' Narratives of Hygiene Behaviours." BMJ Open, vol. 8, no. 3, 22 Mar. 2018, doi:10.1136/bmjopen-2017-018156
- 5. Sahai, Vic, et al. "Hand Hygiene and Health Care Hierarchy by Year of Medical Education." Education for Health, vol. 28, no. 2, 2015, p. 148., doi:10.4103/1357-6283.170120.
- 6., Snow, Michelle, et al. "Mentor's Hand Hygiene Practices Influence Student's Hand Hygiene Rates." American Journal of Infection Control, vol. 34, no. 1, Feb. 2006, pp. 18–24., doi:10.1016/j.ajic.2005.05.009.
- 7. Lomis K, Amiel JM, Ryan MS, Esposito K, Green M, Stagnaro-Green A, Bull J, Mejicano GC. Implementing an entrustable professional activities framework in undergraduate medical education: Early lessons from the AAMC Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency Pilot. Acad Med. 2017;92(6):765-770.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [aaugus6@uic.edu]

Adverse childhood events in medical students: Investigating factors that promote resilience

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Heather Schuljak, Indiana University School of Medicine Jessica Byram, Indiana University School of Medicine Taylor Bastin, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To identify the proportion of medical students that have 4+ ACEs and determine protective factors that promote resilience in these students.

Background and relevance of the study:

The original ACEs study¹ described the correlation between adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) and health risk behaviors in adulthood. A recent meta-analysis² showed that people with 4+ ACEs had markedly increased odds ratios of developing behaviors that perpetuate the cycles of abuse and poverty. For instance, those with 4+ ACEs were shown to have an almost 40-fold increase in suicide attempts and 10-fold increase in problematic drug use. The purpose of this study is to address medical students, a population that has successfully completed higher education and presumably does not have a significant criminal or drug abuse history.

Design and Methods:

We gave the ACE questionnaire to all medical students at a single institution. If the student was determined to have 4+ ACEs, they were given the option to submit their email address to schedule a follow-up interview in order to determine protective factors that helped build resilience in their life. One-on-one interviews were then recorded and transcribed. Survey data was analyzed using STATA³ and interviews were coded for protective factors and resilience building.

Results:

Of 55 participants, 18 had zero ACEs, 12 had one ACE, 4 had two ACEs, 6 had three ACEs, and 15 had 4+ ACEs. The ACE score mean was 2.07 (1.48-2.66, 95%). Three different ACEs (sexual abuse [3 responses], poverty/drug use [5 responses], and domestic violence [3 responses]) were each only present in students with 4+ ACEs overall. 4 students were willing to interview and all had the protective factors of "non-parental support and love" and a "consistent role model".

Conclusions:

Medical students do not have a significantly higher ACE score mean (2.07 [1.48-2.66,95%]) compared to the total population (1.57, [1.55-1.59, 95%]). More conclusions to follow.

References:

1. Felitti V, Anda R, Nordenberg D, Williamson D, Spitz A, Edwards V et al. Relationship of Childhood Abuse and Household Dysfunction to Many of the Leading Causes of Death in Adults. American Journal of Preventive Medicine. 1998;14(4):245-258.

2. Hughes K, Bellis M, Hardcastle K, Sethi D, Butchart A, Mikton C et al. The effect of multiple adverse childhood experiences on health: a systematic review and meta-analysis. The Lancet Public Health. 2017;2(8):e356-e366.

3. StataCorp. 2019. Stata Statistical Software: Release 16. College Station, TX: StataCorp LLC.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [h_blick@hotmail.com]

<u>Analysis of the Impact of Medical Student Traits on Self-Esteem between</u> <u>Three-Year and Four-Year Medical Degree Programs</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin
Molly Falk-Steinmetz, Medical College of Wisconsin
Jeff Fritz, Medical College of Wisconsin-Central Wisconsin
Kristina Kaljo, Medical College of Wisconsin
Amy Prunuske, Medical College of Wisconsin-Central Wisconsin
Craig Hanke, Medical College of Wisconsin-Green Bay
William Hueston, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to analyze the impact of medical student personality, resilience, affect, and burnout on self-esteem as moderated by three-year and four-year medical degree programs.

Background and relevance of the study:

Emotionally intelligent medical students have adequate levels of self-esteem which gives them the confidence in their self-worth and abilities to succeed in medical school.¹ Intrinsic traits such as personality, resilience, and affect (emotions) as well as burnout will impact self-esteem.² Resilient medical students can endure through more challenging episodes of time³ when self-esteem levels falter.

Design and Methods:

In 2017-18, 205/500 M-1/M-2 medical students voluntarily completed self-reported electronic surveys using the following validated instruments: Trait-Emotional Intelligence Questionnaire to measure self-esteem scores; Five-Factor Personality Inventory; RS-25 Resilience Scale; Maslach Burnout Inventory-Student Survey.

Independent t-tests and Cohen's d effect sizes determined differences in mean self-esteem scores between medical degree programs. Pearson correlations and stepwise multivariate linear regression was used to predict self-esteem scores from personality, resilience, affect and burnout scores. IBM® SPSS® 24.0 was used for statistical analysis. This research was IRB approved.

Results:

Self-esteem (alpha=0.87) scores were significantly higher (d=0.45, p<0.004) for the four-year program students (5.9(1.0)) than the three-year program students (5.4(1.2)).

There were statistically significant (p<0.001) correlations between the factors of self-esteem and: conscientiousness (r=0.3), resilience (r=0.4), guilt (r=0.4), sadness (r=-0.3), joviality (r=0.3), and academic efficacy (r=0.3).

Three-year program: Significant linear regression (R²=0.50, p<.001) of self-esteem as the outcome variable with predictors of optimism, exhaustion, and academic efficacy.

Four-year program: Significant linear regression (R²=0.67, p<.001) of self-esteem on extroversion, optimism, self-reliance, authenticity, and perseverance.

Conclusions:

Medical student self-esteem was higher on the four-year medical school program than on the shorter three-year program. Predictors of self-esteem for students in the three-year program were driven by elements of emotions or emotional intelligence but were driven by personality and resilience in the four-year program.

References:

- 1. Park HJ, Dhandra TK, The Effect of Trait Emotional Intelligence on the Relationship between Dispositional Mindfulness and Self-Esteem, Mindfulness 2017;8(5):1206-1211.
- 2. Fetvadjiev VH; He J, The Longitudinal Links of Personality Traits, Values, and Well-Being and Self-Esteem: A Five-Wave Study of a Nationally Representative Sample, Journal of Personality and Social Psychology 2019;117(2):448-464.
 3. Ming-hui L, Eschenauer R, Persaud V, Between Avoidance and Problem Solving: Resilience, Self-Efficacy, and Social Support Seeking, Journal of Counseling and Development 2018;96(2),132-143.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [rtreat@mcw.edu]

Avera eCARE: Medical Student Education in Telemedicine

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Kelly Rhone, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Jennifer Lindgren, Avera eCARE; University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Luke Mack, Avera eCARE

Morgan Nelson, Avera Research Institute; University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Lindsay Spencer, Avera eCARE

Susan Anderson, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this research study is to explore medical student knowledge of and interest in telemedicine services in urban and rural communities.

Background and relevance of the study:

In the past, medical students have reported feeling unprepared to use telemedicine and uninformed about laws regarding telemedicine usage following graduation. However, they also reported that telemedicine training is relevant and important for their future work¹.

Design and Methods:

Study participants included medical students taking part in a two day telemedicine education program. The first day includes a faculty seminar where students are introduced to telemedicine by experts in telemedicine innovations. The second day is a simulation day (SIM) where medical students complete a rotation at the Avera eCARE virtual hospital hub. A survey was given prior to the faculty seminar and re-administered following the SIM day. Questions were asked about telemedicine knowledge, curriculum, and willingness to practice via telemedicine.

Results:

A Chi-square analysis was used to look for associations' pre/post by year. Both years show an increase in favorable responses for questions to telemedicine training and education. For analyses by topic area, we created clusters of questions to build scores. T-tests were used to look for associations' pre/post by year. The analysis resulted in three topic areas to build scores. Both years show a significant increase in both Rating of Overall Knowledge and Interest in Curriculum and Utilization. There is no significant difference in Willingness to Practice.

Conclusions:

Results show notable differences in how students perceive and understand telemedicine after structured exposure to telemedicine services. Further, this study demonstrates students' need for and interest in more telemedicine training opportunities in their curriculum. Results demonstrate no significant difference in the willingness to practice in rural settings. Future studies may focus on how telemedicine training is perceived by those more willing to work in rural communities.

References:

Waseh, S., & Dicker, A. P. (2019, April 8). Telemedicine Training in Undergraduate Medical Education: Mixed-Methods Review.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [kelly.rhone@avera.org]

Baseline Differences in Student Attitude Towards Opioid Overdose and Individuals with Substance Use Disorder Contribute to Opioid Overdose and Prevention and Response Training Outcomes

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jody Chou, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Tabitha Moses, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Jessica Moreno, Beaumont Medical Group
Michael Garmo, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Katherine Loveluck, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Kaycee Ching, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Mark Greenwald, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Eva Waineo, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The goal of this study is to evaluate the effectiveness of the newly piloted Opioid Overdose Prevention and Response Training (OOPRT) and to assess baseline differences in participant characteristics that may affect learning outcomes.

Background and relevance of the study:

Opioid overdose is the leading cause of preventable death in the USA, and fentanyl continues to be the leading contributor of all drug-related overdose deaths in Wayne County (Detroit Area) ^{1,2}. As part of a city-wide effort to reduce opioid deaths in Detroit, Wayne State University School of Medicine (WSUSOM) worked with current medical students to develop and pilot the OOPRT program.

Design and Methods:

All students at WSUSOM were invited to complete a baseline survey that evaluated their knowledge (OOKS) and attitudes (OOAS) towards opioid overdose and naloxone (3), as well as their attitudes towards individuals with SUD (adapted from Medical Condition Regard Scale) (4). Two cohorts were enrolled in the study. Cohort 1 consisted of 32 students in Years 1-3 who volunteered for OOPRT and Cohort 2 consisted of 32 Year 4 students for which OOPRT was required. Students filled out the same previously described survey Immediately following the training.

Results:

Improvements in total opioid overdose knowledge and attitudes were found in both cohorts of students (p<0.001), with Cohort 1 demonstrating improvement across more domains than Cohort 2. There was no baseline difference in knowledge (p=0.124), while notably, there were baseline differences in attitude: Cohort 1 felt less competent than Cohort 2 at managing opioid overdoses (p<0.05) and had better regard for patients with SUD (9/11 MCRS subscales with p<0.05).

Conclusions:

The results highlight the benefits of OOPRT program for students in all stages of undergraduate medical education. Future studies involving larger cohorts of medical students are needed to validate findings and explore the impact of student attitudes on learning outcomes.

References:

- 1. Rudd RA, Aleshire N, Zibbell JE, Gladden RM. Increases in Drug and Opioid Overdose Deaths--United States, 2000-2014. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2016;64(50-51):1378-1382.
- 2. Arfken CL. National Drug Early Warning System (NDEWS) Wayne County (Detroit Area) Sentinel Community Site (SCS) Drug Use Patterns and Trends, 2018. . 2018.
- 3. Williams AV, Strang J, Marsden J. Development of Opioid Overdose Knowledge (OOKS) and Attitudes (OOAS) Scales for take-home naloxone training evaluation. Drug Alcohol Depend. 2013;132(1-2):383-386.
- 4. Christison GW, Haviland MG, Riggs ML. The medical condition regard scale: measuring reactions to diagnoses. Acad Med. 2002;77(3):257-262.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jody.chou2@med.wayne.edu]

<u>Clinical performance evaluation in a longitudinal integrated clerkship:</u> Students' performance progression

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Xiaomei Song, Central Michigan University College of Medicine Wendy Biggs, Central Michigan University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Students at our school complete a 24-week longitudinal integrated clerkship (LIC) and five 4-week inpatient clerkships during Year 3. They are assigned to either fall or spring LIC. Using a competency-based rubric of 17 Likert-scale questions, preceptors

Background and relevance of the study:

Literature demonstrates the complexity of clinical performance assessment such as validity evidence of assessment tools, bias and rater behaviors, and narrative feedback (Hawkins, et. al., 2010; Raaum, et. al., 2019; Chan, et. al., 2017). Few studies examined progression of student competencies based on preceptors' ratings repeated at different timings that hinged on endorsements for students' progression. Little is known about the trajectory of medical students' growth in clinical settings and how the timing of their LIC might impact students' performance.

Design and Methods:

This study examined data collected from 90 students in AY2018-19 using SPSS. Due to violation of normality, the nonparametric testing Wilcoxon signed rank test was used to examine students' progression and Mann-Whitney Test for the impact of timing on clinical performance.

Results:

Results showed a statistically significant improvement of overall students' competencies from Week 8 to 16 and Week 16 to 24. The improvement varied with Patient Care demonstrated the largest improvement, Professionalism moderate and Practice-based Learning least. Spring semester students performed significantly higher than the fall group in Week 8. However, no significant difference appeared between two groups by Week 16. Students in the spring semester performed significantly lower than the fall group by Week 24.

Conclusions:

The study confirmed improved students' competencies during the trajectory of 24 weeks of LIC and the sequence of the LIC before or after hospital-based clerkships had no effect by the end of the LIC.

References:

Chan, T. M., Sherbino, J., & Mercuri, M. (2017), Nuance and noise: Lessons learned from longitudinal aggregated assessment data. Journal of Graduate Medical Education, 724-29.

Harkins, R. E., Margolis, M. J., Durning, S. J., & Norcini, J. J. (2010). Constructing a validity argument for the mini-clinical evaluation exercise: A review of the research. Academic Medicine, 85, 1453-61.

Raaum, S., E., Lappe, K., Colbert-Getz, J. M., & Milne, C. K. (2019). Milestone implementation's impact on narrative comments and perception of feedback fro internal medical residents: A mixed methods study. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 19, 929-35.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [song5x@cmich.edu]

<u>Competitive Specialty Fourth Year Rotations: Fourth Year Medical Student Perspectives</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Ye Lin, University of Chicago

Olivia Schultz, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Daniel Golden, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Jeanne Farnan, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Sarah Stein, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Rakesh Navuluri, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Edwin Ramos, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Fuad Baroody, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Russell Reid, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Yasmin Hasan, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Mark Ferguson, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Tessa Balach, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study characterizes why fourth year medical students (M4s) applying into competitive specialties choose to rotate at specific institutions, the educational experiences available during these rotations, and the students' confidence to function as a first-year resident.

Background and relevance of the study:

M4s applying into competitive specialties complete multiple clinical rotations in their desired specialty. These rotations represent an opportunity for students to prepare to function as residents. However, prior studies report that these elective rotations offer limited structured education.

Design and Methods:

An anonymous survey was distributed to 2,747 applicants to seven University of Chicago residency programs. "Competitive" specialties were defined using an applicant to residency position ratio > 1.0 in the 2017 NRMP Match (dermatology, interventional radiology, neurosurgery, orthopedic surgery, otolaryngology, plastic surgery, and radiation oncology).

Results:

424/2747 (15.4%) applicants completed the survey, reporting on 1,369 rotations. Median number of rotations was 3. 33% of rotations were completed at home institutions. 33% of away rotations were chosen primarily to obtain a residency position at that institution. On a scale of 0 (audition elective) to 100 (educational elective), students rated the primary goal of the rotations as 40 ± 20 . 68% of rotations yielded letters of recommendations. Educational activities during rotations included faculty/chief-resident led case discussions (53%), lectures (30%), and hands-on sessions (25%). 31% of rotations were reported as having no structured didactics.

Conclusions:

M4s applying to competitive specialties are completing multiple fourth year rotations with limited structured didactics. With most rotations yielding letters of recommendation for residency, it is not surprising that students perceive these as more auditions rather than educational experiences. Finding a good fit between program and applicant should not occur at the expense of education. Adding structured curricula to M4 rotations in competitive specialties could take advantage of the time these students spend completing these rotations to better prepare them to function as resident physicians.

References

Lyss-Lerman P, Teherani A, Aagaard E, Loeser H, Cooke M, Harper GM. What Training is Needed in the Fourth Year of Medical School? Views of Residency Program Directors. Acad Med J Assoc Am Med Coll. 2009;84(7):823-829. doi:10.1097/ACM.0b013e3181a82426

Winterton M, Ahn J, Bernstein J. The prevalence and cost of medical student visiting rotations. BMC Med Educ. 2016;16(1):291. doi:10.1186/s12909-016-0805-z

Jagadeesan VS, Raleigh DR, Koshy M, Howard AR, Chmura SJ, Golden DW. A national radiation oncology medical student clerkship survey: Didactic curricular components increase confidence in clinical competency. Int J Radiat Oncol Biol Phys. 2014;88(1):51-56. doi:10.1016/j.ijrobp.2013.11.206

Drolet BC, Brower JP, Lifehez SD, Janis JE, Liu PY. Away rotations and matching in integrated plastic surgery residency: applicant and program director perspectives. Plast Reconstr Surg. 2016;137(4):1337-1343. doi:10.1097/PRS.00000000000002029 O'Donnell SW, Drolet BC, Brower JP, LaPorte D, Eberson CP. Orthopaedic Surgery Residency: Perspectives of Applicants and Program Directors on Medical Student Away Rotations. J Am Acad Orthop Surg. 2017;25(1):61-68. doi:10.5435/JAAOS-D-16-00099

For more information about this abstract please contact: [ye.lin@uchospitals.edu]

Context impacts ob gyn resident performance and attitude after participation in a quality improvement curriculum

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Stephanie Mann, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Tristan McNamara, Unviersity of Vermont Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do contextual factors affect residents' attitude, confidence, and ability to apply their QI knowledge after participating in a targeted QI curriculum?

Background and relevance of the study:

In order for QI to be perceived as a critical core value, there must be a deeper understanding of what aspects of the individual learner, the learning environment, and the interaction between the learner and his/her environment impact QI education. Therefore, successful implementation of QI curricula can be enhanced by attending to local contexts (learners, faculty, institutional setting). The research to date does not address specifically how context impacts residents' confidence, attitude towards QI work or ability to apply QI knowledge.

Design and Methods:

An explanatory sequential mixed methods design was . First and second year residents were exposed to a didactic and experiential 11-month QI curriculum. Pre/post curriculum assessments included QI knowledge application (QIKAT-R, range 0-9) and a questionnaire measuring confidence/attitude about QI (range 6-50). Quantitative data were analyzed using a two-way mixed design ANOVA. After completion of the assessments, participants engaged in semi structured interviews to facilitate understanding of how contextual factors affected their attitude, self-confidence and/or their ability to apply their QI knowledge.

Results:

37 residents from four residencies participated in the curriculum. The overall QIKAT-R score $(3.8\pm0.3~vs.~4.9\pm0.3,~p<.0001,~\eta2=.33)$ and composite self-efficacy score $(32.5\pm0.7~vs.~36.6\pm0.8,~p<.0001,~\eta2=.55)$ significantly changed after the curriculum. Semi-structured interviews revealed that prior QI exposure, perceived department value of QI, engagement of the faculty preceptor, and time allotted for the curriculum were associated with a change in QI knowledge and overall attitude about QI practice.

Conclusions:

This study demonstrates that exposure to a targeted QI curriculum will result in increased resident confidence and attitude in applying this knowledge. Individual and departmental contextual factors are important to consider when designing and implementing a QI curriculum.

References:

Liao, J.M., J.P. Co, and A. Kachalia, Providing Educational Content and Context for Training the Next Generation of Physicians in Quality Improvement. Acad Med, 2015. 90(9): p. 1241-5.

Jones, A.C., S.A. Shipman, and G. Ogrinc, Key characteristics of successful quality improvement curricula in physician education: a realist review. BMJ Qual Saf, 2015. 24(1): p. 77-88.

Bate, P., G. Robert, and M. Dixon-Woods, Perspectives on Context, P. Bate, Editor. 2014. p. 1488-9.

Kaplan, H.C., et al., The influence of context on quality improvement success in health care: a systematic review of the literature. Milbank Q, 2010. 88(4): p. 500-59.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [stephanie.mann@utoledo.edu]

<u>Creating a More Diverse and Competitive Applicant Pool with Targeted Supplemental Advising</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Victoria Biach, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Daniel Bird, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This project aims to address disparities in medical school applications and attract a more diverse and competitive applicant pool by supplementing undergraduate advising while informing potential applicants about the University of South Dakota Sanford School of Medicine

Background and relevance of the study:

Research has shown that individuals from underserved areas and lower socioeconomic classes are dissuaded from pursuing a career in medicine due to a stereotyped view of doctors and medical school as well as by a lack of informational resources. Students of all backgrounds lose interest in becoming a doctor due to a lack of proper advising.

Design and Methods:

A survey was created for premedical students attending colleges in South Dakota. This survey asked about medical admissions information students struggled to find. A second survey completed by newly matriculated SSOM medical students focused on their premedical advising, the application process, and MCAT preparation. Based on the data, two MCAT informational documents and a document to highlight SSOM programs were created for students and advisors.

Results:

Eighty-five undergraduate students responded to the pre-project survey that showed a minority of students knew of the research and clinical programs USD wants to highlight. 85% of these students struggled to find information about clinical requirements in medical school, and 63% struggled to find MCAT advice. Ninety-eight students completed the post-matriculation survey, that showed 51% of students wished they would have had MCAT Advice.

Conclusions:

This project identified areas that undergraduate students struggled to find information about and then created documents to provide these students with the missing knowledge. Current SSOM students provided additional information by sharing the tactics they utilized to navigate the admissions process. Through these resources, undergraduate advising will be improved, leading to a more diverse and qualified applicant pool.

References:

Barr DA, Gonzalez ME, Wanat SF. The Leaky Pipeline: Factors Associated With Early Decline in Interest in Premedical Studies Among Underrepresented Minority Undergraduate Students. Academic Medicine. 2008;83(5):503-511. doi:10.1097/acm.0b013e31816bda16

Greenhalgh T, Seyan K, Boynton P. "Not a university type": focus group study of social class, ethnic, and sex differences in school pupils perceptions about medical school. Bmj. 2004;328(7455):1541. doi:10.1136/bmj.328.7455.1541

Grumbach K, Mendoza R. Disparities In Human Resources: Addressing The Lack Of Diversity In The Health Professions. Health Affairs.v

2008;27(2):413-422. Doi:10.1377/hlthaff.27.2.413

Morgan HK, Haggins A, Lypson ML, Ross P. The Importance of the Premedical Experience in Diversifying the Health Care Workforce. Academic Medicine. 2016;91(11):1488-1491. doi:10.1097/acm.00000000001404

Sklar DP. Preparation for Medical School: reflections on the MCAT exam, premedical education, and the medical school application process. Academic Medicine. 2013;88(5):553-554. doi:10.1097/acm.0b013e31828b7c8f

The Core Competencies for Entering Medical Students. AAMC Students, Applicants and Residents. https://students-residents.aamc.org/applying-medical-school/article/core-competencies/. Published September 8, 2017. Accessed April 20, 2019. Wang JY, Lin H, Lewis PY, Fetterman DM, Gesundheit N. Is a Career in Medicine the Right Choice? The Impact of a Physician Shadowing Program on Undergraduate Premedical Students. Academic Medicine. 2015;90(5):629-633. doi:10.1097/acm.0000000000000015

For more information about this abstract please contact: [tori.biach@coyotes.usd.edu]

<u>Diagnostic Assessment of the Gastrointestinal Physiology Course in the</u> Foundational Science Curriculum for Medical Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Bindu Menon, University of Toledo College of Medicine Kelly Kovacs, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Coral Matus, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Jeremy Laukka, The University of Toledo College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The objective of the present study was to qualitatively analyze the outcome of a learning strategy using student performance in the assessments as an index.

Background and relevance of the study:

With the introduction of diverse learning strategies in preclinical education, there is an imperative for outcome assessment. This study tried to determine the efficacy of a pedagogy introduced in our new curriculum, using a cognitive diagnostic assessment¹ which identifies the students' mastery of contents.

Design and Methods:

In the gastrointestinal physiology system for M2s, students were provided with short online learning modules (LMs) to prepare them for the more in-depth in-class sessions (ICLs). The instructor then identified six binary skills one or more of which were marked to be necessary for answering each question from this content on the exam. A non-parametric Q-matrix estimator² was used to validate the question-by-skill Q matrix. Attendance in the in-class sessions and the usage of learning modules were tracked and analyzed for correlation to the content mastery.

Results:

We found that 82% of the exam takers attained mastery of skills from the contents in the LMs. 53% of the students acquired mastery of ICL contents. Interestingly, only 28% acquired complete mastery, but they belonged to the subgroup that attained content mastery from ICLs. 70% of the students who attained content mastery availed the materials from ICLs, either by attending the class or by using session recording. Most importantly, the students who did not attend the ICLs or use the LMs did not attain complete mastery of the subject.

Conclusions:

This study demonstrates the strength of e-technology as a learning enhancer when used as a facilitating feature integrated into the traditional lecture-style classes. This type of scientific analysis provides an opportunity for our instructors to identify the areas of weakness in the system and to appropriately modify the strategies.

References:

1. Junker, B. W., & Sijtsma, K. (2001). Cognitive assessment models with few assumptions, and connections with nonparametric item response theory. Applied Psychological measurement, 25, 258-272.

2. Lim, Y. S., & Drasgow, F. (2017). Nonparametric calibration of item by attribute matrix in cognitive diagnosis, Multivariate Behavioral Research, 52, 562-575.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [bindu.menon@utoledo.edu]

Does Rotation Service Assignment Affect the Teaching Experience and Knowledge Gained for Medical Students during their Core Pediatric Clerkship?

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Riley Boland, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Jared Kevern, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Allison Heizelman, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Raquel Tatar, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Kirstin Nackers, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Does assigned service (hospitalist versus non-hospitalist) during the core pediatric rotation impact teaching exposure and knowledge gained by medical students?

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical students complete a four-week core pediatric clerkship rotating on a hospitalist or non-hospitalist service. Due to concerns about variable exposure to patient cases and teaching across services, we evaluated the frequency of informal resident-led teaching on hospitalist and non-hospitalist services, as well as measuring knowledge gained by students during their clerkship.

Design and Methods:

For this year-long observational study, students are completing 20-question pre- and post-rotation knowledge assessments developed using PreTest questions¹ modeled after the NBME Pediatrics subject exam². Residents are providing weekly data including clinical service, post-graduate year, and number and specialty of topics taught. Plan to compare knowledge acquisition with pre-/post-test scores, and educational experience by teaching topics on hospitalist and non-hospitalist services using t-test, adjusting for hospital census.

Results:

Thirty-two students have participated in the assessments so far. Preliminary, unadjusted results for 75% of the study period demonstrate a trend towards significance for greater knowledge gained while on a non-hospitalist service (85% vs 81%, p=0.17). Residents on the hospitalist service taught more on average per week than the residents on the non-hospitalist services (2.8 vs 2.1, p=0.037). Senior residents (N=127) also taught more than interns (N=80) per week (2.6 vs 1.9, p=0.006).

Conclusions:

Our data demonstrates students on the hospitalist service (N=18) are exposed to more teaching topics, on average, than those on non-hospitalist services (N=14). Increased informal teaching from senior residents is likely related to knowledge and time available. While there is a trend toward significance, currently there is no difference in knowledge gained between groups, suggesting no detriment to students assigned to a non-hospitalist service. Future directions may

include identifying and implementing highest yield teaching topics, and data collection on selfstudy time on either service.

- References:
 1. Hormann MD, Yetman RJ. Pre-Test Pediatrics, 14th Edition, 2015.
- 2. National Board of Medical Examiners. Clinical Science: Pediatrics, 2017, www.nbme.org/Schools/Subject-Exams/Subjects/clinicalsci_ped.html.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [rboland@uwhealth.org]

Empathy and Burnout change during Primary Clinical Clerkship Year and Community Size

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Rebecca Redetzke, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Shane Schellpfeffer, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Does the community size a student spends their Primary Clinical Clerkship year within impact the change in empathy and burnout experienced over the course of the year?

Background and relevance of the study:

Existing research shows that as students' progress through medical school empathy decreases and burnout increases¹. Previous research done at our institution shows that student perception of how valued they are correlates to the community size they learned in². We posited that other measures of student wellness may also be impacted by community size.

Design and Methods:

We sent students a survey at two points during their Pillar 2 (Our student's primary clinical clerkship year) to measure their empathy and their burnout. Students completed the self-assessment at the beginning of Pillar 2 and again at the end of Pillar 2. We collected the data for 3 academic years. A 2X2 between-group multivariate analysis of variance was performed on two dependent variables: empathy and burnout. Independent variables were time and campus. SPSS MANOVA was used for the analysis.

Results:

Across all campuses students showed an increase in burnout and a decrease in empathy. We found significant differences in the change to both Burnout and Empathy at the five locations we sampled. We found that the students in the two smallest community groups experienced less decrease in empathy and less increase in burnout than their peers in the largest three communities.

Conclusions:

Community size seemed to impact the student's change in empathy and burnout, with a smaller community size appearing to be protective.

References:

- 1. Diseker RA, Michielutte R. An analysis of empathy in medical students before and following clinical experience. J Med Educ 1981; 56:1004-1010.
- 2. Dyrbye LN, Thomas MR, Huntington JL, Lawson KL, Novotny PJ, Sloan JA, Shanafelt TD. Personal life events and medical student burnout: A multicenter study. Acad Med 2006; 81(4):374-384.
- 3. Anderson SM, Simanton E. Correlations between community size and student perceptions of value. Rural Remote Health 2017; 17(3); 42-46

For more information about this abstract please contact: [rebecca.redetzke@usd.edu]

Gender Bias and Sexism: Emerging Themes in Third-year Medical Students' Written Reflections in a Required Health Disparities Core Day Course

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Caroline Paul, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Shobhina Chheda, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Roberta Rusch, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health, UW Center for Interprofessional Practice and Education

Gary Beck Dallaghan, University of North Carolina School of Medicine Andrea Mason, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health, Clinical Teaching and Assessment Center

Janice Hanson, George Washington University School of Medicine and Health Sciences

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To begin to explore medical student perspectives regarding gender bias

Background and relevance of the study:

Gender bias in healthcare settings has been well-described¹⁻¹². Students' perspectives regarding gender bias in clinical experiences have received less attention.

Design and Methods:

A Health Disparities course including simulated clinical scenarios required students to complete a written reflection per the LeAP rubric¹³. In this IRB-approved qualitative study, we sorted reflections written in 2014-2016 to identify common topics. We used inductive thematic analysis to identify themes in the reflections that addressed gender bias.

Results:

The 876 reflections were sorted into 10 topics. The most common selected topics were: spirituality (27%), gender bias/sexism (22%), and socioeconomic status (11%). Preliminary analysis of reflections focusing on gender bias suggested the following emerging themes:

- 1) Emotions of anger and discomfort
 - "I had an incredibly emotional response ...—in a few short minutes, my blood was quickly boiling"
- 2) Defeatist mentality (acceptance of sexism)
 - "How can you challenge patient beliefs in a way that is not patronizing and will not alienate them as patients? How do you challenge attendings or colleagues without being confrontational?"
- 3) Tension between students' self-advocacy and prioritizing patients' perspectives "I continue to struggle with wanting to be respectful and courteous but also wanting to be firm, direct and confident."
- 4) Feeling unprepared when faced with sexism; desire to develop a plan for future response
 - "In the heat of the moment, I find it hard to put together the right words without sounding overly harsh or defaulting..."

Conclusions:

Sexism-themed reflections described students' emotional responses to gender bias in clinical encounters. Further thematic analysis may inform efforts to support students as they develop self-awareness regarding their responses to bias and professionally appropriate ways to manage the emotional challenge of personally-experienced gender bias, advocate for themselves and peers, and counter implicit and explicit gender bias encountered in their own clinical practice.

References:

References:

- 1. Samra R. Gender-responsive education and training approaches to improving physician well-being. Med Educ. 2019 Mar;53(3):216-218.
- 2. Carnes M, Bartels CM, Kaatz A, Kolehmainen C. Why is John More Likely to Become Department Chair Than Jennifer? Trans Am Clin Climatol Assoc. 2015;126:197-214.
- 3. Cheng LF, Yang HC. Learning about gender on campus: an analysis of the hidden curriculum for medical students. Med Educ. 2015 Mar;49(3):321-31.
- 4. Hardeman RR, Burgess D, Phelan S, Yeazel M, Nelson D, van Ryn M. Medical student socio-demographic characteristics and attitudes toward patient centered care: do race, socioeconomic status and gender matter? A report from the Medical Student CHANGES study. Patient Educ Couns. 2015 Mar;98(3):350-5.
- 5. Hill E, Vaughan S. The only girl in the room: how paradigmatic trajectories deter female students from surgical careers. Med Educ. 2013 Jun;47(6):547-56.
- 6. Stratton TD, Conigliaro RL. Does gender moderate medical students' assessments of unprofessional behavior? J Gen Intern Med. 2012 Dec;27(12):1643-8.
- 7. Lempp H, Seale C. Medical students' perceptions in relation to ethnicity and gender: a qualitative study. BMC Med Educ. 2006 Mar 8;6:17.
- 8. Stratton TD, McLaughlin MA, Witte FM, Fosson SE, Nora LM. Does students' exposure to gender discrimination and sexual harassment in medical school affect specialty choice and residency program selection? Acad Med. 2005 Apr;80(4):400-8.
- 9. Nicholson, S. 'So you row, do you? You don't look like a rower.' An account of medical students' experience of sexism. Med Educ. 2002 Nov;36(11):1057-63.
- 10. Van Wyk JM, Naidoo SS, Moodley K, Higgins-Opitz SB. Perceptions of final-year medical students towards the impact of gender on their training and future practice. Adv Med Educ Pract. 2016 Sep 23;7:541-550.
- 11. Hamberg K, Johansson EE. Medical students' attitudes to gender issues in the role and career of physicians: a qualitative study conducted in Sweden. Med Teach. 2006 Nov;28(7):635-41.
- 12. Lempp H, Seale C. Medical students' perceptions in relation to ethnicity and gender: a qualitative study. BMC Med Educ. 2006 Mar 8;6:17.
- 13. Aronson L, Niehaus B, Lindow J, Robertson PA, O'sullivan PS. (2011) Development and pilot testing of a reflective learning guide for medical education. Med Teach. 2011;33(10):e515-21.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [crpaul@wisc.edu]

How well do practice exams predict medical students' Step 1 score?

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Jeff Oury, Indiana University School of Medicine Madeline Weber, Indiana University School of Medicine Leslie Hoffman, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study was to examine the association between medical students' CBSSA scores and Step 1 scores to determine how well these practice exams predict actual Step 1 scores.

Background and relevance of the study:

USMLE Step 1 is the first of three licensure examinations required to practice medicine in the U.S. and is a measure of competitiveness for residency. Students often use NBME Comprehensive Basic Science Self-Assessments (CBSSAs) to prepare for Step 1. However, students' performance on CBSSAs is often inconsistent, which may lead some to question their preparedness.

Design and Methods:

Hierarchical multiple regression was used to determine how well CBSSA scores predicted actual Step 1 score. A baseline regression model examined the effects of students' gender, MCAT score, and course failures on Step 1 performance. Each CBSSA score was then added to the model to determine its impact on overall model fit and the association between each CBSSA score and actual Step 1 score.

Results:

The population included 337 students who took Step 1 between March and September 2018 and took at least 1 CBSSA. Students took an average of 3.99 ± 1.51 CBSSAs. CBSSA scores strongly correlated with Step 1 scores (r = .668-.838; p < .001). Each CBSSA significantly predicted Step 1 score and explained 22-32% of the variance above the baseline model. Changes in CBSSA scores had little impact on Step 1 score with coefficients ranging from .83-1.07. Course failures, by comparison, predicted a 7-22-point decrease in Step 1 score.

Conclusions:

Changes in CBSSA scores predicted small, incremental changes in Step 1 score. The variable with the greatest impact in each model was a course failure in the pre-clinical years. The results of this study will be useful to future medical students as they prepare for Step 1, and academic advisors to help identify students who may require additional assistance to prepare for Step 1.

References:

Glew RH, Ripkey DR, Swanson DB. Relationship between students' performances on the NBME Comprehensive Basic Science Examination and the USMLE Step 1: A longitudinal investigation at one school. Academic Medicine. 1997; 72:1097-1102. Sawhill A, Butler A, Ripkey D, Swanson DB, Subhiyah R, Thelman J, Walsh W, Holtzman KZ, Angelucci K. Using the NBME Self-Assessments to Project Performance on USMLE Step 1 and Step 2: Impact of Test Administration Conditions. Academic Medicine. 1997; 79(10 Supplement):S55-S57.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lesahoff@iu.edu]

Impact of a Rural Longitudinal Integrated Clerkship on Workforce Outcomes

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Logan Butler, University of Minnesota Medical School Kirby Clark, University of Minnesota Medical School Mark Rosenberg, University of Minnesota Medical School Emily Melcher, University of Minnesota Medical School Andrew Olson, University of Minnesota Medical School Jackie Gauer, University of Minnesota Medical School

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study was to determine the association between participation in a rural LIC and the desired graduate workforce outcomes of 1) practice in-state 2) specialty in primary care, especially family medicine, and 3) practice in a rural settin

Background and relevance of the study:

Nationwide, the United States faces a shortage of physicians in rural practice and primary care specialties. Medical schools can play an important role in addressing this shortage by producing graduates who fill these gaps, and it is part of the mission of land-grant public institutions to meet the unique workforce needs of their home state. The Rural Physician Associate Program (RPAP) longitudinal integrated clerkship (LIC) at the University of Minnesota Medical School (UMMS) was created in part to address these needs.

Design and Methods:

Practice outcomes were analyzed from 9,264 graduates of UMMS from 1972-2016. Data from internal UMMS student databases were linked to data from the American Medical Association (AMA) Physician Masterfile and the National Plan and Provider Enumeration System's (NPPES) National Provider Identifier (NPI) registry, demonstrating a novel method to link educational data to practice outcomes.

Results:

Significant differences in workforce outcomes were demonstrated between UMMS graduates who participated in the RPAP LIC versus those who did not. Compared to non-RPAP graduates, more RPAP graduates practice in-state (64.23% vs. 52.93%), specialize in primary care (75.61% vs. 49.28%) -- the difference is particularly pronounced in family medicine (61.71% vs. 18.26%) -- and practice in rural settings (47.40% vs. 16.31%). Chi-square tests of independence found significant relationships (p < 0.001) between RPAP participation and all three practice outcomes under study.

Conclusions:

These findings demonstrate an association between participation in a rural LIC and desired workforce outcomes. Further studies are needed to explore causality as well as characteristics of those learners who are likely to participate in a rural LIC.

References:

Parlier, Anna Beth et al. "The Road to Rural Primary Care: A Narrative Review of Factors That Help Develop, Recruit, and Retain Rural Primary Care Physicians." Academic Medicine 1 Jan. 2018: 130–140. Academic Medicine. Web.

Rabinowitz HK et al. "The Relationship between Entering Medical Students' Backgrounds and Career Plans and Their Rural Practice Outcomes Three Decades Later." Academic Medicine 87.4 (2012): 493–497. Print.

Wendling, Andrea L, et al. "Defining Rural: The Predictive Value of Medical School Applicants' Rural Characteristics on Intent to Practice in a Rural Community." Academic Medicine 94 (2019): S14-S20. Web.

Zink, Therese et al. "Efforts to Graduate More Primary Care Physicians and Physicians Who Will Practice in Rural Areas: Examining Outcomes from the University of Minnesota-Duluth and the Rural Physician Associate Program." Academic Medicine 85.4 (2010): 599–604. Academic Medicine. Web.

Verby, J. E., and J. P. Connolly. "Rural Physician's Associate Program." Academic Medicine 47.11 (1972): 907–908. Academic Medicine. Web.

Verby, John E. et al. "Changing the Medical School Curriculum to Improve Patient Access to Primary Care." JAMA: The Journal of the American Medical Association 266.1 (1991): 110–113. JAMA: The Journal of the American Medical Association. Web

Halaas, Gwen Wagstrom et al. "Recruitment and Retention of Rural Physicians: Outcomes from the Rural Physician Associate Program of Minnesota." Journal of Rural Health 24.4 (2008): 345–352. Journal of Rural Health. Web.

Brooks, Kathleen D., Diann S. Eley, and Therese Zink. "Profiles of Rural Longitudinal Integrated Clerkship Students: A Descriptive Study of Six Consecutive Student Cohorts." Medical Teacher 36.2 (2014): 148–154. Medical Teacher. Web. Wendling, Andrea L. et al. "Thirty Years Training Rural Physicians: Outcomes from the Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Rural Physician Program." Academic Medicine 91.1 (2016): 113–119. Academic Medicine. Web. American Medical Association. AMA Physician Masterfile, 2019. CSV file.

National Plan and Provider Enumeration System. NPI Registry, 2019. CSV file.

Ratcliffe, Michael et al. "Defining Rural at the U.S. Censusu Bureau - ACSGEO-1." U.S. Censusu Bureau December (2016): 1–8. U.S. Censusu Bureau. Web.

US Census Bureau. "Urban Area Relationship Files Record Layouts." Urban Area Relationship Files Record Layouts, 26 June 2018, https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/geography/technical-documentation/records-layout/urban-area-record-layouts.html#par textimage 5.

Tableau Server [computer program]. Version 2019.1.3. Seattle, WA: Tableau Software, Inc.; 2003.

©OpenStreetMap contributors. OpenStreetMap data are licensed under the Open Data Commons Open Database License (openstreetmap.org/copyright).

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lbutler@umn.edu]

<u>Interprofessional Education in Medical School: Is it effective in changing physician knowledge and attitude?</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Robert Nolan, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Anna Volerman, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Julie Oyler, University of Chicago Division of the Biological Sciences The Pritzker School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Does formal interprofessional training during undergraduate medical education impact residents' knowledge, skills, or attitudes on interprofessional collaboration?

Background and relevance of the study:

Based on accreditation standards, curricula focused on interprofessional teams have been introduced within undergraduate medical education. Nearly all medical schools (n=140) currently incorporate interprofessional education. While studies have assessed effects of curricula on knowledge, attitudes, and beliefs following training, no studies have assessed whether impacts last into residency. 1-6

Design and Methods:

A cross-sectional study was conducted with first-year internal medicine residents (2015-2018). Each resident completed a questionnaire prior to ambulatory education sessions. The questionnaire asked about formal interprofessional education during medical school (if received, structure) and assessed knowledge, skills, and attitudes about interprofessional practice. Knowledge-based questions asked about roles and responsibilities of nursing staff using a case-based approach. Attitudes were assessed using the validated Attitudes Toward Health Care Teams Scale. Self-reported skills and attitudes were assessed via Likert scale. For analysis, participants were stratified based on whether they received formal interprofessional training in medical school. Chi-squared tests were utilized to compare knowledge, skills, and attitudes between groups.

Results:

A total of 120 first-year internal medicine residents (85.7%) completed the questionnaire. Two-thirds of residents reported receiving formal interprofessional education during medical school. Residents described varying education formats, including classroom-based, shadowing, and hands-on clinical experiences. When comparing residents who did and did not receive formal interprofessional education during medical school, there was no statistically significant difference in knowledge, self-assessed skills, or attitudes (all p>0.05).

Conclusions:

Interprofessional education has become increasingly incorporated in undergraduate medical

education, but intermediate-term benefits are not clear. Residents' positive attitudes about interprofessional practice may make it challenging to identify differences between groups. Future studies should evaluate if specific formats or doses of interprofessional education are associated with improved knowledge, skills, and attitudes in residents.

References:

- 1. Berrocal Y, Fisher J, Regan J, Christison AL. Dehydration: a multidisciplinary case-based discussion for first-year medical students. MedEdPORTAL.
- 2. Karpa K, Pinto C, Possanza A, et al. Stroke simulation activity: a standardized patient case for interprofessional student learning. MedEdPORTAL.
- 3. Willgerodt M, Sonney J, Liner D, Barchet L. The power of a team: using unfolding video cases in interprofessional education for advanced health. MedEdPORTAL.
- 4. Cichon, I, Klapper, B. Interprofessional approaches in undergraduate medical education. Bundesgesundheitsblatt Gesundheitsforschung Gesundheitsschutz. 2018 Feb;61(2):195-200. doi: 10.1007/s00103-017-2672-0.
- 5. Kennedy BB, Russell RG Martinez W et al. Development of an interprofessional clinical learning environment report card. J Prof Nurs. 2019 Jul Aug;35(4):314-319. doi: 10.1016/j.profnurs.2019.02.003. Epub 2019 Feb 6.
- 6. E.L. Wooding, T.C. Gale & V. Maynard (2019) Evaluation of teamwork assessment tools for interprofessional simulation: a systematic literature review, Journal of Interprofessional Care, DOI: 10.1080/13561820.2019.1650730
- 7. Leedham-Green KE, Knight A, Iedema R. Intra- and interprofessional practices through fresh eyes: a qualitative analysis of medical students' early workplace experiences. BMC Med Educ. 2019 Jul 29;19(1):287. doi: 10.1186/s12909-019-1722-8.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [robert.nolan3389@gmail.com]

Keys to Implementation Success: A Qualitative Analysis of Early Implementation of Health Systems Science Curricula

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Kelly Caverzagie, University of Nebraska College of Medicine Julie Byerley, University of North Carolina School of Medicine Barbara (Kay) Grant, Nebraska Medicine Carla Snyder, Nebraska Medicine Gary Beck Dallaghan, University of North Carolina School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This participatory action research project sought to elucidate key institutional, cultural and operational factors around implementation of health systems sciences (HSS) curriculum. Specifically, what contextual factors are critical for educational leade

Background and relevance of the study:

The American Medical Association's (AMA) "Accelerating Change in Medical Education" initiative aims to develop the medical school of the future. While many medical schools are implementing HSS, many struggle to integrate HSS into their curriculum. AMA implementation data includes integration efforts, hours dedicated to HSS competencies, and instructional and assessment methods¹.

Contextual factors that underlie formal implementation decisions are ill-defined^{2,3}. For example, the background and culture of the medical school related to experiential learning; the make-up of the faculty and student body; the appreciation of the need for teamwork for physician competence; the relationship between the medical school and affiliated health system; and availability of adequate experiential learning opportunities.

Design and Methods:

Participatory action research relies on qualitative methods to evaluate the impact of collaborations. Individuals from AMA-funded schools participated in semi-structured interviews from March to July, 2019. Interview transcripts were independently reviewed and coded by four members of the research team. These codes were reviewed and discussed for broader themes.

Results:

16 medical schools were interviewed. Over 70 codes were identified in the transcripts. Broad themes were identified, such as challenges to implementation, which involved operational relationships between the school and health care system. Successes and barriers were noted by the presence or absence of a faculty champion.

Conclusions:

HSS has been defined as the science of health care delivery. Having faculty champions and strong relationships with the health care system are critical for effective integration of HSS within the medical school curricula. Participants shared valuable lessons learned regarding success and barriers to effective HSS curricular adoption.

References:

- 1. Gonzalo JD, Dekhtyar M, Starr SR, et al. Health systems science curricula in undergraduate medical education: Identifying and defining a potential curricular framework. Acad Med. 2018; e-pub ahead of print. DOI: 10.1097/ACM.000000000001177. 2. Gonzalo JD, Caverzagie KJ, Hawkins RE, et al. Concerns and responses for integrating health systems science into medical education. Acad Med. 2018; 93:843-9.
- 3. Mills LM, Hoffman AB, Khan A, et al. Integrating health systems science in early undergraduate medicale ducation: BGarriers to implementation and lessons learned. MedEdPublish. 2017;6(4):35. DOI: 10.15694/mep.2017.000204.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [gary_beck_dallaghan@med.unc.edu]

Leadership Views on the Barriers and Incentives to Clinical Preceptorship

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Joanne Bernstein, Medical College of Wisconsin Theresa Maatman, Medical College of Wisconsin Kristina Kaljo, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study aimed to describe leadership perceptions of preceptor incentives and barriers to better understand knowledge gaps, existing incentives, potential solutions, and barriers to solution implementation.

Background and relevance of the study:

Clinical education often relies on a one-to-one student-preceptor model. Recruiting and retaining quality preceptors to sustain this model has become increasingly difficult at academic institutions across the nation. While ample literature describes preceptor barriers and incentives as viewed by physicians, few studies explore the issue from academic and clinical leadership perspectives.

Design and Methods:

Between February and July 2019, the researchers conducted one-on-one semi-structured interviews with sampled representation of Medical College of Wisconsin leadership. The researchers reviewed transcriptions of each interview verbatim and used a qualitative grounded theory approach to generate content themes. Researchers iteratively refined themes using the constant comparison method until all interviews were analyzed and final themes and subthemes were defined.

Results:

The researches interviewed twelve institutional leaders and identified four major themes: student impact, recognition, physician well-being, and leadership.

Conclusions:

Collectively, leadership perspectives aligned well with preceptor views as established in the literature. Each theme, however, highlighted areas for institutions to consider when addressing preceptor issues: 1) knowledge gaps regarding problem scope, particularly preceptor time commitments and the number of preceptors required, 2) current lack of recognition through career advancement or clearly defined promotion criteria, 3) intrinsic reward while important may no longer be sufficient for participation, 4) a centralized office may be best for providing comprehensive and streamlined solutions.

References:

Erikson C, Hamann R, Levitan T, Pankow S, Stanley J, Whatley M. Recruiting and maintaining U.S. clinical training sites: Joint report of the 2013 Multi-Discipline Clerkship/Clinical Training Site Survey. https://paeaonline.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Recruiting-and-Maintaining-U.S.-Clinical-Training-Sites.pdf. Accessed August 16, 2019. Leggio LE, Ryan MS, Peltier CB, et al. Recruitment and retention: recommendations from the Association of Medical School Pediatric Department Chairs Education Committee and the Council on Medical Student Education in Pediatrics Task Force on Community Preceptors. J Pediatr. 2017;191:4-5.e1. doi:10.1016/j.jpeds.2017.08.043.

Beck Dallaghan GL, Alerte AM, Ryan MS, et al. Recruiting and Retaining Community-Based Preceptors. Acad Med. 2017;92(8):1168-1174. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000001667

Christner JG, Dallaghan GB, Briscoe G, et al. The community preceptor crisis: recruiting and retaining community-based faculty to teach medical students-a shared perspective from the Alliance for Clinical Education. Teach Learn Med. 2016;28(3):329-336. doi:10.1080/10401334.2016.1152899.

Vath BE, Schneeweiss R, Scott CS. Volunteer physician faculty and the changing face of medicine. West J Med. 2001;174(4):242-246. doi: 10.1136/ewjm.174.4.242

Grayson MS, Klein M, Lugo J, Visintainer P. Benefits and costs to community-based physicians teaching primary care to medical students. J Gen Intern Med. 1998;13(7):485-488. doi:10.1046/j.1525-1497.1998.00139.x.

Vinson DC, Paden C, Devera-Sales A, Marshall B, Waters EC. Teaching medical students in community-based practices: a national survey of generalist physicians. J Fam Pract. 1997;45:487-494.

Graziano SC, McKenzie ML, Abbott JF, et al. Barriers and strategies to engaging our community-based preceptors. Teach Learn Med. 2018;30(4):444-450. doi:10.1080/10401334.2018.1444994.

Scott I, Sazegar P. Why community physicians teach students (or not): barriers and opportunities for preceptor recruitment. Med Teach. 2006;28(6):563-565. doi:10.1080/01421590600627375.

Ryan MS, Vanderbilt AA, Lewis TW, Madden MA. Benefits and barriers among volunteer teaching faculty: comparison between those who precept and those who do not in the core pediatrics clerkship. Med Educ Online. 2013;18:1-7. doi:10.3402/meo.v18i0.20733.

Vinson DC, Paden C, Devera-Sales A. Impact of medical student teaching on family physicians' use of time. J Fam Pract. 1996;42:243-249.

Levy BT, Gjerde CL, Albrecht LA. The effects of precepting on and the support desired by community-based preceptors in Iowa. Acad Med. 1997;72:382-384. doi:10.1097/00001888-199705000-00018.

Peyser B, Daily KA, Hudak NM, Railey K, Bosworth HB. Enlisting new teachers in clinical environments (ENTICE); novel ways to engage clinicians. Adv Med Educ Pract. 2014;5:359-367. doi:10.2147/amep.S69063.

Boex J, Boll A, Franzini L, et al. Measuring the costs of primary care education in the ambulatory setting. Acad Med. 2000;75:419-425. doi:10.1097/00001888-200005000-00007.

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. Calendar Year (CY) 2019 Medicare physician fee schedule (PFS) proposed rule.

Documentation and payment for evaluation and management (E/M) visits, advancing virtual care, and quality payment program. https://www.cms.gov/About-CMS/Story-Page/CY-19-PFS-Final-Rule-PPT.pdf. Published 2019. Accessed August 15,

2019. 2019. 2019. <a href=

Latessa R, Colvin G, Beaty N, Steiner BD, Pathman DE. Satisfaction, motivation, and future of community preceptors: what are the current trends? Acad Med. 2013;88(8):1164-1170. doi:10.1097/ACM.0b013e31829a3689.

Nelson A. The role of compensating community preceptors in family medicine clerkships [Letter, Comment]. Fam Med. 2014;46(7):563-564.

Christner JG, Beck Dallaghan G, Briscoe G, et al. To pay or not to pay community preceptors? That is a question. Teach Learn Med. 2019;31(3):279-287. doi:10.1080/10401334.2018.1528156.

Ryan MS, Leggio LE, Peltier CB, et al. Recruitment and retention of community preceptors. Pediatrics. 2018;142(3). doi:10.1542/peds.2018-0673.

Woodall L, Smith G, Garr D, Hopla D, Kern D. Can state-supported interprofessional coalitions cure preceptor shortages? JAAPA. 2018;31(6):1-4. doi:10.1097/01.JAA.0000533667.10945.ed.

Ashar B, Levine R, Magaziner J, Shochet R, Wright S. An association between paying physician-teachers for their teaching efforts and an improved educational experience for learners. J Gen Intern Med. 2007;22(10):1393-1397. doi:10.1007/s11606-007-0285-2

Ullian JA, Shore WB, First LR. What did we learn about the impact on community-based faculty? Recommendations for recruitment, retention, and rewards. Acad Med. 2001;76(4 Suppl):S78-85. doi:10.1097/00001888-200104001-00015.

Theobald M, Ruttter A, Steiner B, Morley CP. Preceptor expansion initiative takes multitactic approach to addressing shortage of clinical training sites. Fam Med. 2019;51(2):159-165. doi:10.22454/FamMed.2019.379892.

Theobald, Mary. STFM tackles preceptor shortage. Ann Fam Med. 2016;14(2):183-184. doi:10.1370/afm.1917.

Power DV, Byerley JS, Steiner B. Policy change from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services provides an opportunity to improve medical student education and recruit community preceptors. Acad Med. 2018;93(10):1448-1449. doi:10.1097/acm.0000000000002245.

Irby DM. Where have all the preceptors gone? Erosion of the volunteer clinical faculty. West J Med. 2001;174(4):246. doi:10.1136/ewjm.174.4.246.

UCSF. School of Dentistry. Open recruitments: Director of Community Based Clinical Education and Partnerships. https://aprecruit.ucsf.edu/JPF02511. Published 2019. Accessed August 15, 2019.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jbernstein@mcw.edu]

Lessons from the AAMC Core Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs) for Entering Residency Core EPA Pilot Project: Qualitative Analysis of the M3

Survey

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Katherine McOwen, AAMC Lynn Shaull, AAMC Douglas Grbic, AAMC Katherine Gielissen, Yale School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study was to understand students' perspectives on the Core Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs) pilot that broadly inform other current and future EPA-based curricular development and assessment approaches.

Background and relevance of the study:

The Association of American Medical Colleges' Core EPAs were developed to promote a shared understanding of essential tasks graduating students should be able to perform under indirect supervision upon entering residency¹. Students at the 10 schools participating in the Core EPAs Pilot Project² are important stakeholders in these schools' Core EPAs implementation efforts.

Design and Methods:

An online questionnaire administered to M3 students at the 10 pilot schools in Spring 2019 included two open-ended questions at the end of the survey: "What aspects of EPA implementation at your school" a) "have been most helpful to you as a learner?" (HELPFUL), and b) "could be improved or altered?" (IMPROVE). The data were independently analyzed for themes by two study team members (LS and KM); iterative analysis was performed until consensus was reached.(3)

Results:

Of 687 M3-student respondents, 335 (49%) provided narrative comments. Across schools, predominant HELPFUL themes included: EPAs created common expectations for learners and faculty; and the culture of feedback was positively impacted by EPA implementation; predominant IMPROVE themes included: the detrimental impact of a lack of general awareness of EPAs among all stakeholders (particularly assessors); and a lack of shared understanding of assessment and feedback of EPAs particularly in relation to grades.

Conclusions:

Students identified the Core EPAs framework as useful in helping them to both understand what is expected in their clinical performance, and to obtain frequent, quality feedback on their clinical skills. Substantive and ongoing-faculty development efforts, communication about curricular and assessment practices, and user-friendly workplace-based assessment systems are warranted for effective implementation of Core EPAs.

References:

- 1. Association of American Medical Colleges. Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency: Curriculum Developers' Guide. 2014. https://store.aamc.org/downloadable/download/sample/sample_id/63/%20. Accessed October 21, 2019. 2. Association of American Medical Colleges. Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency: Pilot Participants. https://www.aamc.org/what-we-do/mission-areas/medical-education/cbme/core-epas/participants. Accessed October 30, 2019.
- 3. Charmaz K. Constructing Grounded Theory: A Practical Guide Through Qualitative Analysis. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications; 2006.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lshaull@aamc.org]

Management x Medicine: Exploring the Frontier of Medical Education

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Humzah Quereshy, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Nicholas Rabah, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Hammad Khan, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Daniel Simon, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Understand the demand in the medical curriculum for an integrated management in medicine lecture series and design an appropriately tailored curriculum.

Background and relevance of the study:

As economic pressures for cost-effective care continue to rise, the physician's role is rapidly changing and need for formal business education is increasing. A recently published article in NEJM Catalyst highlights this need, proposing that faculty at medical schools across the country collaborate with their business school counterparts to develop an interdisciplinary fourth-year business rotation for medical students.

Design and Methods:

All current CWRU SOM students were administered a survey to assess interest level, baseline business knowledge, and topics of interest. With help from UH physician executives, we used this data to design a ten-speaker lecture series offered monthly to all medical students. Interested students were asked to complete an entry survey prior to the first lecture, and were asked for feedback following each subsequent lecture. A mid-curriculum survey was administered to gauge student satisfaction.

Results:

85.6% of initial survey respondents demonstrated interest in taking a "business elective", with 78.4% having no prior exposure to medical management. Students were interested in (1) insurance and compensation, (2) physician contracts, and (3) private practice logistics. Of six lectures to date, 76 students have attended (average attendance: 25.5 students). 21/22 students when asked about course satisfaction in mid-curriculum survey reported "strongly agree" or "agree". With attendance of lectures, students reported increases in their understandings of hospital operations (3.01 to 4.50), hospital financial structure (2.78 to 4.73), and workforce management (3.18 to 4.91).

Conclusions:

There is an increasing need for a formal business curriculum in medical education, and an increasing demand for such a curriculum amongst students at our institution. Overall, students report a high level of satisfaction with our lecture-series. We hope to establish this curriculum as an important integrated component of the CWRU SOM curriculum.

References:

Pearl RM and Fogel AL. "New Physicians Will Need Business School Skills." NEJM Catalyst. August 7, 2017.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [haq3@case.edu]

Measuring Quality Improvement in the M3 Pediatric Clerkship using Causal Impact Analysis with Time-Series Modeling

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Deepa Mukundan, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Tyrone Layson, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Pamela Brewster, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Zhen Sun, The University of Toledo College of Medicine Stephanie Mann, The University of Toledo College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To evaluate temporal changes in student satisfaction with curricular innovations using causal impact analysis.

Background and relevance of the study:

Clerkship directors need effective tools to track improvement in student clerkship experiences after implementing curricular innovations. The dynamic nature of clinical teaching often precludes randomized-controlled studies, thus requiring other methods for analysis. Causal impact analysis uses a prediction model to infer the effect of an intervention over time¹⁻³.

Design and Methods:

Upon reviewing our end-of-clerkship surveys after each block rotation for academic year (AY) 2018 (10 blocks each year), we identified two areas for improvement: course didactics and required learning. In AY 2019, two interventions were introduced to address this: 1) faculty development after block 3 to provide teaching feedback/training, and 2) new didactic lectures/additional faculty after block 7. IRB approval was obtained.

The targeted interventions were examined using causal impact analysis incorporating time-series modeling. The trend in blocks 4 to 6, after the first intervention in block 3, was projected on to blocks 7 to 10 as the expected result. The difference of the actual results in blocks 8 through 10, after the second intervention in block 7, from the expected results are calculated and plotted as the cumulative effect of the intervention starting in block 8.

Results:

We found a significant effect for the changes in didactic lectures with a 113% increase in the rate of agreement (95% CI:42%-184%; p=0.005), and required learning had a significant improvement of 81% (CI:0.31-164%; p=0.03).

Conclusions:

We were able to measure the effect of the interventions showing an improvement for both areas identified. Our statistical method reduced the confounding influence of temporal changes among blocks of varying student composition. This method can be introduced for tracking quality improvement in a clerkship, and is transferable to other clerkships and institutions.

References:

- 1. Brodersen KH, Gallusser F, Koehler J, Remy N, Scott SL. Inferring causal impact using Bayesian structural time-series models. The Annals of Applied Statistics. 2015;9(1):247-274.
- 2. Bruhn CAW, Hetterich S, Schuck-Paim C, Kurum E, Taylor RJ, Lustig R, Shapiro ED, Warren JL, Simonsen L, Weinberger DM. Estimating the population-level impact of vaccines using synthetic controls. Proc Natl Acad Sci USA. 2017;114(7):1524-1529.
- 3. Frye AW, Hemmer PA. Program evaluation models and related theories: AMEE guide no. 67. Med Teacher. 2012;34(5):e288-e299.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [deepa.mukundan@utoledo.edu]

Medical Faculty's Perception of the Use of Altmetrics

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Jessica Byram, Indiana University School of Medicine Kirsten Brown, George Washington University School of Medicine and Health Sciences Michelle Lazarus, Monash University Adam Wilson, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study examined the perceptions of medical faculty regarding their use of altmetrics and how factors such as career focus and social media use influence their opinions.

Background and relevance of the study:

Alternative metrics (altmetrics) are non-traditional metrics that capture the impact of research outputs through downloads, social media shares, and other measures. The use of altmetrics as indicators of scholarly/societal impact has garnered increased attention over the last decade. However, the degree to which faculty demographics, career stage, professional roles, and areas of research focus influence perceptions and use of altmetrics has yet to be characterized.

Design and Methods:

Medical faculty responded to a Qualtrics survey distributed through social media platforms and organizational listservs. The survey collected demographic information and data on social media usage, the likelihood of disseminating altmetric outcomes in academic documents (e.g., CV), and perceptions on the value/utility of altmetrics.

Results:

Of the 48 respondents, 23 were male and most were from North America or Oceania (81%). All age groups and career levels were represented. While only 17% indicated their institution endorses altmetrics, slightly more than half (54%) indicated altmetrics were 'moderately' to 'extremely valuable'. A Pearson's correlation revealed that frequent social media usage was strongly and positively correlated with favorable perceptions of altmetrics (r=0.512, p<0.001). Neither age range, career level, nor years of experience explained one's level of social media usage (p>0.402) or one's favorable perceptions of altmetrics (p>0.200). Irrespective of respondents' primary professional roles, areas of research focus, or whether their institution endorsed altmetrics, no significant differences (p>0.05) in social media usage or altmetric perceptions scores were detected.

Conclusions:

This study suggests that more favorable perceptions of altmetrics are associated with higher social media use. These results also indicate that favorable perceptions of altmetrics traverse career level or experiences. Next, this study will interview faculty for a richer understanding of their perceptions of altmetrics.

References:
1. Priem J, Taraborelli D, Groth P, Neylon C. Altmetrics: A manifesto. Altmetrics. http://altmetrics.org/manifesto. Published October 2010. Accessed October 2019.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jbyram@iupui.edu]

<u>Megatrends in Medical Education Revisited: A 10 Year Update on Where We</u> Are and Where We Are Headed

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

David Way, Ohio State University College of Medicine Jennifer Yee, Ohio State University College of Medicine Dawn Watson, Ohio State University College of Medicine Christopher San Miguel, Ohio State University College of Medicine Michael Prats, Ohio State University College of Medicine Jennifer Mitzman, Ohio State University College of Medicine Matthew Malone, Ohio State University College of Medicine Simiao Li-Sauerwine, Ohio State University College of Medicine Cynthia Leung, Ohio State University College of Medicine Nicholas Kman, Ohio State University College of Medicine Andrew King, Ohio State University College of Medicine Maya Iyer, Ohio State University College of Medicine Larry Hurtubise, The Ohio State University Carol Hasbrouck, Ohio State University College of Medicine Geremiha Emerson, Ohio State University College of Medicine Douglas Danforth, The Ohio State University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Through a scoping review of the literature across ten megatrends in medical education, the authors critiqued projections made in 2008, then set out to project what will happen in the next 10 years.

Background and relevance of the study:

Megatrends¹⁻² in Medical Education was the theme for the 2008 Generalist's in Medical Education Conference.³ Based loosely on the Naisbitt book from 1982, the theme was intended to help educators distinguish between passing fads and meaningful trends.⁴ This project was an update on that original work.

Design and Methods:

We have completed a comprehensive review of the current literature on these megatrends: Globalization, Simulation, Rising Costs of Care and Education, Redefinition of Desired Physician Traits, Need for Continuity across Med-Ed Continuum, Interprofessional Healthcare Education, Recognition of Med-Ed as a subspecialty, Lifelong Learning, Change in the Med-Ed Setting, and Technology. Using futurists methodology, relevant articles were identified, reviewed and summarized. From the literature summaries, the authors critiqued original projections published in 2009⁴, and predicted where medical education will go in the next decade.

Results:

The topics of technology and simulation generated the most literature. Educators predict a decoupling of clinical education from clinical service and a movement towards simulation-based

education.⁶ Educators will also move towards a systems-based approach to education and become more responsive to patient population needs by covering competencies involved with: patient safety, health care for the elderly, leadership, advocacy, efficiency and cost reduction.⁷ Competency-based, individualized education will become the standard. Specialized programs to develop practitioners to fill healthcare needs where shortages exist will also become prominent.

Conclusions:

All the Megatrends selected in 2008 remain important. The 2008 authors probably could not have imagined the dramatic role that simulation and technology have had in shaping medical education today. They would be disappointed in the lack of progress on interdisciplinary and interprofessional healthcare education and with establishing a medical education continuum.

References:

1. Oxford Living Dictionaries. Accessed: April 29, 2019. Available at:

https://en.oxforddictionaries.com/definition/megatrend.

2. Transportation Policy Task Force: Suggested State Legislation Docket. 2009. Council of State Governments Annual Meeting. La Quinta, CA. Nov 12-15. Accessed: April 29, 2019. Available at: http://www.csg.org/events/annualmeeting/policy sessions am09/SSL

http://www.csg.org/events/annualmeeting/policy_sessions_am09/SSL_agendapdfs/TransportationSSL.pdf

- 3. Program from the Annual Meeting of the Generalists in Medical Education. 2008. San Antonio, TX. (Oct. 31-Nov. 1).
- 4. Naisbitt J. Megatrends: Ten New Directions Transforming Our Lives. New York, NY; Warner Books. 1982.
- 5. Lazarus C. Ten megatrends in medical education. Academic Physician & Scientist. 2009, Jan; 7-9. Available at: https://www.aamc.org/download/263466/data/aps2009-01lazarustenmegatrendsinmedicaleducation.pdf
- 6. Norman G. Medical education: past, present and future. Perspectives on medical education. 2012 Mar 1;1(1):6-14.
- 7. Cooke M, Irby DM, O'Brien BC. Educating Physicians: A call for reform of medical school and residency. Stanford, CA; The Carnegie Foundation for the Advancement of Teaching. 2010.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [david.way@osumc.edu]

One Test to Rule Them All: USMLE Step 1's Influence On Medical Student Decision-Making and Emotion Work Regarding Step 2 CK

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Joseph Geraghty, University of Illinois College of Medicine Sarah Russel, University of Illinois College of Medicine Hilary Renaldy, MD, University of California, Los Angeles David Geffen School of Medicine Trevonne Thompson, University of Illinois College of Medicine Laura Hirshfield, University of Illinois College of Medicine at Chicago

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We explored the complex decision-making processes and emotion work that medical students face preparing for and taking the Step 2 CK exam, with particular attention paid to how previous experience taking Step 1 influences student experiences.

Background and relevance of the study:

With increased competition for residency positions, United States Medical Licensing Examinations (USMLE) scores have increasingly been used by program directors for residency selection. ^{1,2} More emphasis has been placed on USMLE Step 1 compared to Step 2, as evidenced by the number of study resources, practice examinations, and amount of curricular time dedicated to these exams. ³ Step 2 CK in particular is relatively understudied despite increased importance especially amongst certain specialties.

Design and Methods:

In 2018-19, we conducted six focus groups with fourth-year medical students at the University of Illinois College of Medicine to explore student experiences and beliefs related to Step 2 CK and previous experience taking the Step 1 exam. We used qualitative, phenomenological methods to identify trends in our participants' responses.

Results:

USMLE Step 1 has a considerable influence on student strategies and emotions approaching Step 2 CK. This includes when to take the exam, how much time to dedicate to study, and setting a target score. Students also reported a lower degree of energy both from the student and administrative standpoint focusing on Step 2 CK, burnout induced by Step 1, and a lack of motivation for Step 2. Finally, students highlighted a lack of or conflicting advice surrounding Step 2 CK and its importance, despite pressure to improve their performance compared to Step 1.

Conclusions:

Our findings provide a much-needed student voice related to how students approach the USMLE Step 2 CK exam, and how much their experiences on Step 1 influences their perspectives. Future work will focus on addressing issues faced by students approaching Step 2 CK.

References:

1. National Resident Matching Program, Data Release and Research Committee. Results of the 2018 NRMP Program Director

Survey. Washington, DC: National Resident Matching Program; 2018. https://www.nrmp.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/NRMP-2018-Program-Director-Survey-for-WWW.pdf. Accessed September 12, 2018.

2. Green M, Jones P, Thomas JX. Selection criteria for residency: Results of a national program directors survey. Acad Med. 2009;84:362-367.

3. Schwartz LF, Lineberry M, Park YS, Kamin CS, Hyderi AA. Development and evaluation of a student-initiated test preparation program for the USMLE Step 1 examination. Teach Learn Med. 2018;30(2):193-201.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jgerag2@uic.edu]

Optimism and Step 1

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Nathan Schleinkofer, Indiana University School of Medicine Komal Kochhar, Indiana University School of Medicine Emily Walvoord, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Are medical student optimism levels correlated to USMLE Step 1 scores?

Background and relevance of the study:

Optimism is a personality trait that correlates with improved coping skills, physical health, and emotional wellbeing. Various interventions have been shown to increase optimistic thinking. To date, there have been few investigations into the effect of optimism on academic performance. For medical students, the USMLE Step 1 exam is a significant stressor that has a large impact on future career options.

Design and Methods:

Beginning on February 27th, 2019, one week after completing their foundational sciences curriculum, 2nd year medical students (n=112) at the Indiana University School of Medicine completed the Life Orientation Test-Revised (LOT-R), which assesses dispositional optimism. The LOT-R includes six questions scored on a 5-point Likert Scale from "I disagree a lot" to "I agree a lot". Higher scores indicate a higher level of optimism. Students were instructed to complete the LOT-R before sitting for the Step 1 exam between February 23rd and April 6th. The correlation between Optimism scores and Step 1 exam scores were examined. The study received approval from Indiana University's Institutional Review Board.

Results:

The Optimism scores ranged from 6 to 30, mean = 22. The mean for adults ages 18-30 is 22.1. Step 1 exam scores ranged from 189 to 268, mean = 236.4. There was a small positive correlation (Pearson 0.257) between Optimism scores and Step 1 exam scores (p=0.006). There were no gender differences in Optimism or Step 1 exam scores.

Conclusions:

These results indicate that optimism may be a potentially significant factor associated with medical student performance, specifically on the USMLE Step 1 exam. Further research should investigate if a causal relationship exists between the two factors. If such a relationship is found, interventions specifically targeted to increase optimism may prove useful for improving student academic performance and possibly their overall wellbeing.

References:

Carver CS, Scheier MF, Segerstrom SC. Optimism. Clin Psychol Rev. 2010;30(7):879-889. Available from: https://www-ncbi-nlm-nih-gov.proxy.medlib.uits.iu.edu/pubmed/20170998

Scheier, M. F., Carver, C. S., & Bridges, M. W. (1994). Distinguishing optimism from neuroticism (and trait anxiety, self-mastery, and self-esteem): A re-evaluation of the Life Orientation Test. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 67, 1063-1078.

Glaesmer, H. et al. Psychometric properties and population-based norms of the Life Orientation Test Revises (LOT-R). Brit J Health Psych. 2012;17:432-445. Available from: https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/j.2044-8287.2011.02046.x McConville J, McAleer R, Hahne A. Mindfulness Training for Health Profession Students- The Effect of Midnfulness Training of Psychological Well-Being, Learning and CLnical Performance of Health Professional Students: A Systematic Review of Randomized and Non-randomized Controlled Trials. Explore (NY). 2017;13(1):26-45. Available from: https://www-ncbi-nlm-nih-gov.proxy.medlib.uits.iu.edu/pubmed/27889445

For more information about this abstract please contact: [nschlein@indiana.edu]

Predicting the USMLE Step 1 Exam Scores from Grid-Calibrated NBME Comprehensive Basic Science Exam Domains for Three-Year and Four-Year Medical Degree Programs

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Lindsey Johnson, Medical College of Wisconsin Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin William Hueston, Medical College of Wisconsin Greg Kaupla, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to compare the predictive capacity of CBSE student scores on Step 1 scores between three- and four-year medical degree programs at a medical school.

Background and relevance of the study:

The USMLE® Step 1 exam is a requirement for medical school graduation and an important evaluated factor in the application to medical residency programs. In preparation, medical schools administer the NBME® Comprehensive Basic Science Exam (CBSE)¹ to medical students to provide a measure of medical knowledge, report the subject domains where additional preparation is needed,² and predict passing rates.³

Design and Methods:

In spring 2019, second-year medical students from the three-year (N=49) and four-year (N=185) programs completed the CBSE exam prior to completing Step 1. The CBSE Examinee Performance Profile reports the total score in numerical format, and multiple subject domain scores (e.g., pathology) by visual horizontal bands which were calibrated to yield numeric scores (scale:1-9).

Pearson correlations and stepwise multivariate linear regressions were used to predict the Step 1 scores from CBSE discipline subject domains using IBM® SPSS® 24.0.

Results:

CBSE and Step 1 scores were significantly correlated(r=0.76, p < 0.001). The average of the eight visually calibrated discipline subject domains (alpha=0.93) was significantly (r=0.96, p < .001) correlated to the numerically reported CBSE score.

Three-year program: Pathology(beta=.49) and histology/cell biology(beta=.34) significantly predicted Step 1 scores (R^2 =0.62, p < .001) via linear regression analysis. Four-year program: Pathology (beta=.31), pharmacology (beta=.28), and microbiology/immunology (beta=.21) significantly predicted Step 1 scores (R^2 =0.56, p < .001).

Conclusions:

Pathology was the primary predictor of Step 1 across both programs due to the consistent, extensive coverage of diseases in the second year of medical school. Secondary CBSE predictors varied between programs suggesting that students may be prioritizing and aligning the course

material of tissue structure in the three-year program to Step 1 versus microorganisms and drugs in the four-year program.

References:

- 1. Wright W, Baston K, Use of the National Board of Medical Examiners® Comprehensive Basic Science Exam: Survey results of US medical schools, Advances in Medical Education and Practice 2017;8:377-383.
- 2. Giordano C, Hutchinson D, Peppler R, A Predictive Model for USMLE Step 1 Scores, Cureus 2016;8(9):1-8.
- 3. Guiot H, Franqui-Rivera H, Predicting performance on the United States Medical Licensing Examination Step 1 and Step 2 Clinical Knowledge using results from previous examinations, Advances in Medical Education and Practice, 2018;9:943-949.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lijohnson@mcw.edu]

<u>Promoting the advancement of underrepresented minority learners through community-based internships: an exploratory analysis</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Lulia Kana, University of Michigan Medical School Carol Noronha, University of Michigan Medical School Sarah Diamond, University of Michigan Medical School Matthew Pun, University of Michigan Medical School Michael Broderick, University of Michigan Medical School Jonathan Finks, University of Michigan Medical School Gurjit Sandhu, University of Michigan Medical School

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To examine the experiences of students participating in the Doctors of Tomorrow summer internship program in order to better understand how their engagement influenced personal and professional development.

Background and relevance of the study:

Doctors of Tomorrow (DoT) is a pipeline program between the University of Michigan Medical School and Cass Technical High School in Detroit where the overall mission is to encourage youth from communities that are underrepresented in medicine to pursue their interests in healthcare careers. Students have the opportunity to apply for a summer internship between 9th grade and 10th grade. There is limited literature on the effectiveness of experiential-learning opportunities in pipeline programs to support development of personal and professional skills. Therefore, the goal of our study was to determine the effectiveness of summer internships as experiential-learning opportunities in a pipeline program for underrepresented high school students interested in healthcare fields. We believe this inquiry will yield new insights into enhancing pipeline programs that support URM students in their pursuit of healthcare careers.

Design and Methods:

An exploratory qualitative study was conducted using responses from 36 students who participated in the DoT summer internship program between 2014-2018. Students engaged in self-reflective practices prompted by weekly surveys. Data were analyzed through an inductive process by coding and thematic analysis.

Results:

Four overarching themes were identified: (1) engagement in authentic experiential-learning opportunities; (2) development of professional skills; (3) self-reflection and actualization; and (4) real world barriers in experiential-learning.

Conclusions:

High school students engaged in a variety of different community internships and shared insights that illustrated depth and diversity of understanding health in their community. Their reflections illustrate the added value of experiential-education in pipeline programs.

References:

- 1. Smith MM, Rose SH, Schroeder DR, Long TR. Diversity of United States medical students by region compared to US census data. Adv Med Educ Pract. 2015;6:367-36772. doi:10.2147/AMEP.S82645
- 2. Marrast LM, Zallman L, Woolhandler S, Bor DH, McCormick D. Minority physicians' role in the care of underserved patients: Diversifying the physicianworkforce may be key in addressing health disparities. JAMA Intern Med. 2014;174(2):289-291. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2013.12756
- 3. Deas D, Pisano ED, Mainous AG, et al. Improving Diversity Through Strategic Planning. Acad Med. 2012;87(11):1548-1555. doi:10.1097/acm.0b013e31826d63e0
- 4. Grumbach K, Mendoza R. Disparities in human resources: Addressing the lack of diversity in the health professions. Health Aff. 2008;27(2):413-422. doi:10.1377/hlthaff.27.2.413
- 5. Burgos JL, Yee D, Csordas T, et al. Supporting the minority physician pipeline: Providing global health experiences to undergraduate students in the United States-Mexico border region. Med Educ Online. 2015;20(1). doi:10.3402/meo.v20.27260 6. Kuo AA, Verdugo B, Holmes FJ, et al. Creating an MCH Pipeline for Disadvantaged Undergraduate Students. Matern Child Health J. 2015;19(10):2111-2118. doi:10.1007/s10995-015-1749-3
- 7. Edlow BL, Hamilton K, Hamilton RH. Teaching about the brain and reaching the community: Undergraduates in the Pipeline Neuroscience Program at the University of Pennsylvania. J Undergrad Neurosci Educ. 2007;5(2):63-70.
- 8. Nair N, Marciscano AE, Vivar KL, Schaeffer S, LaMont E, Francois F. Introduction to the medical professions through an innovative medical student-run pipeline program. J Natl Med Assoc. 2011;103(9-10):832-838. doi:10.1016/S0027-9684(15)30437-5
- 9. Haggins A, Sandhu G, Ross PT. Value of Near-Peer Mentorship from Protégé and Mentor Perspectives: A Strategy to Increase Physician Workforce Diversity. J Natl Med Assoc. 2018;110(4):399-406. doi:10.1016/j.jnma.2017.09.001
- 10. Sandhu G, Flagler EN, Prabhu K, Ross PT. Student reflections on position and experiences in the doctors of tomorrow program. Qual Rep. 2018;23(9):2047-2062.
- 11. Kolb DA. Experiential Learning. 1984.
- 12. Fernandez-Repollet E, Locatis C, De Jesus-Monge WE, Maisiak R, Liu WL. Effects of summer internship and follow-up distance mentoring programs on middle and high school student perceptions and interest in health careers. BMC Med Educ. 2018;18(1):1-6. doi:10.1186/s12909-018-1205-3
- 13. Holden L, Rumala B, Carson P, Siegel E. Promoting careers in health care for urban youth: What students, parents and educators can teach us. Inf Serv Use. 2014;34(3-4):355-366. doi:10.3233/ISU-140761

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lkana@med.umich.edu]

Reducing the "July Effect": Using Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC) Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs) to Ensure Institutional Patient Safety

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Ellen Franklin, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine Jane Rowat, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine Kate Thoma, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine Manish Suneja, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Based on AAMC Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs), a multispecialty, patient-safety-driven objective structured clinical evaluation (OSCE) assessment was delivered during intern orientation. Objectives included: developing a standardized approach

Background and relevance of the study:

Interns come from different medical schools which place varying levels of emphasis on skill development/assessment. A dominant assumption is that trainees are ready for transitioning and where gaps might exist, layers of supervision will compensate. This may lead to a mismatch between program directors' expectations and intern skills¹ as well as contribute to the existence of the "July Effect"².

Design and Methods:

Interns (n= 56) from six specialties were assessed on patient safety-related EPAs at five stations. Simulated patients and 25 faculty observers completed electronic checklists and faculty provided formative feedback following each encounter. Encounters were video-recorded.

Results:

The highest performing station was "Informed Consent" while "Handoff" was the lowest. Using the definition of percentage of total points > 70% for meeting criteria for each station, 12.5% (7/56 interns) met criteria for all stations; 28.7% had one station, 37.6% had two station, 10.7% had three stations and 10.7% had four stations not meeting criteria. All interns indicated the value of immediate feedback.

Conclusions:

The OSCE provides a standardized approach for assessing patient-safety related EPAs. Early identification of performance gaps informs individualized learning plans as well as program/institutional curricular development. While the experience was well received by the interns and faculty, considerable planning and resources are required.

The EPA-based OSCE format during orientation was successfully implemented for interns entering six training programs and could be extended across the institution. Time must be allocated, core faculty must be available to participate, and institutional financial backing is necessary.

References:

1. Angus, S., Vu, R., Willett, L., Call, S., Halvorson, A., and Chaudhry, S. Internal Medicine Residency Program Directors' views of the Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency: An Opportunity to enhance communication of Competency Along the Continuum. Academic Medicine. 2017. 92:6:785-91.

2. Levy, K., Voit, j., Gupta, A., Petrilli, C., Chopra, V. Examining the July Effect: A National Survey of Academic Leaders in Medicine. American Journal of Medicine. 2016. 129:7:754:e1-e5.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [ellen-franklin@uiowa.edu]

Regional Variation Across the United States in Resident Self-Assessment as Compared to their Peers using ACGME Competencies

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Lindsey Johnson, Medical College of Wisconsin Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin Greg Kaupla, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to analyze how first-year medical residents from a private midwestern institution self-assess their performance based on ACGME competencies completing residency in different AAMC-defined regions.

Background and relevance of the study:

Regional variation exists in healthcare treatments in the United States based on physician beliefs and patient preferences.¹ As medical education relies heavily on training by physicians, some beliefs and preferences may transfer to the student. It could be beneficial for a residency program director to understand the regional differences resulting from a resident's medical education to best support and train a geographically diverse cohort of residents.²

Design and Methods:

Four hundred first-year medical residents voluntarily completed a medical school graduate follow-up survey which compared their self-reported ACGME competency performance to their peers using Likert-scale items (scale: 1=substantially below average/5=substantially above average). The 2009-2018 graduates were categorized using the AAMC-defined regional groups where they are completing their residency: Northeast(N=35), South(N=52), Central(N=239), and West(N=74).

An analysis of variance and Cohen's d effect sizes determined statistically significant mean differences in competency performance between AAMC-define groups. Pearson correlations reported relational strength between competencies. IBM® SPSS® 24.0 generated statistical analysis.

Results:

Graduates reported significantly (p < 0.050) different responses between regions in professionalism (alpha=0.96) and systems-based practice (alpha=0.93). Graduates completing their residency in the South rated themselves significantly higher than graduates completing their residency in the Midwest in professionalism (d=0.56, p < .001) and systems-based practice (d=0.56, p < .001). There was a significant correlation between professionalism and systems-based practice (r=0.570, p < .001).

Conclusions:

These findings provide analytical evidence that graduates completing their residency program in the South rated themselves significantly higher in the areas of professionalism and systems-based practice than those in the Central region from which they graduated. Spending one year after graduation in a different AAMC-defined region provides a new appreciation of medical school education.

References:

- 1. Birkmeyer J, Understanding regional variation in the use of surgery, Lancet 2013;382(9898): 1121-1129.
- 2. Gozu A, Similarities and Differences Between International Medical Graduates and U.S. Medical Graduates at Six Maryland Community-Based Internal Medicine Residency Programs, Academic Medicine 2009;84(3):385-390.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lijohnson@mcw.edu]

Student Perspectives on Co-curricular Programs

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Zobia Chunara, University of Illinois College of Medicine Lander McGinn, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ameera Lodhi, University of Illinois Laura Hirshfield, University of Illinois College of Medicine at Chicago

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Our study aims to investigate students' experiences with co-curricular programs, scholarly programs supplementary to the regular curriculum that span all four years of medical school, using the case of the University of Illinois College of Medicine at Chicago(UICOM) [1].

Background and relevance of the study:

Co-curricular programs are an increasingly common feature of U.S. medical institutions; indeed, 74% of the top 43 ranked U.S. medical schools have co-curricular programs. These programs attract students who wish to engage in specific areas of medicine, most commonly global medicine². Co-curricular programs aim to facilitate a student's self-directed learning, career development, and leadership ability in those areas. Moreover, they increase the likelihood of matching into a residency program with an aligned mission³. However, few published studies have investigated student perspectives on co-curricular programs and their effectiveness.

Design and Methods:

We organized focus groups with M2s for each of UICOM's four co-curricular programs during which we asked students to reflect on the efficacy of their program, initial expectations, and reasons for joining. Afterwards, we used qualitative phenomenological methods to identify common themes in our transcripts.

Results:

Overall, our participants feel that they are benefiting from co-curricular programs. Essential elements for student satisfaction included: 1) presentations from experts in the field, 2) relevant skill-building workshops, and most importantly 3) early access to physician mentors to guide them in executing self-driven research projects. Didactic lectures, excessive time requirements, restrictive research projects, and a lack of clear practical applications for skills should be avoided. Notably, students indicated that residency competitiveness was not their primary motivation for joining their programs.

Conclusions:

Co-curricular programs must strike a balance between guidance and flexibility to allow students to pursue projects outside of the standard curriculum. Failure to do so can prevent learning or cause students to disengage. Future research will expand to include M4s who have completed their co-curricular programs.

References:

- 1. Girotti JA, Loy GL, Michel JL, Henderson VA. The Urban Medicine Program: Developing Physician–Leaders to Serve Underserved Urban Communities. Acad Med 2015; 90: 1658–66.
- 2. Burk-Rafel J, Mullan PB, Wagenschutz H, Pulst-Korenberg A, Skye E, Davis MM. Scholarly Concentration Program Development: A Generalizable, Data-Driven Approach. Acad Med 2016; 91: S16.
- 3. Kost A, Benedict J, Andrilla CHA, Osborn J, Dobie SA. Primary Care Residency Choice and Participation in an Extracurricular Longitudinal Medical School Program to Promote Practice With Medically Underserved Populations. Acad Med 2014; 89: 162.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [zchuna2@uic.edu]

The Association between Engagement in an Online Clinical Reasoning Training System and Performance on a Subsequent Clinical Performance Exam

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Anna Cianciolo, Southern Illinois University Carbondale Cheryl Ashburn, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Heeyoung Han, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Aysha Rafaquat, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Cathy Schwind, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Sophia Matos, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Is engagement in an online clinical reasoning training system associated with scores on subsequent clinical performance exams?

Background and relevance of the study:

In 2017, our medical school launched an online training system designed to offer deliberate practice on reasoning clinically through 12 chief complaints. Completion of the training is required, but there is otherwise no monitoring of student activity. Students' conscientiousness and cognitive investment, both associated with academic achievement, may be important to achieving the expected benefit of this largely self-directed learning opportunity. ²⁻³

Design and Methods:

Using a locally developed rubric, training system data were rated for conscientiousness (e.g., timing of case completion, completion of optional self-assessments) and cognitive investment (i.e., rigor of engagement in required reasoning exercises). In an extreme groups design, data came from three cohorts of students who passed all 14 cases on our summative clinical competency exam (SCCX) (N = 31) and who failed the exam (i.e., passed fewer than 10 cases) (N = 33). Raters were two medical education faculty, two nurse educators, and one clinical faculty member, all blind to the students' identities and SCCX pass/fail status.

Results:

Two students did not complete any of the required cases, and both failed the SCCX. Of two students who partially completed the required cases, one failed the SCCX and one passed all 14 cases. Initial results [5 students (60 online cases)] indicate an association between student engagement in the training system and SCCX pass/fail status: On average, students passing all 14 cases of the SCCX achieved a 79% engagement score and students failing the SCCX received a 57%. Engagement differences between the highest and lowest-scoring students on the SCCX were greater for cognitive investment than for conscientiousness (82% vs. 52% and 76% vs. 67%, respectively).

Conclusions:

Engagement, particularly cognitive investment, appears to influence the value of this self-directed online training system to developing clinical performance.

References:

- 1. Han, H., Cianciolo, A. T., Klamen, D. L., LaVoie, N. Critical Clinical Competencies (CCC): An Online Video-based Curriculum to Develop Clinical Reasoning Skills. Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC) Group on Information Resources (GIR) 2016 Information Technology in Academic Medicine Conference, Toronto, Canada, June 2016.
- 2. Fetter, M., Robbs, R., & Cianciolo, A. T. (2019). Clerkship curriculum design and USMLE Step 2 performance: Exploring the impact of self-regulated exam preparation. Medical Science Educator, 29(1), 265-276.
- 3. Foshee, C. M., Nowacki, A. S., Shivak, J. T., & Bierer, S. B. (2018). Making much of the mundane: a retrospective examination of undergraduate medical students' completion of routine tasks and USMLE step 1 performance. Medical Science Educator, 28, 351-357.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [acianciolo@siumed.edu]

<u>The Impact of First-Year Medical School Student's Lecture Attendance on</u> **Course Evaluation Outcomes**

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Lindsey Johnson, Medical College of Wisconsin Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin Greg Kaupla, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to analyze medical student course evaluation responses based on didactic lecture attendance.

Background and relevance of the study:

Decreasing lecture attendance in medical school has been driven by curricular and technological changes. Faculty perceive live lecture as beneficial, but students report a desire for alternative learning¹ to achieve better perforamnce². Understanding student's preferences concerning lecture can drive curriculum planning and faculty development, leading to more effective student learning.³

Design and Methods:

In 2018-19, 258 first-year medical students completed an end-of-course evaluation following each basic science course. Lecture attendance was self-reported using low (< 30% attendance), moderate (30%-60%), and high (>60%) groups.
br>
A Kruskal-Wallis ANOVA and Cliff's d effect size determined statistically significant median differences. Spearman correlations reported relational strength between items. IBM® SPSS® 24.0 generated statistical analysis.

Results:

Students reported statistically significant (p < 0.050) median differences in self-reported items based on lecture attendance to four Likert-scale items: Q1-Q3 (scale: 1=strongly disagree/6=strongly agree) and an overall item (scale: 1=unsatisfactory/5=outstanding).

- Q1. Classroom sessions enhanced my understanding of course content.
- Q2. Small group sessions, labs, and clinical/case-based sessions enhanced my ability to apply course content.
- Q3. Examinations covered major information from the lectures and other required course activities.

Overall impression of the course.

Students with moderate lecture attendance reported significantly (p < 0.050) higher scores in (Q1:d=0.21, Q2:d=0.58, Q3:d=0.21, Overall: d=0.21) compared to the low attendance and in (Q3: d=0.10; Overall: d=0.12) compared to high attendance.

The inter-item reliability of items Q1-Q3 was alpha=0.72 with inter-item correlations ranging from r=0.47-0.55. The overall item was significantly (p < 0.001) correlated to Q1(r=0.66), Q2(r=0.51), and Q3(0.62).

Conclusions:

Moderate levels of student attendance results in the best overall student impression of basic science courses and the perspective that examinations covered major information from the lectures. This suggests that current courses be designed with a smaller contribution of traditional lecture material.

References:

- 1. Horton D, Assessment outcome is weakly correlated with lecture attendance: influence of learning style and use of alternative materials, Adv Physiol Edu 2012;36:108-115.
- 2. Eisein D, Does class attendance matter? Results from a second-year medical school dermatology cohort study, International Journal of Dermatology 2015;54:807-816.
- 3. Gupta A, Exploring medical student decisions regarding attending live lectures and using recorded lectures, Medical Teacher 2013;35(9):767-771.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lijohnson@mcw.edu]

The Impact of Learning Culture on Student USMLE Step 1 Preparation: A Qualitative study

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Natasha Mehta, University of Illinois College of Medicine Shashank Patil, University of Illinois College of Medicine Hannah Seyller, University of Illinois College of Medicine Zobia Chunara, University of Illinois College of Medicine Lander McGinn, University of Illinois College of Medicine Kerim Kaylan, University of Illinois College of Medicine Laura Hirshfield, University of Illinois College of Medicine at Chicago

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do students perceive the learning environment, mental well-being, and administrative/faculty support before and after USMLE Step 1?

Background and relevance of the study:

Previous research has demonstrated the relationship between learning environment, mental well-being and student cohesiveness on exam performance by measuring these relationships quantitatively¹⁻⁴. While these studies highlight these relationships exist, they do not describe the mechanisms through which they impact students. In contrast, our study aims to explore how the learning environment, well-being, and student cohesiveness impact exam performance using qualitative interviewing methods.

Design and Methods:

Using the University of Illinois College of Medicine as the research site, we conducted seven 20-30 minute interviews with five total participants both before and after taking the exam. Interviews were coded by the research team using both a priori and emergent codes. Framework analysis was used to identify common themes among interviews⁵.

Results:

Three main themes were identified from these interviews: social isolation as a form of protection from anxiety, common coping strategies to promote mental well-being, and importance of faculty attitudes. Several students described removing themselves from their existing social circles or studying apart from other students to avoid comparison. Consistent with prior literature, students commonly utilized exercise and time for loved ones and hobbies, as coping strategies. Finally, students noted some faculty communicated encouraging messages and realistic expectations, easing anxiety, while others de-emphasized exam importance, leaving some with a false sense of security.

Conclusions:

Anxiety is a commonly identified theme among students preparing to take the exam. We discovered that when some students look for mechanisms to cope with anxiety, they may socially isolate themselves to counter the fear of failing to meet expectations. Furthermore, messaging

from faculty and advisors can alter the way students process their results after the exam and influence who students look to for support. Advisors may target these areas to improve the exam experience.

References:

- 1. Wayne SJ, Fortner SA, Kitzes JA, et al. Cause or effect? The relationship between student perception of the medical school learning environment and academic performance on USMLE Step 1 Cause or effect? The relationship between student perception of the medical school learning environment and academic performance on USMLE Step 1. 2013. DOI:10.3109/0142159X.2013.769678.
- 2. Encandela J, Gibson C, Angoff N, Leydon G, Green M. Characteristics of test anxiety among medical students and congruence of strategies to address it. 2014; 1: 4–6.
- 3. Strowd RE, Lambros A. Impacting student anxiety for the USMLE Step 1 through process-oriented preparation. 2010; 1: 1–6.
- 4. Schwartz LF, Lineberry M, Park YS, Kamin CS, Hyderi AA. Development and Evaluation of a Student-Initiated Test Preparation Program for the USMLE Step 1 Examination. Teach Learn Med 2017; 30: 1–9.
- 5. Ritchie J, Spencer L. Qualitative Data Analysis for Applied Policy Research in A. Bryman and R.G. Burgess (eds.) 'Analyzing Qualitative Data' (pp.173-194). Anal Qual Data 1994; : 173–94.
- 6. Vanston PD. The United States Medical Licensing Exam (USMLE) and medical student wellness: an ethnographic qualitative study at Cooper Medical School of Rowan University. 2016.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [namehta2@uic.edu]

The Impact of Stress and Personality on Faculty Resilience as Mediated by Character Strengths and Reflexivity

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin Kristina Kaljo, Medical College of Wisconsin Jennifer Apps, Medical College of Wisconsin Bipin Thapa, Medical College of Wisconsin Kerrie Quirk, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to analyze the relationship of medical school faculty resilience as impacted by perceived levels of stress and personality and mediated by character strengths and reflexivity.

Background and relevance of the study:

Academic faculty require resilience to persevere through many professional challenges of teaching, scholarship, and clinical duties. Successful achievement of these ongoing demands requires the capacity to persevere when stress levels rise. Personal characteristics can mediate the effects of stress² on resilience. Faculty who engage in reflexivity or self-evaluation of actions, can persevere and be resilient due to an ability to problem-solve when challenges arise. 3

Design and Methods:

In March 2018, twenty faculty were interviewed in person or on the phone at a private Midwestern medical college for thirty minutes about sources of stress that impacted their resilience. Faculty completed these surveys: Perceived Stress Survey, Values in Action Inventory of Strengths (VIA-IS), and the Five-Factor Personality Inventory (IPIP-5-50). Survey data analyzed with IBM® SPSS® 24.0. Focus group transcriptions analyzed with NVivo 11. This study is IRB approved.

Results:

Faculty resilience (alpha=0.8) was significantly (p \leq 0.050) correlated to stress (r=-0.6), conscientiousness (0.5), neuroticism (-0.4), courage(0.7), transcendence (0.6), and justice (0.5). A significant linear regression model of resilience (outcome) on stress (R²=0.31, p<.001) was mediated separately by the character strengths of courage (beta=0.7), transcendence (0.6) and justice (0.5).

A significant linear regression model of resilience (outcome) on four factors of personality (openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, and neuroticism) (R²=0.58, p<.001) reported that the character strength of courage mediated (beta=0.7) all four significant predictors. Transcendence mediated (beta=0.5) openness, agreeableness, and neuroticism Focus groups reported that reflexivity helps mitigate stress, but if thoughts turn to rumination, it can backfire and compromise resilience. Mediating factors include maintaining perspective, empowerment, and having work-life boundaries.

Conclusions:

Character strengths and reflexivity mediate the effects of stress and personality on resilience.

References:
1. Willis KD, Burnett HJ, The Power of Stress: Perceived Stress and its Relationship with Rumination, Self-Concept Clarity, and Resilience, North American Journal of Psychology 2016:18(3);483-498.

2. Martinez-Marti ML, Ruch W, Character Strengths Predict Resilience Over and Above Positive Affect, Self-Efficacy, Optimism, Social Support, Self-Esteem, and Life Satisfaction, The Journal of Positive Psychology 2017;12(2):110-119. 3. East L, Jackson D, O'Brien L, Peters K. Storytelling: An Approach That Can Help to Develop Resilience, Nurse Research 2010:17(3):17-25.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [rtreat@mcw.edu]

The Rise of Physician Wellness Topics at the CGEA Meeting

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Erin Ahart, University of Kansas School of Medicine Sharon Fitzgerald, University of Kansas School of Medicine Kelli Krase, University of Kansas School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How has the proportion of wellness topics represented at AAMC CGEA meetings changed over the past 10 years?

Background and relevance of the study:

Physician wellness is an important topic that has received increased recognition in recent years. As professional demands often take priority over personal needs in the lives of training and practicing doctors, maintaining physical and psychological wellbeing can be a significant challenge. Growing recognition of the need to promote wellness and prevent burnout among physicians may be reflected by increased representation of related topics at regional medical conferences.

Design and Methods:

We reviewed all conference events from the AAMC CGEA meetings dating from 2010-2019. Events related to physician wellness or burnout were then separated by category (wellness session, poster presentation, oral presentation, workshop/breakout session, or keynote speaker). These wellness/burnout events were compared to the total number of events within each category as well as within each conference as a whole. These values were then displayed as graphs.

Results:

Our analysis indicates no clear pattern in the representation of wellness topics at the AAMC CGEA meetings from 2010-2019. The conferences in 2010, 2013, and 2017 appear to include the highest proportion of wellness topics, with 2012 and 2014 including the lowest.

Conclusions:

In the setting of rising emphasis on physician wellness, the proportion of related topics discussed at AAMC CGEA meetings does not appear to mirror this trend in a predictable pattern. Additional investigation is needed to more fully address how physician wellness is represented among medical organizations.

References:

CGEA Meeting Programs, 2010-2019.

Blackwelder R, Hood Watson K, Freedy JR (2016) Physician Wellness Across the Professional Spectrum. Prim Care 43(2): 355-361.

Eckleberry-Hunt J, Kirkpatrick H, Taku K, Hunt R (2017) Self-Report Study of Predictors of Physician Wellness, Burnout, and Quality of Patient Care. South Med J 110(4): 244-248.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [erahart@gmail.com]

<u>Using A Modified Delphi Method to Reach Consensus on Best Practices for Abstract Resubmissions to Multiple Medical Education Conferences</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Paula Ross, University of Michigan Nicole Borges, Dartmouth Geisel School of Medicine Nikki Zaidi, University of Michigan

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

What are conference organizers' perspectives for best practices for abstract resubmissions to medical education conferences?

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical education researchers are often uncertain whether they should resubmit abstracts to multiple conferences. While it is important to adhere to ethical practices and professional etiquette, best practices for conference resubmissions remain elusive. To establish clear guidelines for best practices, sufficient information must be collected and disseminated among the medical education research community.

Design and Methods:

Using a 50-question online survey, we conducted a modified Delphi process to identify best practices for abstract submissions to medical education conferences. We recruited conference representatives from non-specialty-medical education conferences across four conference types (institutional, regional, national, and international) to serve as panelists for two rounds of the online survey. Responses were summarized (percent agreement and rationale) and shared in an effort to reach consensus (>80% agreement) across survey items. Items reaching consensus in Round 1 were eliminated from the Round 2 survey; panelists were asked to reconsider their responses based on majority responses or provide additional rationale if remaining outside the majority.

Results:

Eleven panelists, representing all four conference types, participated. Panelists reached consensus that all conferences should require IRB approval for research involving human subjects and attestations that all authors meet ICMJE authorship criteria. Panelists also reached consensus that previously submitted and accepted abstracts could be resubmitted to any other conference type. Consensus indicated that abstracts presented at institutional, national, and international conferences could be resubmitted to any of these three conference types; however, consensus was not reached regarding resubmission of abstracts previously presented at national or international conferences to regional conferences. Likewise, consensus was not reached on whether an abstract could be submitted using data and results currently under review or accepted for publication.

Conclusions:

Our findings will provide direction regarding best practices for medical education abstract submissions.

References:

Hsu CC, B. Sandford BA. The Delphi Technique: Making Sense of Consensus. Practical Assessment Research & Evaluation, 2007;12:1-8.

Waggoner J, Carline JD, Durning SJ. Is There a Consensus on Consensus Methodology? Descriptions and Recommendations for Future Consensus Research. Academic Medicine. 2016; 91:663-8

For more information about this abstract please contact: [paulat@umich.edu]

<u>Using CBSE Scores and Dedicated Study Time as Predictors for Medical</u> Student Performance on USMLE Step 1

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Christopher McCoy, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Amber Todd, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

What is the correlation between CBSE score and student performance on USMLE Step 1, and how does CBSE score and length of dedicated self-study time impact student performance on Step 1?

Background and relevance of the study:

The United States Medical Licensing Examination Step 1 has increasingly become the center of attention since students with a higher score are more likely to match into competitive specialties ¹⁻⁴. The National Board of Medical Examiners Comprehensive Basic Science Examination (CBSE) is a standardized exam used by multiple medical schools to assess student readiness to take Step 1. CBSE and Step 1 scores have been correlated at other schools⁵; we investigated how CBSE scores and length of dedicated study time impact our students' Step 1 scores.

Design and Methods:

We obtained CBSE score, Step 1 score, and length of time (days) between CBSE administration and Step 1 test date for students in graduating 2017-2021 cohorts from the Boonshoft School of Medicine (n=521).

We used a Spearman correlation to determine the strength of the correlation between CBSE and Step 1 scores and stepwise linear regression to determine the predictive value of CBSE scores and length of time between CBSE and Step 1.

Results:

CBSE scores were significantly correlated with Step 1 score (r=0.858, p<0.001). CBSE score and length of time between CBSE and Step 1 accounted for 71.1% of the variance in Step 1 score. For every one-point increase in CBSE score, a student's Step 1 score increased by 1.535 points (p<0.001); for every day increase between the CBSE and Step 1, a student's Step 1 score decreased by 0.072 points (p=0.001).

Conclusions:

Our results support the use of the CBSE to determine student readiness for Step 1. Our results indicate students should take Step 1 when they are ready; increased study time beyond what is needed to pass will not yield higher scores.

References:

1. National Resident Matching Program, Data Release and Research Committee: Results of the 2018 NRMP Program Director Survey. National Resident Matching Program, Washington, DC. 2018.

- 2. Gauer JL, Jackson JB. The association of USMLE Step 1 and Step 2CK scores with residency match specialty and location. Med Educ Online. 2017;22(1):1358579.
- 3. Loh AR, Joseph D, Keenan JD, Lietman TM, Naseri A. Predictors of matching in an ophthalmology residency program. Ophthalmology. 2013;120(4):865–70.
- 4. Bernstein J. Not the Last Word: Ending The Residency Application Arms Race—Starting with the USMLE. Clin Orthop Relat Res. 2016;474(12):2571-2576. doi:10.1007/s11999-016-5108-5
- 5. Giordano C, Hutchinson D, Peppler R (September 07, 2016). A Predictive Model for USMLE Step 1 Scores. Cureus 8(9): e769. doi:10.7759/cureus.769

For more information about this abstract please contact: [amber.todd@wright.edu]

<u>Using Social Cognitive Career Theory to Evaluate the Development of Educator Identity in Clinician-Educator Trainees</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Abstract Presentation

Authors:

Jessica Byram, Indiana University School of Medicine Kyle Robertson, Indiana University School of Medicine Christen Dilly, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study examined the professional identity formation (PIF) of trainees in a clinician-educator (CE) training pathway to understand the influences that support the development of an educator identity.

Background and relevance of the study:

Many future CE's experience tension between their identities as clinicians and their roles as educators. Educational programs build trainees' knowledge and skills, but they must also assist in the formation of a professional identity that will encourage self-efficacy, confidence, and full engagement with their communities of practice. Training pathways for CEs should incorporate elements to support professional identity formation (PIF) as educators. However, it is not known which elements are effective in supporting PIF in aspiring educators.

Design and Methods:

Eight Department of Medicine residents and fellows selected for the CE Training Pathway (CETP) at Indiana University School of Medicine agreed to participate. Participants took part in three semi-structured interviews across the first year of the pathway. Interview transcripts were analyzed using Social Cognitive Career Theory (SCCT)³ as a conceptual framework to explore self-efficacy, outcome expectations, and PIF as educators.

Results:

Most participants did not identify as educators at the beginning of the study but all had goals to become better educators and understand CE career pathways, and they aspired to become clinical educators in some capacity. Self-efficacy was developed through formal learning experiences within the pathway by gaining knowledge of educational theory, belonging to a community of educators, and conducting educational scholarship. Engaging with CE role models encouraged self-efficacy by demonstrating rewarding career pathways. Participants enhanced their own self-efficacy by seeking opportunities to act as an educator, practicing skills they learned within the pathway, and reflecting on teaching effectiveness.

Conclusions:

With exposure to role models, feedback on teaching, and engaging in scholarship, the participants began to build self-efficacy and identity as educators.

References:

- 1. Bartle E, Thistlethwaite J. Becoming a medical educator: motivation, socialisation and navigation. BMC Med Educ. 2014;14:110.
- 2. Sabel E, Archer J. "Medical education is the ugly duckling of the medical world" and other challenges to medical educators' identity construction: a qualitative study. Acad Med. 2014;89(11):1474-1480.
- 3. Lent RW, Brown SD, Hackett G. Career development from a social cognitive perspective. In Brown D, Brooks L., Eds. Career Choice and Development. San Francisco: Wiley Publishers; 1996:373-421.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jbyram@iupui.edu]

Small Group Discussion, Workshops and Panel Discussion Abstracts

"It's Tool Time!" A New Instructional Design Tool for Curriculum Mapping

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Lindsey Allison, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Linda Love, University of Nebraska Medical Center Max Anderson, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The Liaison Committee on Medical Education (LCME) requires that all allopathic medical schools define their program objectives in "outcome-based terms" (LCME Element 6.1). One way that medical schools can ensure they are reviewing their program objectives (also required by the LCME within Element 8.4) is to participate in the annual AAMC Curriculum Inventory (CI). Implementing measurable program objectives, using an instructional design tool, based on the Understanding by Design (UbD)^{1, 2} framework and L. Dee Fink's backward design strategies³, is key to ensuring schools can adequately assess that both the students and the program are meeting these program objectives. Through purposeful backward design and curriculum mapping, CI data becomes more effective. The aim of this workshop is to give participants a tool that will allow them to map their school's objectives, learning events, and assessments for every course in their curriculum. Creating a streamlined approach for the backward design process and in turn ensuring program outcomes are being met through course content and assessment measures.

Learning Objectives:

- Describe the UbD framework and L. Dee Fink's backward design strategies and these relate to CI.
- Recognize the importance of instructional design tools to ensure program outcomes are being met.
- Demonstrate how an instructional design tool can assist with CI.

Session Methods and Format:

[20 minutes] Brief introductions from the workshop facilitators and:

- o Explain how L. Dee Fink's backward design strategies
- o Brief overview of development of and how to use the UbD instructional design tool
- o Explain how all of this relates to AAMC CI

[30 minutes] At each table, participants will be provided with a partially completed UbD template.

- O Participants will spend the first 20 minutes working through the alignment of the various tables within the document
- The remaining 10 minutes will be spent as a group talking through the completed document, focusing on any objectives that were not matched and how this would affect CI.

[30 minutes] Each table will be asked to brainstorm how this template could be useful for CI at their institution and any barriers they face with implementation.

- Each table will have 15 minutes to brainstorm on large post-it's how to use this template at their institution. Being sure to consider the roles of faculty and staff in the process of completion of the template, implementation concerns, and review of the curriculum inventory.
- Remaining 15 minutes will be spent reviewing the various groups processes for completion, implementation, and concerns.

[10 minutes] Wrap-up and questions

Experience:

Lindsey Allison, MEd.: Manager of Curriculum Development (9 years at Wright State)
Linda Love, EdD: Director of Faculty Development (15 years at University of Nebraska)
Max Anderson, MLIS, MS: Director of Instructional Design and Learning Innovation (6 years at University of Illinois College of Medicine)

References:

- 1. Wiggins, G., McTigh, J. (2012). The understanding by design guide to creating high-quality units. Alexandria, VA: ASCD.
- 2. Wiggins, G., McTigh, J. (2012). The understanding by design guide to advanced concepts in creating and reviewing units. Alexandria, VA: ASCD.
- 3. Fink, D. L. (2003). The self-directed guide to designing courses for significant learning. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass. Retrieved from: https://www.deefinkandassociates.com/GuidetoCourseDesignAug05.pdf

For more information about this abstract please contact: [lindsey.allison@wright.edu]

A Framework for Longitudinal Professionalism Development: A Balanced Approach

Submission Type: Small Group Discussions Accepted as: Small Group Discussions

Authors:

Michael Busha, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker MD School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The development of professionalism characteristics among a diverse medical student population is often frustrating as the domain encompasses a broad range of ideal behaviors with career-long consequences when not integrated into our learner's daily habits. Management of professionalism expectations for students and the assets required to intervene when expectations are not met is often resource exhaustive. Remediation, particularly for professionalism concerns, can significantly frustrate faculty and clinical staff. Intervention attempts are often met with defensive and/or aggressive responses which further frustrate and exhaust resources. A standard framework that aligns with the defined developmental pathway provides comforts of structure and standard process. This structure and process can foster confidence within faculty that promotes student development and protection of relationships within the clinical learning environment.

Learning Objectives:

- 1) Lead the development of a standardized professionalism curriculum with a defined developmental pathway
- 2) Discuss methods for tracking and creating a culture of accountability with the domain.
- 3) Initiate a standardized approach to resource process management and utilization for students needing remediations in the domain of professionalism.

Session Methods and Format:

This small group discussion will be divided into two segments.

- 1) The first segment will present a longitudinal approach to setting developmentally appropriate professionalism expectations
 - Creating a longitudinal view of commendations and concerns
 - Tracking student progress through each course/clerkship
 - Review strategies for standardizing formative and summative determinations for inclusion in permanent student records and the MSPE.

(15-minute overview)

(10 minutes of directed small group discussions with report-out examples.)

- 2) The second segment will focus on standardization of resource management in areas of professionalism development.
 - (10-minute overview)
 - (10-minute open group discussion)

Experience:

Dr. Busha's experience in UME includes leadership positions in regional campus development

for clerkship integration, academic advising, professionalism remediation through the Student Performance Committee, management of student sanctions and dismissal, and directing foundations clinical skills development; relevant GME experience includes serving as a program director for five years.

Dr. Gibson's experience includes prior roles as scholar advisor and clerkship director for Pediatrics, developing foundations clinical skills and professionalism curriculum, leading school curriculum development and management for IPE and oversight of clinical applications portion of curriculum including all student remediations

References:

n/a

For more information about this abstract please contact: [mike.busha@med.wmich.edu]

A Resident-Led Mentorship Framework for Underrepresented Minority Medical Students: The STRIVE Initiative

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Quentin Youmans, Northwestern University, Feinberg School of Medicine Jennifer Adrissi, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine Adesuwa Akhetuamhen, Northwestern University, Feinberg School of Medicine Mateus Lima, Northwestern University, Feinberg School of Medicine Ramael Ohiomoba, Northwestern University, Feinberg School of Medicine Aashish Didwania, Northwestern University, Feinberg School of Medicine Diane Wayne, Northwestern University, Feinberg School of Medicine Linda Suleiman, Northwestern University, Feinberg School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Preparing medical students for the rigors of residency is a challenge. The transition for underrepresented minority (URM) medical students can be particularly difficult as they report facing lack of support, discrimination, and lack of cultural representation during medical school. Challenges persist in residency as URM residents note grappling with microaggressions and bias, feeling pressure to be ambassadors for their race, and trouble negotiating professional and personal identity. In this regard, URM graduate medical trainees are uniquely equipped to prepare URM medical students for the residency experience. Student to Resident Institutional Vehicle for Excellence (STRIVE) is an initiative at Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine created to meet this need. The initiative provides academic, social, and professional support while preparing students for the unique obstacles experienced during training. There are three pillars of programming: panel discussions, medical school curriculum review sessions, and social events. The program has been evaluated by participation rates and a mentor survey. Over the past three years, 32 URM graduate medical trainees have participated in mentoring events for URM medical students at Feinberg. At this workshop, participants will explore the unique challenges evident in the transition from medical school to residency for URM trainees. We will discuss how mentorship by more senior peers can effectively mitigate these challenges. Participants will also learn concrete steps for creating a mentorship model at their respective intuitions and explore institution-specific considerations. The purpose of this workshop will be to build a mentorship framework that can be adopted to help address this important subset of medical student transitions.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Review the unique training considerations for URM trainees
- 2. Define the role of senior peer mentorship in preparing medical students for residency
- 3. Learn concrete steps for implementing a sustainable mentorship model for URM trainees

Session Methods and Format:

Section (Time in minutes):

Introduction and Background (10)

Small Group: Challenges of Training for URMs (10)

Large Group Debrief (5)

The Case for Mentorship (5)

Student to Resident Institutional Vehicle for Excellence (25)

Small Group: Plan for Mentorship in your Program (15)

Large Group Debrief (10)

Questions/Comments (10)

Experience:

Quentin Youmans, MD: Founded the mentorship program Student to Resident Institutional Vehicle for Excellence (STRIVE).

Jennifer Adrissi, MD: Serves as the current President of STRIVE.

Adesuwa Akhetuamhen, MD: Serves as the current Vice President of STRIVE.

Mateus Lima: Participates as a medical student mentee in STRIVE.

Ramael Ohiomoba: Participates as a medical student mentee in STRIVE.

Aashish Didwania, MD: Serves as a faculty sponsor for STRIVE.

Diane Wayne, MD: Serves as faculty sponsor for STRIVE.

Linda Suleiman, MD: Serves as the faculty advisor for STRIVE, Director of Diversity and Inclusion at McGaw Medical Center.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: [quentin-youmans@northwestern.edu]

Addressing LCME Standard 6.3 in the Pre-clerkship Years

Submission Type: Small Group Discussions Accepted as: Small Group Discussions

Authors:

Jack Kopechek, The Ohio State University College of Medicine Douglas Danforth, The Ohio State University College of Medicine Jennifer McCallister, The Ohio State University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Self-directed and Lifelong Learning skills are essential for developing and maintaining clinical excellence. LCME Standard 6.3 states that the faculty of a medical school must ensure that the medical curriculum includes self-directed learning experiences and unscheduled time to allow medical students to develop the skills of lifelong learning. Self-directed learning involves medical students' self-assessment of learning needs; independent identification, analysis, and synthesis of relevant information; appraisal of the credibility of information sources; and feedback on these skills. Integrating instruction and assessment of self-directed learning skills is a challenge for many medical school curricula especially during the pre-clerkship years.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Compare and contrast the teaching and assessment of self-directed learning skills among various medical school pre-clerkship curricula.
- 2. Describe how self-directed learning is fostered at The Ohio State University College of Medicine during the pre-clerkship years.
- 3. Identify some best practices for teaching and assessing self-directed learning skills in the pre-clinical years.

Session Methods and Format:

The session will alternate between small group discussions at each table, reporting out to the large group, and the sharing of experiences and insights from the presenters. Jack Kopechek will moderate the table discussions and report outs.

- Presentation- Overview of LCME standard 6.3/why this is important aspect of the curriculum- Jennifer McCallister (5 minutes)
- Table Discussion- Which elements of this standard are most easily taught and assessed during the pre-clerkship years? What methods have been most effective (3 minutes)
- Report out- (2 minutes)
- Table discussions- Which elements of this standard are most challenging to address in the pre-clerkship years? What are the barriers to teaching and assessing these skills during these years? (3 minutes)
- Report out- (2 minutes)
- Presentation- Teaching and Assessment of Self-directed Learning Skills at The Ohio State University College of Medicine- Doug Danforth and Jack Kopechek (15 minutes)
- Large group questions and comments- (5 minutes)

- Table Discussion- Based on today's discussion, what teaching or assessment practices hold the most promise for meeting the LCME 6.3 standard? What changes do you want to consider in your pre-clerkship curricula to better address this standard (5 minutes)
- Report out/Summary- (3 minutes)

Experience:

Jack Kopechek MD, Director of Competency; Practice-based Learning and Improvement, The Ohio State University College of Medicine

Doug Danforth PhD, Director of the Pre-clerkship Curriculum, The Ohio State University College of Medicine

Jennifer McCallister MD, Associate Dean of Medical Education, The Ohio State University College of Medicine

References:

https://lcme.org/publications https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/23807109

For more information about this abstract please contact: [jack.kopechek@nationwidechildrens.org]

EPA Aligned Patient Discharge Education Workshop

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Radhika Sreedhar, University of Illinois College of Medicine Asra Khan, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ananya Gangopadhyaya, University of Illinois College of Medicine Yoon Soo Park, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ana Clara Mauro, University of Illinois College of Medicine Susan Doh, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Hospital discharge is a pivotal time point in patient safety and care. ^{1,2,3,4,5} There are limited formal curricula instructing medical students about patient discharge in the literature. ^{7,8,9,10,11,12,13} Some reports show that only 56% of medical students have reviewed discharge instructions with patients, and 96% desire additional training in the discharge process. ⁶

Participation in a curriculum tailored to improve medical students' skills, attitudes and knowledge of safe discharge practices can have a meaningful impact on discharging patients safely during residency. The AAMC's 13 core "Entrustable Professional Activities" (EPAs)14 has several EPA's that encompasses higher-order synthesis of all the skills and competencies required during hospital discharge. We propose that a patient discharge curriculum should be guided by these EPA's and require students to demonstrate readiness for discharging patients as they begin residency.

The overarching goal of the workshop is to provide a skill-oriented interactive experience, where participants learn about our a) discharge curriculum for medical students and b) instruments which provide students feedback about their demonstration of entrustable professional activities during patient discharge.

Learning Objectives:

- Describe the goals and content of discharge curriculum, including key aspects of the discharge process that medical students should master prior to internship
- Review instruments used to assess student readiness for discharging hospitalized patients using EPA language
- o Identify potential implementation challenges for the patient discharge curriculum

Session Methods and Format:

5 minutes: Introduction of topic by facilitator

25 minutes: Goals and content

small group 10m

large group discussion 10m

facilitator summarizes best practices 5m

50 minutes: Walk Through of the Curriculum

participants will fill out EPA-aligned pre curriculum survey and view instructional video on discharge: 5m

participants will engage in the discharge observation tool activity 15m participants will engage in a mock post discharge patient phone call activity 10m facilitators will share patient discharge presentation and video of debrief session with students 10m

facilitators lead discussion regarding strengths and weaknesses and barriers to implementation of discharge curriculum: 10m

10 minutes: Facilitator led summary of key points of curriculum

Experience:

Radhika Sreedhar, MD, MS. is the Director of Clinical Integration and an assistant clerkship director for the M4 sub-internship in internal medicine.

Asra Khan MD., is a Course director for the Doctoring & Clinical Skills longitudinal course, and is the clerkship director for the M3 Medicine rotation and M4 sub-internship in internal medicine.

Ananya Gangopadhyaya MD., is a Course director for the Doctoring & Clinical Skills longitudinal course, and assistant clerkship director for the M4 sub-internship in internal medicine.

Yoon Soo Park, PhD, is the associate head of the Department of Medical Education and Director of Research, Office of Educational Affairs at the University of Illinois College of Medicine.

Ana Clara Mauro, MD, MPH, is a fourth year resident in Internal Medicine-Pediatrics with a background in caregiver research and an interest in medical education since completion of medical school

Susan Doh BA, is a medical student at the University of Illinois at Chicago College of Medicine (IMED) currently doing a research year to focus on innovative curricular approaches to medical student education.

References:

- 1. Forster, A. J., H. J. Murff, J. F. Peterson, T. K. Gandhi and D. W. Bates (2003). "The incidence and severity of adverse events affecting patients after discharge from the hospital." Ann Intern Med 138(3): 161-167.
- 2. Forster, A. J., H. D. Clark, A. Menard, N. Dupuis, R. Chernish, N. Chandok, A. Khan and C. van Walraven (2004). "Adverse events among medical patients after discharge from hospital." CMAJ 170(3): 345-349.
- 3. Forster, A. J., H. J. Murff, J. F. Peterson, T. K. Gandhi and D. W. Bates (2005). "Adverse drug events occurring following hospital discharge." J Gen Intern Med 20(4): 317-323.
- 4. Wong, J. D., J. M. Bajcar, G. G. Wong, S. M. Alibhai, J. H. Huh, A. Cesta, G. R. Pond and O. A. Fernandes (2008). "Medication reconciliation at hospital discharge: evaluating discrepancies." Ann Pharmacother 42(10): 1373-1379.
- 5. The Joint Commission, 2019
- 6. Block, L., M. Morgan-Gouveia, W. Kelly, M. Kannarkat, K. C. Chretien and D. Cayea (2015). "Participation of Medical Students in Discharge Tasks: A Needs Assessment." J Am Geriatr Soc 63(10): 2181-2183.
- 7. Lai, C. J., H. E. Nye, T. Bookwalter, A. Kwan and K. E. Hauer (2008). "Postdischarge follow-up visits for medical and pharmacy students on an inpatient medicine clerkship." J Hosp Med 3(1): 20-27.
- 8. Ouchida, K., V. M. LoFaso, C. F. Capello, S. Ramsaroop and M. C. Reid (2009). "Fast forward rounds: an effective method for teaching medical students to transition patients safely across care settings." J Am Geriatr Soc 57(5): 910-917.
- 9. Bray-Hall, S., K. Schmidt and E. Aagaard (2010). "Toward safe hospital discharge: a transitions in care curriculum for medical students." J Gen Intern Med 25(8): 878-881.

- 10. Bradley, S. M., D. Chang, R. Fallar and R. Karani (2015). "A patient safety and transitions of care curriculum for third-year medical students." Gerontol Geriatr Educ 36(1): 45-57.
- 11. Vogler, C., J. Arnoldi, H. Moose and S. T. Hingle (2017). "Interprofessional education involving medical and pharmacy students during transitions of care." J Interprof Care 31(3): 404-406.
- 12. McInnis, R. P., A. J. Lee, B. Schwartz, M. Fazal and A. Hohler (2019). "A quality improvement curriculum for the neurology clerkship: A practice-based approach to discharge education." eNeurologicalSci 16: 100196.
- 13. Spitzer-Shohat, S., D. Sagi, M. Schuster, M. Ben-Ami, M. Rivo, R. Tur-Kaspa and M. C. J. Rudolf (2019). "Teaching the Interplay Between Social Determinants of Health (SDH) and Health Outcomes: the ETGAR Student-Delivered Service." J Gen Intern Med 34(7): 1103-1104.
- 14. Englander, R., T. Flynn, S. Call, C. Carraccio, L. Cleary, T. B. Fulton, M. J. Garrity, S. A. Lieberman, B. Lindeman, M. L. Lypson, R. M. Minter, J. Rosenfield, J. Thomas, M. C. Wilson and C. A. Aschenbrener (2016). "Toward Defining the Foundation of the MD Degree: Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency." Acad Med 91(10): 1352-1358.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [sreedhar@uic.edu]

<u>Finding Ways to Make Learners Matter: A Design-Thinking Approach to the Learning Environment</u>

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Karen Marcdante, Medical College of Wisconsin Rana Higgins, Medical College of Wisconsin Alexandria Lutley, Medical College of Wisconsin Caitlin Patten, Medical College of Wisconsin Sandra Pfister, Medical College of Wisconsin Julia Schmitt, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

One of the goals of medical education is to ensure optimal learning through creation of a supportive learning environment (LE). Best practices in creating LEs include development of effective relationships between faculty and learners and supporting effective communication processes. Making the learner feel that they matter results in psychological safety and better learning outcomes². A focus on making learners feel they matter can be transformative. Little is known about what makes learners at various stages feel a part of the team. Understanding what activities make learners feel they matter can help us design interventions to improve the LE. This workshop will use the first three steps of design thinking, an integrative human-centered method of innovation, to identify strategies that make learners feel they matter. Themes about the topic, obtained during empathy interviews for projects developed through the Kern Institute for the Transformation of Medical Education, will be presented (step one). Small groups of participants (design teams) will each select a theme and create meaningful questions based on the learner's perspective to define opportunities (step two). Participants will brainstorm to generate creative solutions for each theme (step three). Finally, three solutions for each theme will be selected by the original design team and categorized on an impact/effort matrix. In a large group discussion, participants will prioritize strategies and discuss possibilities for implementation, selecting several strategies that may be implemented in their own institution. The completed impact/effort matrix will be distributed to interested participants.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Describe the importance of mattering in learning environments.
- 2. Apply design thinking methodology to define and understand "mattering" from the learner's perspective, brainstorm solutions and prioritize possible interventions.
- 3. Select at least one intervention that may be applicable at your home institution.

Session Methods and Format:

02 minutes: Introduction (Open discussion)
10 minutes: Review of mattering and impact on (Brief didactics)

learning environment

10 minutes: Presentation of empathy interview themes
10 minutes: Completion of design thinking worksheets
30 minutes: Brainstorming
(Small group work)
08 minutes: Placement on impact/effort matrix
(Small group work)
15 minutes: Identify possible interventions
(Large group work)
05 minutes: Wrap up
(Interactive assessment)

Experience:

Karen Marcdante is an award-winning medical educator with 30 years' experience teaching, administering and presenting and a passion for developing learners to be their best.

Rana Higgins is an award-winning teacher and Associate Residency Program Director striving to improve the learning environment.

Alexandria Lutley is passionate about fostering resiliency in her role as Associate Program Director for Pediatric Neurology.

Caitlin Patten is an award-winning teacher and Associate Clerkship Director for Surgery with a goal of creating a positive learning environment.

Sandra Pfister is an MCW Society of Teaching Scholar who has implemented innovative strategies into medical student curriculum as Course Director of Pharmacology and Toxicology.

Julia Schmitt is the program manager of human-centered design and entrepreneurial-minded learning at the Kern Institute for the Transformation of Medical Education, coaching more than 75 teams through innovation projects.

References:

- 1. The best practice clinical learning environment framework. State of Victoria, Department of Health and Human Services, 2016 http://www.darcyassociates.com.au
- 2. Flett G. The Psychology of Mattering: Understanding the Human Need to be Significant. Academic Press (Elsevier). London 2018

For more information about this abstract please contact: [kwendel@mcw.edu]

Helping the Helpers: Empowering Families and Partners to Prevent Medical Student Burnout

Submission Type: Small Group Discussions Accepted as: Small Group Discussions

Authors:

Eran Magen, Center for Supportive Relationships Jeffrey Cannon, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Kim Gilliam, Wright Laura Malosh, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine

Body:

Rationale:

Medical students are at high risk for burnout, isolation, depression and suicide, with a 2016 JAMA meta-analysis estimating the prevalence of depressive symptoms at 27.2% and suicidal ideation at 11.1%. Students' relationships with their loved ones are an important protective factor against suicide, and yet most training programs do not offer any resources to help families and loved ones maintain strong connections to students. In this interactive session, we share the experience of eight medical schools implementing "My MD-to-Be", an innovative program that helps support givers understand, empathize with, and better support medical students. Students select their support givers (typically parents, spouses/partners and friends), who receive emails every 1-2 weeks with educational resources about common medical student experiences, tailored to each school's curriculum. The program is extremely well-accepted by students, with over 90% recommending it for other students. In addition to informing personal support givers, our schools distribute these resources to faculty and staff, in order to improve their connection to the student experience, and consequently their ability to teach and advise effectively.

Following our presentation, we will invite participants to share how their schools include loved ones in providing ongoing support to their medical student. This small group discussion is geared toward medical educators and administrators who seek to learn and share strategies and approaches to preventing medical student burnout.

Learning Objectives:

Participants will (1) Analyze the challenges and importance of maintaining strong personal relationships while in medical school; (2) Compare approaches that different medical schools take to help students maintain strong personal relationships; (3) Identify possible approaches to "borrow" from peer institutions.

Session Methods and Format:

10 minutes: Review of medical student burnout, personal relationships as a protective factor

against burnout, and the mechanisms that underlie social support

10 minutes: Review of My MD-to-Be, an innovative program that helps loved ones offer

effective support to medical students

10 minutes: Breakout-group discussions (What are challenges associated with helping students

stay connected with their loved ones? How does your institution help medical

students stay connected with loved ones throughout their training?)

10 minutes: Q&A / Group discussion

5 minutes: Takeaways and closing

Experience:

Eran Magen, PhD, is the founder and CEO of Circles of Support, the former research director of the department of Counseling and Psychological Services at the University of Pennsylvania.

Jeffrey Cannon, MD, is a first year resident in anesthesiology at Cleveland Clinic (Case Western Reserve).

Laura Malosh, PhD, is the Assistant Dean for Student Affairs at the University of Cincinnati College of Medicine.

Kim Gilliam, EdD, is the director of student services at the Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine.

References:

Rotenstein LS, Ramos MA, Torre M, et al. Prevalence of Depression, Depressive Symptoms, and Suicidal Ideation Among Medical Students: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. JAMA. 2016;316(21):2214-2236. doi:10.1001/jama.2016.17324. Thompson G, McBride RB, Hosford CC, Halaas G. Resilience among medical students: The role of coping style and social support. Teach Learn Med. 2016;28(2):174–182.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [eran@supportiverelationships.org]

<u>Is the Team Playing the Same Game?</u> Generations in the Medical Education Workforce

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Faye Haggar, University of Nebraska Medical Center Linda Love, University of Nebraska Medical Center Gary Beck Dallaghan, University of North Carolina School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The last few years have brought a wealth of changes to medical education — specifically changes in technology, curriculum, and teaching styles. Managing these changes effectively takes a highly cohesive team — one that moves in the same direction and wants the same things. There's only one problem: the medical education workforce team is not a cohesive one. Never before have 5 generations of professionals been working and learning together. All members of the team must learn to radically empathize with, and appreciate the strengths of, the "other" in order to move beyond their preconceptions and defensive positions. All members would benefit from an enhanced understanding of how the rapid changes in medicine (both the manner in which it is practiced and taught) and trait differences between generations, interact with hierarchical dynamics to impact medical education. Teams need to look beyond differences in attitudes and values, and instead focus on transforming communication styles, work practices, and expectations. This workshop will share best practices for transforming the team in order for all members to excel at playing the same game: the game of teaching.

Learning Objectives:

- Identify the generations found within their teams and describe the traits of the generations
- Discuss the potential impact of these traits on the team/workforce and the learning environment
- Describe at least 1 change they will consider making in order to transform the medical education workforce

Session Methods and Format:

(10 min) Introduction and Background: Addressing why this topic continues is relevant in medical education

(20 min) Activity – Think About Your Team. Worksheet + table discussion has attendees identify the generations within their team and characteristics they notice about each one. (35 min) Case Studies and Best Practices for Generational Teams in Medical Education (10 min) Wrap-Up and Questions

Experience:

Dr. Haggar leads GME departmental innovation in the area of design, development and evaluation of curriculum and digital pedagogies that promote engaged, personalized and lifelong learning.

Dr. Love is the director of faculty development at UNMC and works to assure its workforce is ready for the future of medical education.

Dr. Beck Dallaghan co-edited Mind the Gap: Generational Differences in Medical Education and has given numerous presentations related to generational differences in medical education.

References:

AAMC Graduation Questionnaire 2018 All Schools Summary Report July 2018 pg. 3. https://www.aamc.org/data/gq Talmon GA, Beck Dallaghan GL (eds). Mind the Gap: Generational Differences in Medical Education. Syracuse, NY: Gegensatz Press, 2017.

Roberts DH, Newman LR & Schwartzstein RM. Twelve tips for facilitating Millennials' learning, Medical Teacher, 2012; 34:4, 274-278

van Dam M, Noben C, & Higgins M. Bridging generation gaps in medical education: a 'light bulb moment' at the Association for Medical Education in Europe annual conference in Barcelona. Med Teach. 2017; 39(11): 1195-1196.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [faye.haggar@unmc.edu]

Nuts-and-Bolts: Turning Educational Projects into Successful Submissions to MedEdPORTAL

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Sara Hunt, AAMC Julie Broski, University of Kansas School of Medicine Alex Grieco, Ohio State University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

MedEdPORTAL, the Journal for Teaching and Learning Resources of the Association of American Medical Colleges, peer reviews and publishes educational resources. Its recent acceptance into MEDLINE for indexing solidified its position as a premier venue for health science educators who teach medical and dental learners and wish to publish and disseminate their educational projects.

Because MedEdPORTAL's publications count toward promotion processes, helping CGEA members understand how to present their educational innovations as scholarship is critical to their career development. The process of submitting to MedEdPORTAL requires an Educational Summary Report (ESR), which is structured like a traditional research manuscript. However, developing a manuscript through the lens of educational scholarship may require more guidance in how the work is presented.

This workshop is designed to provide hands-on experience with evaluating and revising a draft of an ESR to submit to MedEdPORTAL. Participants will be asked to identify a teaching/learning resource potentially submittable to MedEdPORTAL and bring related materials to the conference.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Articulate the ways in which the Educational Summary Report (ESR) is similar to a traditional manuscript.
- 2. Describe each part of the ESR and how well-written components adhere to standards for scholarship.
- 3. Identify strategies to refine each component of the ESR for a more scholarly product.
- 4. Develop a personal "to-do" list to prepare a MedEdPORTAL submission.

Session Methods and Format:

Review of the aspects of the ESR and how they are comparable to and differ from traditional research manuscripts. – 15 minutes

Introduce the ESR worksheet (prompting questions that provide guidance for preparing an ESR). Participants will have the opportunity to use the ESR worksheet for an educational project they envision submitting to MedEdPORTAL - 15 minutes

Divide the room into groups to review a pre-workshop ESR solicited in advance. Small groups will assess the quality of each section and identify what could be improved. Workshop facilitators will circulate to answer questions. – 30 minutes

Moderate a large group report-out of feedback on the ESR while a facilitator documents effective principles in writing the ESR. -15 minutes

Conclude workshop by discussing 1) What is hardest to write? 2) What other resources would be helpful? 3) Other questions?

Experience:

Dr. Alexander Grieco is an assistant professor in The Ohio State University College of Medicine, a member of the MedEdPORTAL Faculty Mentor Program, and associate editor in radiology for MedEdPORTAL.

Dr. Julie Boski is the assistant director of simulation research at the Zamierowski Institute for Experiential Learning at the University of Kansas Medical Center and a member of the MedEdPORTAL Faculty Mentor Program.

Sara Hunt is the managing editor of MedEdPORTAL and directs the Faculty Mentor Program.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: [shunt@aamc.org]

<u>Practical Approaches to Applying Conceptual & Theoretical Frameworks to Medical Education Research: A MESRE Session</u>

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Anna Cianciolo, Southern Illinois University Carbondale S. Beth Bierer, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve Heeyoung Han, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Janet Riddle, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Conceptual and theoretical frameworks are critical for conducting high-quality education research, yet many educators struggle to understand how to practically apply them. Lack of an appropriate conceptual framework is a common reason for rejection from medical education journals, thus the purpose of this session is to facilitate the practical application of such frameworks to education research.

Learning Objectives:

At the end of this session, participants will be able to:

- 1. Describe two theoretical frameworks commonly used in different research paradigms (opening)
- 2. Examine how the selection of a framework can impact research design (small-group activity)
- 3. Discuss strategies for framing manuscripts using a conceptual or theoretical framework (closing)

Additionally, participants will leave the session with resources that support the identification and use of conceptual frameworks.

Session Methods and Format:

Social scientists use theories and conceptual frameworks when conducting education research. The conceptual or theoretical framework provides a lens through which to identify gaps in the literature, operationalize appropriate constructs, and hypothesize relationships, as well as design methodology. In addition, such frameworks can provide scholars lenses for viewing how societies, organizations and people interact in certain ways. Despite the importance of frameworks, educators struggle to consistently identify and incorporate them when designing their research studies. Knowing that this puts them at risk for negative peer review and rejection from some medical education journals, it is critical for educators to understand the practical application of frameworks and how they can help situate one's research study in the literature. Thus, the purpose of this session, sponsored by the GEA's Medical Education Scholarship Research and Evaluation (MESRE) section, is to explore the practical application of conceptual and theoretical frameworks to education research.

20 min An opening role play will illustrate how frameworks are used early in project planning. Facilitators will explore their decision-making process and share perspectives on common barriers.

30 min Participants will complete a small-group activity using a case vignette requiring the development a notional educational research project. Facilitators will help participants compare and contrast two frameworks that could be utilized for this project. Using a literature-based worksheet, participants will consider implications of the frameworks for designing and reporting the project.

20 min Facilitators will reflect on common themes that emerged from small-group discussion as a way of illuminating potential challenges to applying frameworks. They will also discuss tips and potential pitfalls for incorporating frameworks into research manuscripts, connecting principles discussed in the small-group case vignette to examples in the literature and building upon the themes identified by the small-group facilitators. The session will close with a review of a sample publications handout and a list of available resources.

Experience:

Anna T. Cianciolo has been a medical education faculty member for 8 years. S. Beth Bierer has been a medical education faculty member for 15 years. Heeyoung Han has been a medical education faculty member for 8 years. Janet Riddle, Director of Faculty Development, teaches in the UIC MHPE program and always asks her graduate students, "What's your conceptual framework?" All presenters have served in MESRE leadership roles.

References:

- 1. Reeves S, Albert M, Kuper A, Hodges BD. Qualitative research: why use theories in qualitative research? BMJ 2008;337(7670):631-634.
- 2. Bordage G. Moving the field forward: going beyond quantitative-qualitative. Acad Med 2007;82(10 SUPPL):S126-S128.
- 3. Meyer HS, Durning SJ, Sklar DP, Maggio LA. Making the first cut: an analysis of Academic Medicine editors' reasons for not sending manuscripts out for external peer review. Acad Med 2018;93(3): 464-470.
- 4. Laksov B, Dornan T, Teunissen PW. Making theory explicit an analysis of how medical education research(ers) describe how they connect to theory. BMC Med Ed 2017;17:18.
- 5. Bierer SB, Foshee C, Uijtdehaage S. Strategies to remain current with the medical education field. Med Sci Ed 2015; 25(2): 163-70.
- 6. Bordage G. Conceptual frameworks to illuminate and magnify. Med Educ 2009;43:312-9. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/19335572
- 7. Dine CJ, Shea JA, Kogan JR. Generating good research questions in health professions education. Acad Med 2016; Epub ahead of print. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/27749302
- 8. Eva KW, Lingard L. What's next? A guiding question for educators engaged in educational research. Med Educ 2008; 42: 752-4. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/18564092
- 9. Gottlieb M, Boysen-Osborn M, Chan TM, Krzyzaniak SM, Pineda N, Spector J, Sherbino J. Academic Primer Series: eight key papers about education theory. West J Emerg Med 2017; 18(2): 293-302. Available at: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5305140/
- 10. Lingard L. Writing an effective literature review. Perspect Med Educ 2018; 7: 47-9. Available online at https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s40037-017-0401-x

For more information about this abstract please contact: [acianciolo@siumed.edu]

Preventing Trainee Crisis/Suicide through Early Identification of Distress

Submission Type: Small Group Discussions Accepted as: Small Group Discussions

Authors:

Jeffrey Cannon, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Eran Magen, Center for Supportive Relationships Kim Gilliam, Wright

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Administrators often learn of trainee distress only after trainees have already fallen behind academically, exhibited profoundly unprofessional behaviors, or tragically taken their lives. This reactive approach to identifying distress severely limits our ability to intervene effectively with trainees who are spiraling down. In this session, we present a novel proactive approach to suicide/crisis prevention, implemented at 6 medical training programs at the UME and GME level, that operates by identifying early signs of distress and offering immediate referrals to support resources. Early Alert is a third-party tool that proactively checks in with trainees once a week, using a confidential text messaging. With weekly response rates between 60%-80%, trainees reporting distress are immediately referred to on-campus and off-campus support resources, thereby facilitating very early intervention and preventing crisis among trainees. After reviewing Early Alert, we will facilitate a discussion about other methods of early identification and referral of trainees in distress, in order to exchange best practices and form action plans for participants' home institutions. This session is geared toward medical educators and administrators who seek to learn about and share their own approaches to identifying at-risk trainees as early as possible.

Learning Objectives:

Participants will (1) Compare the advantages and disadvantages of passive and proactive methods of monitoring trainee wellness; (2) Determine the appropriateness of implementing proactive monitoring systems in specific scenarios; (3) Identify new early-identification approaches to implement at their home institution.

Session Methods and Format:

5 minutes: Review of medical student and resident distress, burnout, substance abuse, and

suicide

15 minutes: Review of passive and proactive approaches to early identification of at-risk

trainees

5 minutes: Breakout group exercises (determining appropriateness of passive and proactive

methods of identifying at-risk trainees).

10 minutes: Discussion: Current approaches of identifying at-risk trainees at participants'

home institutions

10 minutes: Q&A / Group discussion

Experience:

Jeffrey Cannon, MD, is a first year resident in anesthesiology at Cleveland Clinic (Case Western Reserve).

Eran Magen, PhD, is the founder and CEO of Circles of Support, the former research director of the department of Counseling and Psychological Services at the University of Pennsylvania.

Kim Gilliam, EdD, is the director of student services at the Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine.

References:

Rotenstein LS, Ramos MA, Torre M, et al. Prevalence of Depression, Depressive Symptoms, and Suicidal Ideation Among Medical Students: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. JAMA. 2016;316(21):2214-2236. doi:10.1001/jama.2016.17324. Thompson G, McBride RB, Hosford CC, Halaas G. Resilience among medical students: The role of coping style and social support. Teach Learn Med. 2016;28(2):174–182.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [eran@supportiverelationships.org]

<u>Promoting first generation college graduate success in medical school: An</u> online toolkit of resources

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Cory Hewitt, University of South Dakota, Sanford School of Medicine Ralph Lamonge, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Marnie Ruiz, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine Toshiko Uchida, Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical students who were the first in their families to graduate from college bring unique strengths with them to medical school. First generation college graduates (FGCG) and others who come from backgrounds with limited exposure to medicine may also have unique needs that are not always recognized by their schools. The Undergraduate Medical Education (UME) Section of the Group on Educational Affairs (GEA) has convened a working group which is developing an online toolkit of resources for medical schools to support and celebrate their FGCG students. The purpose of this workshop will be to share resources from the toolkit and to help participants develop a strategy for supporting FGCG medical students at their own institutions.

Learning Objectives:

By the end of this workshop participants will be able to:

- Identify challenges FGCG medical students may face during medical school
- List a 5-part framework for supporting FGCG medical students
- State program changes that can be implemented at their own institution to support FGCG medical students

Session Methods and Format:

- 5 minutes: Introductions
- 10 minutes: Discuss definition(s) of "first gen" students
- 15 minutes: Student presenters share their experiences as FGCG students
- 10 minutes: Introduce toolkit resources categorized into 5 areas of support for FGCG students:
 - Academic support
 - Institutional climate
 - Professional development and career mentoring
 - Emotional support
 - Financial resources
- 20 minutes: Small groups work through case studies focusing on each of the 5 areas of support, and develop a plan to assist FGCG students in these scenarios
- 20 minutes: Small groups report out on their plans for supporting the FGCG students in the case studies

• 5 minutes: Participants pair and share plans for implementing changes at their own institutions

• 5 minutes: Wrap-up

• 5 minutes: Workshop evaluations

Experience:

Cory Hewitt is a fourth year medical student at the University of South Dakota Sanford School of Medicine. He graduated from the University of South Dakota with a Bachelor of Science in Medical Biology. Born in Spearfish and raised in Belle Fourche, South Dakota, he is the first in his family to have attended medical school.

Ralph Lamonge is a second year medical student at Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine. He graduated from the University of Florida with a Bachelor of Health Science. Born in Port Au Prince, Haiti, he is the first in his family to have gone to college in the United States and attend medical school.

Marnie Ruiz is a first year medical student at Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine. She graduated from the University of North Carolina – Chapel Hill with a Bachelor of Arts in Biology. Born in Sagua La Grande, Cuba, she is also the first in her family to have graduated from college in the United States.

Toshi Uchida is the CGEA representative to the UME section and the coordinator of the UME online toolkit of resources for medical schools to support FGCG students.

References:

- 1. https://www.aamc.org/news-insights/finding-success-first-generation-medical-student
- 2. Mason HRC, Winesman J, Marcellon R, Huamantla M, Ruiz C, Ayala EE. First generation medical student wellness in the US: A cross-sectional snapshot. J Best Pract Health Prof Divers. 2018;11:96-106.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [toshiko-uchida@northwestern.edu]

Providing and Requesting AC2Tive Feedback

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Deborah Simpson, AdvocateAuroraHealth Karen Marcdante, Medical College of Wisconsin Brownie Anderson, National Board of Medical Examiners

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Feedback is an essential component of learning. It can come in many forms ranging from faculty silence when a learner presents a patient's differential diagnosis to suggestions that to read more. Yet feedback is usually among the lowest rated items teaching evaluation items (eg, 2018-19 ACGME Resident Survey results 1/3 of programs are not meeting compliance requirements for the item "satisfied with feedback..."). Recent studies on feedback highlight the challenge, "Despite decades of faculty development workshops on feedback, there has been little to no sustained impact". Consistent with the literature on well-being, recent studies shift the emphasis to a learner-faculty alliance, changing the dynamic from that of learner as receiver who easily "wrongspots" all the reasons why the feedback is incorrect, to that of a learner soliciting actionable feedback to achieve their valued performance goals. This interactive session will provide an overview of the recent feedback literature, our successful evidence-based model, with time for participants to practice soliciting and providing actionable feedback [current performance, target performance with specific strategies and resources] and discussion faculty development implications.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Describe current findings re: why learners perceive they don't receive feedback
- 2. List the key elements associated with actionable feedback: it includes current performance assessment, target performance (goal) and specific strategies/resources for bridging the gap
- 3. Provide/solicit actionable feedback in 1-2 minutes per interaction (e.g., clinic, end of a meeting)

Session Methods and Format:

3 min Session Overview

5 min Interactive Quiz on Feedback (Lg Grp Interactive):

- What are the key features of effective feedback? (timely, changeable behavior)
- How often do learners change based on your feedback?

12 min What Does the Literature Tell Us about Feedback – Key Features of

- Actionable feedback for learning/growth
- Soliciting Actionable Feedback: AC2T Model Ask/Answer (specific, focus on growth), Clarify (to be action oriented), Consider (as step toward your performance goal), say Thanks.
- Demonstration/Debrief

40 min Asking for and Giving Feedback – Practice Common Situations (Sm Grps)

- Group select from list common learner/professional feedback scenarios from list (including teacher solicits feedback)
- able members volunteer/assign roles as feedback solicitor, provider, observer(s)
- Observers will prepare to Give Feedback focused on degree to which feedback incorporated key elements of actionable feedback
- Debrief then repeat with new scenario.

10 min Lg Grp Debrief of Small Groups AC2T

15 min $\,$ Interactive Discussion : Actionable Take Homes /faculty development 5 min $\,$ Wrap Up + Key Take Homes and References

Experience:

Deborah "Deb" Simpson, PhD is an experienced presenter (>700 invited/per reviewed sessions) who blends evidence, faculty/organization needs, with humor/innovation to address gnarly situations faculty development/medical education.

Karen Marcdante, MD has been active clinician, medical educator and scholar for >3 decades, serving in multiple teaching, faculty development, and leadership roles resulting in over 200 peer-reviewed and invited national workshops, presentations and publications.

Brownie Anderson, MA is an internationally recognized medical educator, leader and scholar whose evidence and reality based perspectives are frequently solicited to guide and frame innovation and assessment in medical education.

References

Anseel F. Agile learning strategies for sustainable careers: a review and integrated model of feedback-seeking behavior and reflection. Current opinion in E Sustain. 2017 Oct 1;28:51-7.

Crommelinck M, Anseel F. Understanding and encouraging feedback seeking behavior: a literature review. Med Ed 2013;47:232-241.

Bing-You R, Hayes V, et al The Art (and Artifice) of Seeking Feedback: Clerkship Students' Approaches to Asking for Feedback. Academic Medicine. 2018 Aug 1;93(8):1218-26.

Bing-You R, Varaklis K, Hayes V, Trowbridge R, Kemp H, McKelvy D. The feedback tango: an integrative review and analysis of the content of the teacher–learner feedback exchange. Academic Medicine. 2018 Apr 1;93(4):657-63.

Eva KW, Regehr G. "I'll never play professionalism football" and other fallacies of self-assessment. J Cont Ed Hlth Prof 2008:28(1):14-19

Davis DA, Mazmanaian P, et al. Accuracy of physician self-assessment compared with observed measures of competence: a systematic review. JAMA. 2006;296:1094-102.

Stone D, Heen S. Thanks for the feedback: the science and art of receiving feedback well (even when it is off base, unfair, poorly delivered, and frankly, you're not in the mood). Penguin Random House LLC. New York; 204.

Telio S, Ajjawi R, Regehr G. The 'educational alliance' as a framework for conceptualizing feedback in medical education. Acad Med. 2015;90(5):609-14..

Telio S, Regehr G, Aijawi R. Feedback and the educational alliances: examining credibility judgements and their consequences. Med Ed 2016:50:933-942.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [deb.simpson@aurora.org]

Reimaging faculty development: lessons from professional development models of business consulting firms

Submission Type: Small Group Discussions Accepted as: Small Group Discussions

Authors:

Sookyung Suh, Southern Illinois University Debra Klamen, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine C. Leslie Smith, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Academic medicine is similar to professional service firms in that there is no manufacturing of a tangible product, but rather the provision of services to patients, education of learners, and collaboration with colleagues. These services rely on our employees' knowledge and skill. However, faculty and employee development strategies in academic medicine have remained relatively unchanged.

Many leading professional services firms have long recognized that their most valuable asset is their employees. Therefore they invest in employee professional development through professional development programs that serve individual needs. Examples include career development paths, onboarding, coaching, shadowing, webinars, knowledge sharing, face-to-face workshops, and hybrid learning. These consulting firms' professional development strategies are structured, intentional, and customizable and use hybrid learning methods.

Numerous articles in human resource development have demonstrated the importance of investing in employee continuing education. However, the application of proven strategies from the business world is uncommonly utilized in academic medicine. Therefore, it would be worthwhile to learn trends and challenges from professional development in the business world and rethink the traditional faculty and staff development approaches used in academic medicine. In an effort to change the culture of faculty development, SIU School of Medicine launched the Center for Human and Organizational Potential in 2018. One of the missions of the center is to promote personal and professional development of not only faculty but of all employees and community partners. We have introduced a multiple-level approach for professional and leadership development to adapt to individual developmental needs. Additionally, an unconventional theme of the Center was to include wellness as a top priority intentionally: this includes individual mental and physical wellness and multi-level organizational wellness, all of which have an impact on institutional culture.

Participants will be engaged in small group discussions on how professional development trends in business consulting can be applied and implemented in academic medicine.

Learning Objectives:

- Describe how business consulting firms strategize professional development for their employees
- Identify ways to reimagine faculty development programs

 Discuss alternative approaches to enhance personal and professional development experiences

Session Methods and Format:

Small group discussion

- Introduction: background (10 mins)
 - o Discussion: current faculty development programs
- Presentation: professional development trends in business consulting firms (15 mins)
 - o Discussion: professional development in business, what can we apply and how
- Presentation: New model for faculty development and beyond (15 mins)
 - O Discussion: what to consider, how to start the program
- Q&A (5 mins)

Experience:

Dr. Suh is an Assistant Professor in Medical Education and has extensive consulting experience in organizational change management working with Fortune 500 companies, healthcare providers, and academic medical centers.

Dr. Klamen is the Senior Associate Dean for Education and Curriculum, and the Professor and Chair of the Department of Medical Education at Southern Illinois University School of Medicine. She has extensive experience in curricular design and innovation, as well as medical education research.

Dr. Smith has over 25 years of experience in adult education and curriculum design, as well as a background in allopathic and integrative medicine.

References:

https://www.entrepreneur.com/article/315095

https://www.forbes.com/sites/williamcraig/2018/07/31/making-strategic-investments-in-employee-development-is-crucial-for-success/#5e287ccf140c

https://www.inc.com/chad-halvorson/5-reasons-you-should-be-investing-in-employee-development.html https://hbr.org/2018/10/when-companies-should-invest-in-training-their-employees-and-when-they-shouldnt

For more information about this abstract please contact: [ssuh89@siumed.edu]

Seeing is Believing: Visualize Your CQI Data and Improve Outcomes

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Colleen Hayden, Wright State University
Amber Todd, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine
Dean Parmelee, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine
Jason Booza, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Robert Reaves, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The need for continuous quality improvement (CQI) and data driven decision-making (DDDM) is not unique to medical education. Though the Liaison Committee on Medical Education (LCME) has strengthened requirements for formal CQI efforts to achieve accreditation standards, the amount of data that schools must collect and evaluate for informing the requisite CQI process and actions is overwhelming. It is important for school leadership and curricular oversight bodies to be able to easily visualize status, interrelationships, and changes between such data sets as the AAMC Graduation Questionnaire (GC), the Y2 Survey, the Independent Student Analysis (ISA), and many other in-house markers that reflect the learning environment and student progression. This workshop will provide participants with a hands-on tool to visualize their institution's data using Excel and provide a more efficient way to visually identify trends for CQI analysis and action.

Learning Objectives:

- Establish innovative ways to apply CQI and DDDM practices to achieve LCME accreditation compliance.
- Acquire and practice with the unique Excel tool developed for this workshop for data entry, analysis, and visual display of trends.
- Prioritize areas for continuous quality improvement (CQI) and monitoring by evaluating data trends at their home institutions.

Session Methods and Format:

- [15 minutes] Brief introductions from the workshop facilitators and overview of:
 - o What are CQI and DDDM?
 - o Review LCME Element 1.1
 - o Brief overview of development of Excel dashboarding tool
- [30 minutes] At each table, participants will work with colleagues to analyze a Case Scenario provided by Wright State and Wayne State, including an introductory tutorial on how to enter data into the Excel tool (data will be provided and related to the Case)
 - o Each participant accesses and downloads the Excel tool onto their own laptop.
 - Each table will apply the PDSA (plan-do-study-act) cycle to the Case Scenario (PDSA cycle templates will be provided).
 - Each table will then briefly present their PDSA plan to the larger group for feedback and comparison with other groups who worked through the same Case.

- [40 minutes] Each participant will use their own institutional GQ or ISA data to input ONE data item into the Excel tool.
 - Each participant will have 15 minutes to input their data and develop their own individual PDSA plan for the ONE data item that they inputted into the Excel tool.
 - For the remaining 25 minutes, participants at each table will briefly share with colleagues their PDSA plan and receive feedback to enhance their improvement plan.
- [5 minutes] Wrap-up and questions

Experience:

Colleen Hayden, MS, EdD(c): Director of Medical Education and Accreditation (12 years at Wright State); co-convener for the (new) Program Evaluation & Accreditation SIG Amber Todd, PhD: Director of Assessment (3 years at Wright State)

Dean Parmelee, MD: Director of Educational Scholarship & Program Development (18 years at Wright State)

Jason Booza, PhD: Assistant Dean of CQI & Compliance (8 years at Wayne State) Robert Reaves, MBA: Director of Institutional Effectiveness (2 years at Wayne State)

References:

1. Provost F, Fawcett T. Data science and its relationship to big data and data-driven decision making. Big Data. 2013;1(1),51-59.

2. Implementing a System for Monitoring Performance in LCME Accreditation Standards. [September 12, 2019]. Retrieved from http://lcme.org/wp-content/uploads/filebase/ white papers/CQI-Guidance-Document-10-16.docx. Published October 19, 2016.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [colleen.hayden@wright.edu]

Tech Tools for Teaching: Planning for strategic incorporation of technology

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Allison Prelosky-Leeson, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve University

Michaela Stiber, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of Case Western Reserve Ray Gardner, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of CWRU

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical education faculty increasingly seek to incorporate technology into their educational activities to enhance interactivity with learners. When aligned with learning objectives, technology can assist instructors in engaging learners, enhancing knowledge retention, and gathering feedback. This interactive session will assist participants to identify and gain familiarity with appropriately aligned technology tools and planning for implementation in existing curriculum.

Learning Objectives:

- Discuss benefits of incorporating technology into educational activities
- Align technology plans to course objectives
- Identify specific technology tools to enhance existing curriculum
- Utilize a planning tool to incorporate technology into teaching practices

Session Methods and Format:

Introduction (5 min): Audience discussion regarding their current comfort level in selecting and implementing technology in their teaching. Learning objectives presented.

Activity (10 min): Participants will engage in a think-pair-share activity to discuss the following: What is one goal, pain point, or barrier to incorporating tech in your teaching environment? Activity followed by debrief and discussion of discuss themes.

Content (15 min): Rationale for utilizing technology strategically will be presented, including open ended questions to engage the audience

- Rationale: Why incorporate technology?
- Aligning technology with educational objectives
- Identifying educational "bottlenecks" as an opportunity to leverage technology

Interactive Content (35 min): Participants will identify stages where technology can be incorporated, while presenters demonstrate applicable tools.

Pre-interaction education: Areas of focus include: developing shared understanding of a complex topic; engaging learners prior to the interaction; introducing content.

Activity: Participants will utilize Google Docs to share their ideas for pre-interaction educational opportunities.

The presenters will share a Padlet with resources for further reading on all technologies presented

• During a class or educational activity: Opportunities include: gauging learner's understanding; stimulating recall/prior knowledge, enhancing group activities with multimedia

Activity: Participants will respond to a question via Poll Everywhere

• Assessment, Evaluation and Feedback: Technology can assist in assessing and evaluating students during or after a class, or gaining feedback.

Activity: Presenters will demonstrate building and implementing a Google Form, to allow participants to view this quick and user-friendly technology

• Presenters will discuss contingency planning for technology glitches.

Activity (20 min): Participants will utilize a tool developed by the presenters to plan for incorporation of technology into their teaching activities. Participants will identify educational bottlenecks and strategize for use of one technology tool prior to or during an educational interaction, as aligned with an educational objective.

Conclusion (8 min): Participants will share key takeaways via a live-generated word cloud on Mentimeter. Presenters will address additional questions.

Experience:

Allison Prelosky-Leeson, MEd, Program Manager, Office of Educator & Scholar Development, teaches and trains interprofessional educators at the Cleveland Clinic in the areas of curriculum development, interactive teaching, and feedback.

Michaela Stiber, BS, CCLCM Evaluation Manager, utilizes multiple technology platforms to develop, implement, and analyze evaluations and assessments of CCLCM program services.

Ray Gardner, MBA, CCLCM Education Coordinator, trains faculty in incorporating specific technologies into classroom teaching environments.

References:

Miller, M. (2019, August 23) How to Make Smart Choices About Tech for Your Course. The Chronicle of Higher Education. Retrieved from https://www.chronicle.com/interactives/08262019-adviceguide-tech-choices

For more information about this abstract please contact: [prelosa@ccf.org]

<u>Title: You Can't Do That! Removing Shelf Exams and "Blowing Up"</u> Clerkships

Submission Type: Panel Discu+H2:H21ssion Accepted as: Panel Discu+H2:H21ssion

Authors:

Irina Overman, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Amanda Bell, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Debra Klamen, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Anna Cianciolo, Southern Illinois University Carbondale

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical school is traditionally broken up into two phases: the preclinical and the clinical phase. While the preclinical phase focuses on foundational scientific and medical knowledge, the clinical phase focuses on hands-on patient care and clinical skills. Given that the clinical phase curriculum focuses more on clinical skills, assessment for the phase needs to shift toward clinical skills over basic content knowledge.

Many medical schools use the NBME Subject Examinations for the Clinical Sciences (commonly referred to as Shelf exams) to assess medical knowledge during clerkships. The benefit of these exams is that they are standardized, provide a benchmark for student performance compared with students nationally, and provide an objective numerical score. Assessing clinical skills during clerkships is a harder task. Objective Structured Clinical Examinations (OSCEs) can provide a numerical measure of clinical skills, but since these use people to provide feedback of student performance, variability can be seen between standardized patients. Preceptor evaluations of student performance are even more variable, despite the use of rubrics and faculty education. Because of the objectiveness of Shelf scores and the variability of clinical evaluations, most clerkship grading criteria are skewed toward Shelf exams while downplaying clinical evaluations.

Medical schools know that doing well on a standardized test is not the only measure of a high-quality doctor, but assessing clinical skills is truly challenging and difficult to make objective. This panel presentation will highlight strategies from two different medical schools that have removed Shelf exams and revised clerkships to include more wholistic assessment of students. Panelists will discuss their successes and challenges with revising the curriculum and grading criteria. Attendees will gain insight into how to feasibly and reliably assess students during clerkships without using Shelf exams.

Learning Objectives:

By the end of this panel discussion, participants will be able to:

- Describe ways to assess clerkship students without shelf exams
- Compare and contrast changes in clerkship curricula across medical schools
- Identify barriers to implementing change in clerkships
- Discuss opportunities for clerkship curriculum change at their institution
- Design changes to home institution clerkship curriculum

Session Methods and Format:

Introduction of session objectives, moderator, and panelists [5 minutes, led by moderator] Overview of clerkships at each medical school

- Southern Illinois University School of Medicine [15 minutes]
 - Questions for Southern Illinois University SOM [5 minutes]
- Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine [15 minutes]
 - Questions for Boonshoft SOM [5 minutes]
- Challenges in clerkship changes [15 minutes, led by moderator]
 - Attendee questions/comments/additions
- Successes in clerkship changes [15 minutes, led by moderator]
 - o Attendee questions/comments/additions
- Questions and comments from attendees [15 minutes]

Experience:

Irina Overman, MD: Director, Foundations of Clinical Practice (7 years at Boonshoft SOM) Amanda Bell, MD: Director, Biomedical & Clinical Integration (15 years at Boonshoft SOM) Debra Klamen, MD, MHPE: Senior Associate Dean for Education and Curriculum (15 years at Southern Illinois University SOM)

Anna Cianciolo, PhD: Associate Professor, Department of Medical Education (8 years at Southern Illinois University SOM)

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: [irina.vasiliu@wright.edu]

Try This at Home: Strategies for Supporting Faculty Scholarly Productivity

Submission Type: Small Group Discussions Accepted as: Small Group Discussions

Authors:

Klara Papp, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Brian Mavis, Michigan State University

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

It is an expectation that faculty engage in teaching, service and scholarship. Faculty scholarship is highly valued by institutions, often more explicitly than other faculty roles. The scholarly productivity of faculty often is used as a proxy for team leadership, collaboration skills and expertise, thereby impacting decisions related to hiring, salary, resource allocation, promotion and tenure². In spite of or perhaps because of the pressure faculty feel to be productive scholars, many are challenged to be productive.

Multiple studies have documented the personal (motivation, knowledge, work habits, etc.), leadership (resource availability, goal orientation, management styles, etc.) and institutional characteristics (resources, rewards, mentoring, culture, etc.) that support scholarly productivity^{1,3}. At a local level, many of these factors are not readily, quickly or reliably influenced. However, there are ways faculty can support each other to increase the likelihood of success in achieving scholarly goals. These strategies include mentoring, creating collaborations, targeting resources, approaches to feedback, coaching around specific skills, as well as creating structures to promote goal setting and enhance efficacy.

Learning Objectives:

Participants will:

- Identify three challenges that faculty cite that inhibit their scholarly productivity.
- Describe three strategies that have others have tried to support faculty scholarship and the pros and cons of each strategy.
- Describe the goals of writing groups and the features of different writing group approaches.
- Identify three resources that support faculty scholarly productivity.

Session Methods and Format:

Introduction (5 minutes): Presenters will introduce themselves and the topic of the session and outline the learning objectives

Background and Examples (15 minutes): Presenters will provide examples of strategies adopted at their home institutions and describe the degree to which these strategies have been successful. Examples of strategies to be presented include reserved writing times, writing accountability groups, coaching and mentoring sessions, group manuscript reviews and developing resource repositories.

Group Discussion: (25 minutes): This will be time for sharing ideas, resources, successes and challenges. The presenters will invite session participants to provide additional examples of strategies that they have used including the resources needed and outcomes of their efforts. The

presenters will document various strategies and resources that emerge from the session and make them available to participants after the session through a sign-in sheet.

Experience:

Brian Mavis is a professor of medical education with multiple publications and conference presentations, as well as experience implementing strategies to support faculty scholarly productivity.

Klara Papp is Graber Term Professor of Health Learning, associate dean for assessment and continuous quality improvement with recent experience implementing a structured approach to supporting scholarly productivity.

References:

1 Bland CJ, Center BA, Finstad DA, Risbey KR & Staples JG, A Theoretical, Practical, Predictive Model of Faculty and Department Research Productivity. Academic Medicine. 2005; 80:225–237

2 Mavis BE, During SJ & Uijtdehaage S. Authorship order: In search of practical guidance for the medical education community. Teaching and Learning in Medicine. 2019; 31(3): 288-297.

3 Yeh HC, Bertram A, Brancati FL, Cofrancesco J Jr. Perceptions of division directors in general internal medicine about the importance of and support for scholarly work done by clinician-educators. Academic Medicine. 2015 Feb;90(2):203-8.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [brian.mavis@hc.msu.edu]

Utilizing Team-Based Learning to Teach Bioethics

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Ashley Fernandes, The Ohio State University Sandra Spencer, Nationwide Children's Hospital Stephanie Lauden, Nationwide Children's Hospital Sheria Wilson, Nationwide Children's Hospital John Mahan, Nationwide Children's Hospital

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical accrediting bodies accept the notion that bioethics is vital curricular component, but inherent pedagogical barriers remain. While Team-based learning (TBL) in medical education has been shown to be an effective strategy to teach students both clinical and basic sciences, studies evaluating the effectiveness of TBL in bioethics education have been scant. In this workshop participants will identify and analyze barriers to teaching ethics and professionalism to clinical learners. Participants will then brainstorm strategies for remedying these problems. Next, attendees will learn how to create TBL exercises in ethics and participate in a bioethics "mini-TBL." Finally, we introduce our strategy and preliminary data for a successful TBL-based ethics curriculum.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Analyze barriers to ethics education for clinical learners.
- 2. Describe the process of creating a TBL exercise and identify advantages of TBL over other methods.
- 3. Utilize TBL as a strategy for overcoming barriers to ethics education.
- 4. Participate in a "mini-TBL" focusing on ethics and suggest areas of success and improvement.

Session Methods and Format:

This session will be an interactive, skill-building workshop with emphasis on audience participation. The object is to "teach the teacher" while actively using TBL skills. Ultimately, the attendee will have confidence they can create their own TBL exercise in ethics, because they will have just participated in one that they helped create.

- I. Welcome and introduction (10 minutes)
- a) Objectives (create learning objectives for session)
- b) Discuss the need for ethics education, innovation, and barriers (large group discussion)
- c) Introduce utilizing TBL for ethics.
- II. TBL education (80 minutes: participate in TBL)
- a) Pre reading (TBL basics)
- b) Individual readiness assurance test [IRAT]
- c) Group readiness assurance Test [GRAT] (small group)
- d) Application Exercise: Create an Ethics TBL (small group)
- III. Wrap up (5 minutes)

Evaluation and pre/post test data

IV. Question and Answer (20 minutes)

Experience:

- 1. Ashley K. Fernandes, MD, PhD: Director of Professionalism Competency, Associate Director of the Center for Bioethics, and has presented nationally and internationally in medical education, bioethics, and bioethics education; he has extensive experience in teaching at the UME and GME levels
- 2. John Mahan, MD, is the former residency program director at Nationwide Children's Hospital, a Professor of Pediatric Nephrology, and a national expert in professionalism education and medical education and the Director of Faculty Development at The Ohio State University
- 3. Sandra Spencer, MD, is an associate professor of pediatrics in the Division of Pediatric Emergency Medicine, a member of our GME ethics education team, and a leader in QA/QI at Nationwide Children's Hospital.
- 4. Stephanie Lauden, MD, CTropMed, is an assistant professor of pediatrics in the Division of Hospital Pediatrics and brings a global health/international health perspective and a passion for social justice and health care disparities; she is active in education research.
- 5. Sheria Wilson, MD, MA, is an assistant professor of pediatrics in the Division of Neonatology with an advanced degree in bioethics and a depth of clinical experience in the high intensity environment of the NICU, she also directs a graduate course in pediatric ethics.

References

Deardorff, AS, Moore, JA, Borges, N, Parmelee DX. Assessing first-year medical student attitudes of the effectiveness of Team-Based Learning. JIAMSE 2010; 20(2): 67-72.

Fatmi M, Hartling L, Hillier T, Campbell S, Oswald AE. The effectiveness of team-based learning on learning outcomes in health professions education: BEME Guide No. 30. Med Teach. Dec 2013;35(12):e1608-24.

Fernandes, AK, Wilson, S, Kasick, R., Humphrey, L., Mahan, J., and Spencer, S. Team-Based Learning in Bioethics Education: Creating a Successful Curriculum for Residents in an Era of 'Curricular Squeeze.' Med Sci Educ 2019 (accepted, forthcoming). Michaelsen, LK and Sweet, M. Team based learning. New Directions for Teaching and Learning. Special Issue: Evid Based Teach. Winter 2011; 128: 41-51.

Nieder, G, Parmelee, DX, Stolfi, A, Hudes, P. Team-Based Learning in a medical gross anatomy and embryology course. Med Teach. 2005; 18(3): 56-63.

Sisk RJ. J Team-based learning: systematic research review. Nurs Educ. 2011 Dec;50(12):665-9.

Touchet, TK, and Coon, KA. A pilot use of Team-Based Learning in psychiatry resident psychodynamic psychotherapy education. Acad Psych. 2005; 29: 293-6.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [ashley.fernandes@osumc.edu]

Writing Multiple Choice Questions (MCQs) for Basic & Clinical Sciences

Submission Type: Workshops Accepted as: Workshops

Authors:

Miguel Paniagua, National Board of Medical Examiners (NBME) Thomas Rebbecchi, NBME

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Faculty can benefit from developing versatility in item writing skills based on curricular needs and exam stakes for both the basic and clinical sciences. Experienced item writers will find this a useful refresher course and an opportunity to learn new skills.

Learning Objectives:

Participants will gain the following skills:

- Identify and correct Multiple Choice Question (MCQ) flaws
- Distinguish between items requiring simple recall versus critical thinking
- Review and write integrated, clinical and foundational science-focused MCQ's
- Demonstrate versatility in creating multiple choice items to match curricular needs

Session Methods and Format:

Participants from different disciplines will participate in the workshop groups, promoting valuable cross-discipline and collegial exchange. Writing items in teams and providing feedback within and across groups will broaden their skills. Participants will write items in teams and provide feedback within and across groups. Faculty will develop versatility in item writing skills based on curricular needs and exam stakes for both the basic and clinical sciences in these challenging competencies. Copies of "Constructing Written Test Questions for the Basic and Clinical Sciences, 4th Edition" will be provided to all participants.

•	Welcome and Introductions	10 min
•	Pretest	10 min
•	One-Best-Answer Items	15 min
	 Overview of families of MCQs 	
	- Introduction to using Clinical Vignettes	
•	Item Flaws: Irrelevant Difficulty	25 min
•	Item Flaws: Testwiseness and review pretest	15 min
•	Assessing Critical Thinking with Clinical Vignettes	15 min
•	Item Writing Practice, Review, and questions	30 min

Experience:

Miguel A. Paniagua, MD, FACP, FAAHPM currently serves as Medical Advisor for Solutions Design & Delivery at the National Board of Medical Examiners. He is the co-editor of "Constructing Written Test Questions for the Basic and Clinical Sciences" (4th edition an itemwriting manual published by the National Board of Medical Examiners® (NBME®).

Thomas Rebbecchi, MD currently serves as Medical Advisor in Marketing & Product Management at the National Board of Medical Examiners.

References:

M. Paniagua, K. Swygert, S. Downing: Written Tests: Writing high-Quality Constructed-Response and Selected-Response Items. Assessment in Health Professions Education, Second Edition. R. Yudkowsky, Y. Park, S. Downing (eds.). Routledge, Page: 109-125, July 2019 Notes: DOI: 10.4324/9781138054394ISBN: 1138054399.

Paniagua, M., Swygert, K.A., Billings, M., DeRuchie, K., Haist, S.A., Hussie, K., & Merrell, J.: Constructing Written Test Questions for the Basic and Clinical Sciences, 4th Edition. National Board of Medical Examiners Paniagua M. and Swygert K.A. (eds.). National Board of Medical Examiners, 2017.

Str>Haist SA, Butler AP, Paniagua MA: Testing and evaluation: the present and future of the assessment of medical professionals. Adv Physiol Educ. 2017 Mar 1;41(1):149-153. 1(41): 149-153, mar 2017.

For more information about this abstract please contact: [mpaniagua@nbme.org]

List of CGEA Executive Committee members 2019-2020

Elizabeth A. Baker, MD, MHPE Chair

Caren Stalburg, MD Past Chair

Clara Schroedl, MD CPD Section Leader

Alisa Nagler, JD, MA, EdD CPD Section Lead-elect

Cecile Foshee, PhD GME Section Leader

Heather Billings, PhD GME Section Lead-elect

Heeyoung Han, PhD MESRE Section Leader

Toshi Uchida, MD UME Section Leader

Kamran M. Mirza, MD, PhD, FCAP Member At Large

Jennifer Schwartz, MD, PhD, FCAP Member At Large

Douglas Danforth, PhD Member At Large

Tazheh Kavoosi Student Representative

Becca Gas, MS Operations Coordinator

List of CGEA Planning Committee and Subcommittees members

Kamran M. Mirza, MD PhD CGEA 2020 Program Chair

Mark N. Beard, MD CGEA 2020 Program Co-Chair

Jennifer E. Schwartz, MD CGEA 2020 Program Committee

Douglas Danforth, PhD CGEA 2020 Program Committee

Geraud Plantegenest CGEA 2019 Program Chair

Heeyoung Han, PhD CGEA MESRE Chair

Becca Gas, MS Operations Coordinator

Abstract Reviewers

Reviewer Name Reviewer Institution

Jessica Greenfield Cleveland Clinic Lerner COM of Case Western Reserve Univ

Paul Westerman Aurora University of Wisconsin Medical Group

Michaela Stiber Cleveland Clinic Lerner COM of Case Western Reserve Univ

Diane Karius, Ph.D. Kansas City University of Medicine and Biosciences

Virginia Uhley Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

Jessica Hanks University of Illinois College of Medicine at Peoria

Dr. Monzurul Roni University of Illinois College of Medicine

Melissa Hansen University of Toledo

Beth Bierer Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine of CWRU

Sonal Chandratre Medical College of Wisconsin- Central Wisconsin Campus

J.M.Monica van de Ridder
Anna Cianciolo
Heeyoung Han
Jyotsna Pandey

Michigan State University- Spectrum Health
Southern Illinois University School of Medicine
Central Michigan University College of Medicine

Carrie Bowler Mayo Clinic

Stacey Pylman Michigan State University - College of Human Medicine

Stephanie Mann University of Toledo College of Medicine

Robet Wallon Carle Illinois College of Medicine

Olivia Coiado University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

J.M.Monica van de Ridder Michigan State University
Bindu Menon The University of Toledo

Heather Billings Mayo Clinic

Paul Westerman Advocate Aurora Health Sol Roberts-Lieb University of Illinois

Tracey Taylor Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine
Elizabeth M Petty University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health

Lori DeShetler The University of Toledo

Carrie Bernat University of Iowa

Kara Sawarynski Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

Xiaodong (Phoenix) Chen Ohio State University

Robert Treat Medical College of Wisconsin Margaret Hoogland The University of Toledo

Janet Lindemann University of South Dakota Sanford School of Medicine

Emily Abdoler University of Michigan Medical School Koong-Nah Chung Washington University School of Medicine

Aimee Szewka Rush University Medical Center

Elizabeth Lorbeer Western Michigan Univ Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine

Christen Dilly Indiana University School of Medicine

Eve Colson Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine

Greg Kaupla The Medical College of Wisconsin

Amy Seegmiller Renner Mayo Clinic

Amanda Start The Ohio State University College of Medicine

Rebecca Scherzer Nationwide Children's Hospital

Thomas Schmidt Carver College of Medicine, The University of Iowa

Misa Mi Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

Geraud Plantegenest Spectrum Health Medical Group / MSU

Michael Eugene Busha Western Michigan Univ Homer Stryker MD School of Medicine

James Grogan Oakland Univ William Beaumont SOM

Brian Mavis Michigan State University

Koong-Nah Chung Washington University School of Medicine

David Paulk University of Cincinnati

Jennifer Mendez Wayne State University - School of Medicine Linda Perkowski Central Michigan Univ College of Medicine

Nelia Afonso Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

Lori DeShetler The University of Toledo James T Fitzgerald University of Michigan

Christie Seibert University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health

Daniel Hickey The University of Toledo

Kerrie Jordan Kansas City University of Medicine and Biosciences

Princess Currence Rush Medical College Alex Grieco Ohio State University

Virginia Uhley Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine
Toshi Uchida Northwestern University Feinberg School of Medicine
Harold J Bell Central Michigan University College of Medicine

Nicole Verbeck, MPH Ohio State University College of Medicine

Katherine Cornelius Mayo Clinic

Patrick A Carr Univ of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences

Sol Roberts-Lieb University of Illinois

Bindu Menon The University of Toledo College of Medicine and Life Sciences

Lori DeShetler The University of Toledo

Marcel D'Eon University of Saskatchewan College of Medicine

Melissa Hansen The University of Toledo

Thomas Schmidt Carver College of Medicine, The University of Iowa

Greg Kaupla The Medical College of Wisconsin

Koong-Nah Chung Washington University School of Medicine Stephanie Mann The University of Toledo College of Medicine

Theresa Kristopaitis Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Celia O'Brien Northwestern University - Feinberg School of Medicine

Sylk Sotto Indiana University School of Medicine

Anna Volerman University of Chicago

Susan Anderson University of South Dakota Sanford School of Medicine

Ilene Harris University of Illinois-Chicago College of Medicine

Karen Marcdante Medical College of Wisconsin

Aleece Caron The MetroHealth System/Case Western Reserve University

Paula T. Ross University of Michigan
Xiaodong (Phoenix) Chen
Eron Drake Michigan State University
Alex Grieco Ohio State University

Jason Booza Wayne State University School of Medicine

Heather Billings Mayo Clinic

Beth Bierer Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine Prasanna Abeyrathna A.T. Still University of Health Sciences

Khalilah Gates Northwestern

Elissa Hall Mayo Clinic College of Medicine and Science

Janet Riddle University of Illinois-Chicago Melissa Quinn The Ohio State University

David P. Way The Ohio State University COM Dpt of Emergency Medicine

Steve Vance Central Michigan University

Teresa Hartman University of Nebraska Medical Center Kari L Nelson University of Nebraska Medical Center Maria Baggstrom Washington University in St. Louis

Janelle Bolden Northwestern Feinberg College of Medicine Abbey Fingeret University of Nebraska Medical Center

Josh Hopps Feinberg School of Medicine, Northwestern University
Jennifer Quaintance University of Missouri-Kansas City School of Medicine

William Keenan

Carley Sauter Medical College of Wisconsin

Joseph S Deters

McGaw Medical Center of Northwestern University

Ilene Harris

University of Illinois College of Medicine - Chicago

Brenda Roman

Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine

Central Michigan University College of Medicine

Jen Dolson University of Kansas Medical Center
Dena Higbee University of Missouri School of Medicine
Giulia Bonaminio University of Kansas School of Medicine

Jessica Greenfield Cleveland Clinic

Nehad El-Sawi Des Moines University Medicine & Health Sciences Kerrie Jordan Kansas City University of Medicine and Biosciences

Paul Westerman Advocate Aurora Health

Tammy Webster University of Nebraska Medical Center

Ling Wang Michigan State University

Corinne E Lehmann University of Cincinnati College of Medicine

Caren Stalburg University of Michigan

Robert Treat Medical College of Wisconsin

Rachel Wolfson University of Chicago

Michael Lund Medical College of Wisconsin

Shirley Eisner SUNY Downstate College of Medicine

Harold J Bell Central Michigan University

Koong-Nah Chung Washington University School of Medicine

Bipin Thapa Medical College of Wisconsin

Diane Karius Kansas City University of Medicine and Biosciences Janet Jokela University of Illinois College of Medicine at Urbana

Jennifer Wayne State University School of Medicine

Rebecca Graves University of Missouri

Eve Colson Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine

Ilene Harris University of Illinois at Chicago Allison Knight Eastern Virginia Medical School

Gregory Gruener Loyola Univ Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

David P. Way The Ohio State University COM Dpt of Emergency Medicine

Melissa Quinn The Ohio State University